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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For The Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2013

OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 001-35846

West Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaer)

Delaware 47-0777362
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or or ganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)
11808 Miracle Hills Drive, Omaha, Nebraske 68154
(Address of principal executive offices (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(402) 963-1200
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act: None.
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tie Act: None.
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405cdBéturities Act.  Yed] No ™

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ord)%f the Act. YesO No ™M

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sexti3 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act &4l8uring the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter periotlttiregistrant was required to file such repogasyl (2) has been subject to such filing requirgsiéor the past 90
days. YesM No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant liasnitted electronically and posted on its corpovegdsite, if any, every Interactive Data File regdito be submitte
and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation §2B2.405 of this chapter) during the preceding batims (or for such shorter period that the regigtveas required to
submit and post such files). Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinqulers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K i$ oontained herein, and will not be contained hi bbest of
registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfieation statements incorporated by reference ihIRaf this Form 10-K or any amendment to thisfol0-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller reporting comp&se definitions of
“large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” atginaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of thetAc

Large accelerated filerd Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated fileri Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule -2 of the Act). YesO No ™



The aggregate market value of the common equity beinon-affiliates (computed by reference to therage bid and asked price of such common equitgf a
June 28, 2013, the last business day of the ragtstrmost recently completed second fiscal quantas approximately $506.5 million. At February 2814, 83,837,149
shares of the registrant's common stock were qutitg.

Documents incorporated by reference

Applicable portions of the proxy statement for #@44 annual meeting of stockholders are incorpdryereference in Part Ill of this Annual Repc
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains “forward-looking statementsthin the meaning of the federal securities lawi sfatements other than statements of historaetsfcontained in
this report, including statements regarding ouurfeiresults of operations and financial positiarsibess strategy and plans and objectives of mamaggefor future operation
are forward-looking statements. In many cases,cgouidentify forward-looking statements by termstsas “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “aticipate,” “could,”
“intend,” “target,” “project,” “contemplate,” “bedive,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential” or “conture” or other similar words.

These forward-looking statements are only predistid hese statements relate to future events diutwre financial performance and involve known aménown
risks, uncertainties and other important factoed thay cause our actual results, levels of actipigrformance or achievements to materially diffem any future results,
levels of activity, performance or achievementsregped or implied by these forward-looking stateiméwe have described in the “Risk Factasttion and elsewhere in tl
report the principal risks and uncertainties thathelieve could cause actual results to differ ftbese forward-looking statements. Because ford@liing statements are
inherently subject to risks and uncertainties, sofmghich cannot be predicted or quantified, yoaudt not rely on these forward-looking statemeistgaarantees of future
events.

The forward-looking statements in this report repre our views as of the date of this report. Weegpaite that subsequent events and developmetitsanise our
views to change. However, while we may elect toatpdhese forward-looking statements at some joithie future, we have no current intention of dpgo except to the
extent required by applicable law. You should, ¢fere, not rely on these forward-looking statemestsepresenting our views as of any date subsetuére date of this
report.

PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

West Corporation (the “Company” or “West") is ad@ag provider of technology-driven, communicati@nsces. “We,” “us” and “our” also refer to Westdaits
consolidated subsidiaries, as applicable. We affieroad portfolio of services, including conferemcand collaboration, unified communications, alerd notifications,
emergency communications, business process ouisguand telephony / interconnect services. Theesaatl processing capacity of our proprietary teldgyoplatforms,
combined with our expertise in managing voice aath dransactions, enable us to provide reliabfgh-guality, mission-critical communications desigrie maximize return
on investment for our clients. Our clients incliEtune 1000 companies, along with small and medinterprises in a variety of industries, includiaecommunications,
retail, financial services, public safety, techrgyl@nd healthcare. We have sales and operatiahe idnited States, Canada, Europe, the Middle &abtAfrica, Asia-Pacific,
Latin America and South America.

Our focus on large addressable markets with aiteagrowth characteristics has allowed us to delsteady, profitable growth. Over the past ten geae have grown
our revenue at a compound annual growth rate (“CA®R10.5%. For the fiscal year ended December2Bi,3, we grew revenue by 1.8% over 2012 to $2%8#llion and
generated $704.4 million in Adjusted EBITDA, or 26 Adjusted EBITDA margin, and $143.2 million intriecome and $384.1 million in net cash flows froperating
activities. See “Management’s Discussion and AnalggFinancial Condition and Results of Operatietsquidity and Capital Resources—Adjusted EBITDASY fa
reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and AdjusteEBITDA.
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Evolution into a Predominately Platform-Based Solubns Business

Since our founding in 1986, we have invested sigaiftly to expand our technology platforms and dgyeur operational processes to meet the complex
communications needs of our clients. We have edobwg business mix from labor-intensive communaaservices to predominantly diversified and platfdased,
technology-driven voice and data services. As altesur revenue from platform-based services girem 37% of total revenue in 2005 to 73% in 2018] aur operating
income from platform-based services grew from 53%t@al operating income to 92% over the same plerio

Since 2005, we have invested approximately $2l®biln strategic acquisitions. We have increasedpenetration into higher growth international fawancing
markets, strengthened our alerts and notificatg@mgices business and established a leadershifiopasi emergency communication services. We haeeiented our busine
to address the emergence of fast-growing trends asitnified communications (“UC”), mobility andieio.

Today, our platform-based service lines includefe@ncing and collaboration, event services, almtsnotifications, Internet Protocol (“IP") basg@ solutions,
emergency communications services, automated cestsenvice platforms such as interactive voiceaasp (“IVR”), natural language speech recognitind aetwork-based
call routing service and telephony / interconnetviges. As we continue to increase the varietylafform-based services we provide, we intend tsye opportunities in
markets where we are able to leverage our techimalbgapabilities.

The following summaries further highlight the steyes have taken to improve our business:

— Developed and Enhanced Large Scale Technology Platins. Investing in technology and developing specialigggertise in the industries we serve are critical
components to our strategy of enhancing our ses\acel delivering operational excellence. Our apprately 748,000 telephony ports, including apprecadefy 445,000 IP
ports, provide us with what we believe is the dalge-scale proprietary IP-based global conferanpiatform deployed and in use today. Our opendstats-based platform
allows for the flexibility to add new capabiliti@s our clients demand. In addition, we have integranobile, social media and cloud computing cdjtisi into our platforms
and offer those services to our clients.

— Expanded Emergency Communications Services PlatfornWe have invested significant resources into ourrgerey communications services. Since 2006, we
have made several strategic acquisitions, inclutfitrgdo Inc. (“Intrado”) and Positron Public Sgf&ystems, which provided us with a leading platfon communication
services for public safety. Today, we believe wee@me of the largest providers of emergency comaatioins services to telecommunications serviceigers, government
agencies and public safety organizations, basedeonumber of 9-1-1 calls that we and other pardiots in the industry facilitate. We have steatfireased our presence in
this market through substantial investments in petary systems to develop programs designed toaaiegthe capabilities of 9-1-1 centers by delivgarbroader set of
features.

— Expanded Our Unified Communications Business SegmerThrough both organic growth and acquisitions, weehaeen successful in strengthening our Unified
Communications service offering. We have grownsales force to expand the reach of our Unified Caminations services both domestically and inteomatily. We have
developed and integrated proprietary global angel@nterprise-based services into our platform whlow for streamlined, cost-effective conferemcaapabilities. Through
several acquisitions, we have enhanced our webdtss® mobile-based event services offerings amg@sed our capabilities in IP-based solutions. Yé¢ehle to offer
system design, project management and implementttiolients with our sales engineering and intégnaservices.

We have also increased our presence in the hightlyralerts and notifications market. We providetfplam-based communication services across sevedaktries,
including healthcare, utilities, financial serviceesmmunications, transportation, government ardipsafety.

2
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Corporate Information

Our business was founded in 1986 through a predecesmpany, and West Corporation was incorporiatd®94. On October 24, 2006, we completed a
recapitalization (the “Recapitalization”) of thengpany in a transaction sponsored by an investargied by Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. and QuatEa®Bpup LLC (the
“Sponsors”). Pursuant to the Recapitalization, ageesubsidiary was merged with and into West Carfan, with West Corporation continuing as thevating corporation,
and our publicly traded securities were cancelteebichange for cash.

We financed the Recapitalization with equity cdmitions from the Sponsors and the rollover of diporof our equity interests held by Gary and Mergst, the
founders of West, and certain members of managerakemig with a senior secured term loan facilitgeaior secured revolving credit facility and thivate placement of
senior notes and senior subordinated notes.

On December 30, 2011, we completed the converdionrooutstanding Class L Common Stock into shaféSlass A Common Stock (the “Conversioat)d thereafte
the reclassification (the “Reclassificatiorgf all of our Class A Common Stock as a singlesiaisCommon Stock by filing amendments to our aneerehd restated certifice
of incorporation (the “Charter Amendments”) witletbelaware Secretary of State. Upon the effectiseiné the filing of the Charter Amendments, eadrsiof our
outstanding Class L Common Stock was converted40t@9 shares of Class A Common Stock pursuattet@bnversion, and all of the outstanding shar€dladgs A
Common Stock were reclassified as shares of Contoek pursuant to the Reclassification. Following €onversion and Reclassification, all sharesah@on Stock shai
proportionately in dividends. On March 8, 2013, seenpleted a 1-for-8 reverse stock split.

On March 27, 2013, our Registration Statement amF®-1 (File No. 333-162292) was declared effechiyeéhe Securities and Exchange Commission (theC"pEor
an initial public offering pursuant to which we retgred 24,466,250 shares of our common stockyadae $0.001 per share, with the proposed maximifiening price of
$611,656,250. Pursuant to the Registration Statemensold an aggregate of 21,275,000 shares od@mumon stock at a price to the public of $20.00gbare. The offering
commenced as of March 21, 2013 and closed on M&fcB013. The initial public offering resulted iatrproceeds to us of $398.1 million after deductingerwriting
discounts and commissions of approximately $2418amiand other estimated offering expenses of apiprately $3.0 million.

Our principal executive offices are located at 18 80racle Hills Drive, Omaha, Nebraska 68154 andtelephone number at that address is (402) 968-120r
website isvww.west.comvhere our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly &é&pon Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K alhdmendments to those reports are
available without charge, as soon as reasonabbtipable following the time they are filed with furnished to the SEC. None of the information onwabsite or any other
website identified herein is part of this reporll viebsites in this report are intended to be iivactextual references only.
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Our Services

We believe we have built our reputation as a hestiass service provider by delivering differerg@thigh-quality services for our clients. Our pait of technology-

driven, communication services includes:

Unified Communications {

Communication Sarvices

Conferencing and
Collaboration

= On-demand audio
conferencing

= Waeb conferencing and
collaboration laals

u Vidao managed services
and vidao bridging

IP-Based
UG Solutions

= Hosted |P-PBX and
enterprisa call
managemant
| m Hosted and managed
| MPLS network
|w Unifled communicalions
pariner solution partfelio
= Cloud-based security
services
® Professional services
and syslem inlegralion

Unified Communications

Event
Services

= Audio and video
webcasting servicas

= Virtual event design and
hasling

= Operator-assisted audic
conferencing services

Alerts and
MNotifications

= Aulamaled volce
nolifications

= S Siamail alerls and
nolifications

& Push nofificatons

= Mullichannel prelerance
management and
campalkgn management
solutions

& Website and cusiomer
porlal mapagamenl

Emergency
Communications

|m 8-1-1 Network services

- |Intelligant, IP enabled
advanced 8-1-1% (A311%)
senvices

— Network dalabaze
managemeant

- Location identification

= §-1-1 Telephony systems
and services

— Fulty imagrated with
network routing technology

- Integrated graphical
interface

Telephony / Interconnact
Services

® Toll-fres ongination
a Tarmination sarvice
» Tandem transpor

Automated
Call Processing

Automated cusiomer service
~ Interactive voice respanse
~ Nalural language speech
recognition salutions
Volce and data natwork
managemant services

Agent-Based
Services

Customer cara and
acquisilian services
Business-io-business
account managament
Sarvices

Aecalvables managemani
sarvices

Owverpaymant identification
and recovary services

Conferencing and Collaboration Service®perating under the InterC&ll brand, we are thgelstrconferencing services provider in the worlsiobon conferencing
revenue, according to Wainhouse Research. We mdraagroximately 148 million conference calls in 204 10% increase over 2012. We provide our clieitts an
integrated global suite of meeting services. Cafeing and Collaboration Services include the foilg:

. On-Demand Audio Conferenciiga global automated conferencing service thatallclients to initiate an audio conference attamyg, without the need to
make a reservation or rely on an opere

*«  Web Conferencing and Collaboration Toal®w clients to connect remote employees and botsillaboration among groups. These web-based prolvide
clients with the capability to make presentationd share applications and documents over the ktefinese services are offered through our prapsiet
product, InterCall Unified Meeting§ , as well asahgh the resale of Cisco, Microsoft and Adobe potsluNeb conferencing services can be customizeddb
clien's individual needs, and are integrated with oi-demand audio conferencing platfor

4



Table of Contents

Video Managed Services and Video Bridgafigw clients to experience real-time face-to-faoaferences. These services are offered througproducts,
InterCall Video Conferencing and InterCall Video Ma&ed Services in conjunction with third-party geoént, and can be used for a wide variety of eyents
including training seminars, sales presentatiorsdyct launches and financial reporting ce

Event Services InterCall offers multimedia platforms designedytee our clients the ability to create, managstriiute and reuse content internally and exteynall
Through a combination of proprietary products amdtegic partnerships, our clients have the tamsupport diverse internal and external multimedguirements. Event
Services solutions include the following:

Audio and Video Webcasting Serviallow users to broadcast small or large multimguiésentations over the Internet. We offer our ¢fi¢he flexibility of
broadcasting any combination of audio, video (dgsktr higl-end) or PowerPoint slides using any operating sys

Virtual Event Design and Hostiraffers clients consulting, project management amolémentation of hosted and managed virtual evedivvértual environment
solutions. Clients are able to provide large aucksreasy and instant access to content, experisegns. Examples of virtual events include tradewsh user
groups, job fairs, virtual learning environmentsl &own hall meetings

Operator-Assisted Audio Conferencing Serviaespre-scheduled conferences for large-scale, leanap important events. Operator-assisted sendces
customized to a client’s needs and provide a waghge of scalable features and enhancements, ingltidé ability to record, broadcast, schedule afhdiaister
meetings

IP-Based Unified Communications SolutionsWe provide our clients with enterprise class #d1 communications solutions including the folloyvservices:

Hosted IF-PBX and Enterprise Call Managemeailows an enterprise to upgrade its use of comnatioies technology with a suite of cloud-based, @mand
services including full private branch exchangeBXP) functionality, advanced enterprise and perdaad management tools and leading edge unified
communications features. These services can beifuéigrated with a client’s existing IP or legaeype-division multiplexing (“TDM”) infrastructure Wvere
required, leveraging investments already madel@pkeny infrastructure and providing a seamlessrpnise-wide solution.

Hosted and Managed Multiprotocol Label SwitchifMPLS") Network is a suite of IP trunking solutions designed tovide enterprise clients with carrier—
grade service, along with the benefits of next—gatien IP-based service that allows their business to rurerefiiciently. These solutions deliver a consister
of voice services across an enterf’s infrastructure, with flexible IP and TDM trunkimgtions for client’ on-site PBX.

Unified Communications Partner Solution Portfofinables us to engineer flexible and scalable swistsuitable to an enterprise’s needs, leveragpatolio
of Microsoft and Cisco offerings integrated withrguoducts, applications and servic

Cloud-Based Security Servicaggregate a set of technologies into one simplesaaldble cloud-based solution that provides diarith network protection.
This service can help protect the client’s netwfookn spam and viruses, unauthorized intrusionsiaappropriate web content, while providing simpiicand
consistency of security policy management and elatimg single points of failure and bottleneckg ttem occur with premi-based security solution

Professional Services and System Integraprovides our clients with advice and solutionsitiegrate their unified communications systems. \fieer o
consulting, design, integration, and implementatibroice, video, messaging, and collaborationaystand service

5
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Alerts and Notifications. Our technology platforms allow clients to finddness solutions by empowering them to manage elived automated, proactive and
personalized communications. In 2013, we delivenegt 1.4 billion notification calls and data messag/Ne use multiple delivery channels (voice, tegssaging, email, push
notifications and fax), based on the preferenddefecipient. For example, we deliver patientfreztions, confirm appointments and send presaipteminders on behalf of
our healthcare clients, send and receive autontatedje notifications on behalf of our utility clisrand transmit emergency evacuation notices oalbehmunicipalities.

Our scalable platforms enable a high volume of mgss to be sent in a short amount of time. Theyeisble two-way communication which allows thepients of a
message to respond to our clients. We offer tHeviahg Alerts and Notifications services:

Automated Voice Notificatiorare customized voice messages sent on behalf aflients, delivered with personalized informati@ur systems provide accur:
detection of voice mail versus live answer, custadicaller ID and retry logi

Short Message Service (“SMS”) / Email Alerts andifitationsare customized electronic notifications sent oralfedf our clients directly to their customers’
handheld devices, wireless phones,-way pagers or email inboxe

Push Notification«enable clients to deliver targeted, personalizedsaging to custome’ mobile devices

Multichannel Preference Management and Campaignddament Solutiorallow our clients to create and manage customerrmdtion in a real-time
environment. Our web-based user interface toohallolients to upload customer contact informatmeate reusable notification templates and cus®miz
campaigns

Website and Customer Portal Managemisrg web design service whereby we create custdip-iteractive websites for clients. We also poeva variety of
additional features and services, including hostiegrch engine optimization and maintena

Communication Services

Emergency Communications Servicéd/e believe we are one of the largest providersygrgency communications services based on the nuohi®el-1 calls that we
and other participants in the industry facilita@eir services are critical in facilitating publidsty agencies’ ability to receive emergency caitsf citizens. We offer the
following Emergency Communications Services:

9-1-1 Network Serviceare the systems that control the routing of emergealls to the appropriate Public Safety Answefaints (“PSAPs”). In 2013, we
facilitated approximately 290 million 9-1-1 calfSur next generation 9-1-1 call handling solutioars|P-based system designed to significantly impithe
information available to first responders by ingggrg capabilities such as the ability to text,dsphotos or video to 9-1-1 centers as well as giiogi stored data
such as building blueprints or personal medicad daffirst responders. Our carrier-grade Locatiasé®l Services process over 135,000 daily requestsgpport
of our client’ Enhanced -1-1 (“ES-1-1") and commercial application

9-1-1 Telephony Systems and Servicekide our fully-integrated desktop communicatioershnology solutions which public safety agencies to enable E9-1-
1 call handling. Our next generation @ -olution can be deployed in a variety of localsted and remote configurations, allowing publieseagencies to gro
with minimal incremental investment. It currentlyesates in approximately 9,500 «taking positions in approximately 1,650 PSAPs imtNé&merica.

Automated Call ProcessingWe believe we have developed a best-in-classvaatted customer service platform. Our services atlawclients to effectively
communicate with their customers through inbound an
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outbound IVR applications using natural languagsesh recognition, automated voice prompts and mé&tvased call routing services. In addition to thérsent-end customer
service applications, we also provide analysestthhg our clients improve their automated commuioes strategy. Our open standaldssed platform allows the flexibility
integrate new capabilities such as mobility, sogiabia and cloud-based services. We offer theviatig Automated Call Processing solutions:

«  Automated Customer Service Solutirange from speech/IVR applications and mobile smhstto SMS, chat and email. We help our clientgagre with their
customers through the channels they prefer. Exasrgileelf-service applications used by our clientfude: accessing account balances, activatiamesfit
cards, placing orders, answering frequently askestipns and stop/start utility servii

. Voice and Data Network Management Serviegsist our clients as they manage or update theiromntact center communications networks. We dftested or
managed services for the operation, administratimhmanagement of voice and data networks suclo@e \dver Internet Protocol (“VolP”) network
management, network automated call distribut*ACD”) / multi-channel contact routing, workforce management,iggualonitoring and predictive dialing

Telephony / Interconnect Service®ur telephony / interconnect services support teeging of traditional telecom, mobile and IP tedlogies to service providers and
enterprises. We are a leading provider of localmatébnal tandem switching services to carrieredghout the United States. We leverage our prapsietustomer traffic
information system, sophisticated call routing andtrol facility to provide tandem interconnectiggrvices to the competitive marketplace, includimgless, wire-line, cable
telephony and VolP companies. We entered this ménkeugh the acquisition of HyperCube, LLC (“Hypeibe”) in March 2012.

. Toll-Free Originationtransports and switches toll free traffic origirtht®y traditional wireline, VolP, cable, and wiredesarriers to all major inter-exchange
carriers “IXC") in the United States. This service provides a lyighlable and efficient means to pass toll fraffitrto IXCs.

. Termination Servicegsing our soft switch platform, national opticatkbone and direct network interconnections allontlie@ termination of outbound toll
traffic.

*  Tandem Transpoiswitches local voice traffic between wireless @sj competitive local exchange carri¢'CLECs"), VolP providers, and cable networl

Agent-Based ServicesWe provide our clients with large-scale, agergeuhservices. We target opportunities that allonegent-based services to be a part of larger
strategic client engagements and with clients foom these services can add value. We believe thatrerknown in the industry as a premium providehese services. We
offer a flexible model that includes on-shore, sifiere and home-based agent capabilities to fitlhemts’ needs. We offer the following Agent-Bas®ervices:

. Customer Care and Acquisition Servisegport our clients with their consumer-based comioations needs. We provide customer acquisitiahratention,
customer care, technical support and sales sen@gscustomized process strategically matchesleenmt’s goals to the appropriate solutions to maxe
results.

. Busines-to-Business Account Management Servamesbines our experience, sales methodologies ahdaégy to deliver an integrated suite of solusidimat
allow our clients to overcome a variety of commates challenges across a multitude of businessesaigirExamples of these services include lead nesmet
team sell, account management and sole territorgrage

. Receivables Management Servisupport many of today’s leading businesses andutietis with a fully licensed collection agencyatthas integrated
partnerships across the telecommunications, fi@hservices, government, healthcare and utiliiesistries

. Overpayment Identification and Recovery Servmesides cost containment programs to organizatioclading: health insurance payers, third party
administrators, managed c
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organizations, hospitals/physicians and self-indw@mpanies. We analyze data from multiple heafthsaurces, identify incorrectly paid claims, potevi
targeted communications and collect funds on bedfadtir clients

Market Opportunity

We are focused on voice and data markets. Consistdnour investment strategy, we have and wihtiaue to target new and complementary marketsl¢varage
our depth of expertise in voice and data servidésbelieve these markets, including unified comroatidns, emergency communications and alerts atifications services,
are large, have relatively predictable and steadwth, and are characterized by recurring, valusdalesactions and strong margin profiles. By legarg our global sales tes
and diversified client base, we intend to contitargeting higher growth markets.

Unified Communications

We entered the conferencing and collaboration sesvinarket with our acquisition of InterCall in 200 hrough organic growth and multiple strategiquasitions, we
have become the leading global provider of confergnservices since 2008 based on revenue, aceptaliWainhouse Research. The market for worldwitiéad
communications services, which includes hostedraadaged unified communications services and auwdib,and operator-assisted conferencing was $8i8rbih 2013 and
is expected to grow at a CAGR of 14% through 20dcbeding to Wainhouse Research.

According to Tern Systems, the market for automatedsage delivery in the U.S. was approximately$8Blion in 2013, and is expected to grow at anuai growth
rate of 21% through 2017. We believe this growthdagg driven by a number of factors, includingreased globalization of business activity, focusaaer costs, increased
adoption of unified communications services, ammignsing awareness of the need for rapid commuaicdtiring emergencies.

Communication Services

The market for emergency communications servigeesents a highly attractive opportunity, allowirgyto participate in an end-market that we belisvess volatile
with respect to downturns in the economy. Accordm@ompass Intelligence, approximately $4.3 hillaf government-sponsored funds were estimateé &vhilable for 9-
1-1 and next generation 9-1-1 applications, hardveaud systems expenditures in 2013 and such fuedsxpected to grow at a 7.0% CAGR through 2018@esthe critical
nature of these systems and services, governmentisg and other public safety organizations gizerifunding for such services to ensure dependdddigery. Further, as
communities across the U.S. upgrade outdated 8ylstems to next generation 9-1-1 platforms, weelelour suite of services is best suited to cagheelemand.

We deliver critical agent-based and automated sesvior our enterprise clients. Today, the mar&ettese services remains attractive given its aimksteady growth
characteristics. We target select opportunitiegiwithe global customer care business processungisg market, which was estimated to be approxéya59 billion in 2012
with a projected CAGR through 2016 of approxima®ds according to International Data Corporation. &is on high-value transactions that utilize specialized
knowledge and scale to drive enhanced profitabiie have built on our leading position in this k&rby investing in emerging service delivery madélat provide a higher
quality of service to our clients.

Our Competitive Strengths

We have developed expertise to serve the needgenfswho place a premium on the services we pwVe believe the following strengths have helpetb
establish a leading competitive position in the kats we serve and enable us to deliver operatexwgllence to clients.
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— Broad Portfolio of Product Offerings with Attractiv e Value Proposition.Our technology platforms combined with our opernagicexpertise and processes allow
us to provide a broad range of service offeringfa clients. Our ability to provide our clientstiva reliable, efficient and cost-effective altatime to process high volume,
complex voice and data transactions, helps thent thei critical communications needs and helpsrowp their cost structure.

— Robust Technology Capabilities Enable Scalable Opating Model. Our strengths across technology and multiple charallow us to efficiently process data and
voice transactions for our clients. We cross-giliur assets and shared service platforms acrodsisinesses, providing scale and flexibility tméli@ greater transaction
volume, offer superior service and develop newraffgs more effectively and efficiently. We fostecature of innovation and have been issued appratély 213 patents and
have approximately 302 pending patent applicatfongechnology and processes that we have develdgeccontinue to invest in new platform technolsgiecluding IP-
based cloud computing environments, as well asi@aece our portfolio with patented technologiesicwlallow us to deliver premium services to ouents.

— Strong Client Relationships.We have built long-lasting relationships with olients who operate in a broad range of industifesyuding telecommunications,
retail, financial services, public safety, techgyl@and healthcare. Our top ten clients in 2013dradverage tenure with us of over 12 years. In 2008100 largest clients
accounted for approximately 54% of our revenue aproximately 44% of our revenue came from cligntshasing multiple service offerings.

— Operational Excellence We achieve the results our clients are seekingititrancreased productivity, reliability and scalair ability to improve upon our clients’
communications processes is an important aspemrofalue proposition. We leverage our proprietaghnology infrastructure and shared servicesqgiais to manage high
value transactions and achieve cost savings focleants and ourselves.

— Experienced Management Team with Track Record of Gowth. Our senior leadership has an average tenure obrijppately 16 years with us and has delivered
strong results through various market cycles, lagth public and as a private company. As a grdigpteam has created a culture of superior clientise and, through
acquisitions and organic growth, has been ablethesge 10.5% revenue CAGR over the past ten y@arsteam has established a long track record afesstully acquiring
and integrating companies to drive growth.

As demand for outsourced services grows with gresateption of our technologies and services andjtbieal trend toward business process outsoureirdielieve ou
long history of delivering results for our cliemtsmbined with our scale and the investments we heage in our businesses provide us with a sigmficampetitive
advantage.

Our Business Strategy

Our strategy is to identify growing markets where @an deploy our existing assets and expertiseéngthen our competitive position. Our strategsupported by our
commitment to superior client service, operatiaalellence and market leadership. Key aspectsradtoategy include the following:

— Expand Relationships with Existing Clients. We are focused on deepening and expanding netdtips with our existing clients by delivering valim the form of
reduced costs, improved customer relationshipssahdnced revenue opportunities. Approximately 44%uorevenue in 2013 came from clients purchasindfiple service
offerings from us. We seek out clients with plamsdrowth and expect to participate in that groaftbng with our clients. As we demonstrate the vahae our services
provide, often starting with a single service, we fiequently able to expand the size and scopeio€lient relationships.

— Develop New Client RelationshipsWe will continue to focus on building long-termaegiit relationships across a wide range of industoiésrther diversify our
revenue base. We target clients in industries iithvive have expertise or other competitive advaegamd an ability to deliver a wide range of sohsithat have a
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meaningful impact on their business. By continuim@dd new long-term client relationships in laagel growing markets, we believe we enhance thdistamd growth
potential of our revenue base.

— Capitalize on Select Global Opportunitiesin addition to expanding and enhancing our existeligtionships domestically, we will selectivelyrpue new client
opportunities globally. Our expertise in confererycand collaboration services has allowed us teate substantial international markets. In 20885 of our consolidated
revenue was generated outside of the U.S. Giveatthective growth dynamics within Europe, Asia-iflacSouth America and Latin America, we intendiisther grow our
Unified Communications business in these regions.distribution capabilities, including approximigt815 dedicated international Unified Communicaticales personnel,
provide us with the platform to drive incremen&enue opportunities.

— Continue to Enhance Leading Technology CapabilitieaNe believe our service offerings are enhanced bysoperior technology capabilities and track reaafrd
innovation, and we will continue to target serviedwre our reliability, scale and efficiencies dealis to solve our clients’ communications issuesmhance the results of
their communications. In addition to strengthenig client relationships, we believe our focus echinology facilitates our ongoing evolution towardiversified,
predominantly platform-based and technology-drieparating model.

— Continue to Enhance Our Value Proposition Through 8lective Acquisitions.Since our founding in 1986, we have completed 3fuiitions of businesses and
technologies with a total value of approximately7illion. We will continue to expand our suiteafmmunication services across industries, geoggagnd end-markets.
While we expect this will occur through organic @th, we expect to continue to acquire assets asthbsses that strengthen our value propositiolidots and drive value 1
us. We have developed an internal capability tocgevaluate and integrate acquisitions that viieveehas created value for shareholders.

Sales and Marketing

Generally, our sales personnel target growth-ogigtietients and selectively pursue those with wharhave the greatest opportunity for long-term ss&c€heir goals
are both to maximize our current client relatiopstind expand our client base. To accomplish theaks, we attempt to sell additional services tisteng clients and to
develop new relationships. We generally pay comionssto sales professionals on both new salesramdmental revenue generated from existing clients.

Unified Communications

For Conferencing and Collaboration Services, E@avices, IP-Based UC Solutions and Alerts andfidations, we maintain a sales force of approxiry=@©0
personnel that are trained to understand and resjpoour clients’ needs.

Communication Services

We maintain approximately 62 sales and marketinggeel dedicated to our Emergency Communicati@nsi&s, approximately 53 sales and marketing pelo
dedicated to our Automated Call Processing and ABesed Services, and approximately 15 sales amkietirdg personnel dedicated to our Telephony /réaenect Services.

Competition

Unified Communications

The Conferencing and Collaboration Services maskeighly competitive. The principal competitivectars include, among others, range of service i global
capabilities, price and quality of service. Our
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principal competitors include AT&T, Verizon, PGiTBConferencing, Cisco Systems, Citrix, Microsoftiasther premise-based solution providers.

The Event Services market has advanced from tomditiaudio-centric, operator-assisted conferensalgtions to more dynamic, web-centered solutioth as
webcasting platforms with video, and interactivergistent virtual environments. As a result, thekatremains highly competitive and fragmented wighw entrants joining
as technology evolves. The principal competitivetdes of operator-assisted conferencing are rdiipbéase of use, price and global support. Coitgrstin this market
include BT Conferencing, PGi and Arkadin. The pipat competitive factors of the webcasting marketreliability, functionality, price, mobility, ctemization, ease of use
and options like self-service and multicasting. @etitors in this market include ON24, Nasdag OMetifierly Thomson Reuters), Sonic Foundry, TalkPaird cross over
into the webinar market with Adobe and WebEXx. Thagipal competitive factors of the virtual evemtsirket are ease of use, self-service, brandinggiation with other
solutions and global support. Competitors in tharket include INXPO, ON24 and 6Connex.

The IP-Based Unified Communications Solutions maike highly competitive and growing market ché&azed by a large number of traditional carrievsse
providers entering the mid-market to enterprisekatwith proprietary versions of hosted or “cloualsbd” unified communications service offeringswadl as smaller
business-size competitors who compete more aggedgsin price. The principal competitive factorslide, among others, experience in implementingdesigning
enterprise level networks, on-demand and integratsted communications and collaboration platfoamd expertise in integration of a broad varietyified
communications applications both in implementationd professional services consultation. Our pradagiempetitors in this industry at the enterpriseel include Cisco,
Microsoft, AT&T, Verizon, BT, ShoreTel and Googlerfhosted services solutions and IBM, Hewlett-PatKeerizon Business and regional integrated servandors for
professional services. We also face competitiomfatients who implement in-house solutions fromvilers like Avaya, Cisco and Shortel. The smalndium sized
business market has hundreds of regional competitith a few like XO Communications, 8x8 and Ring€al that compete on a national scale.

The Alerts and Notifications services market ishfygcompetitive and fragmented, characterized arge number of vertically focused competitors adding specific
industries, including healthcare, travel, educat@adit collection and government. The principainpetitive factors in alerts and notifications imé¢, among others, industry-
specific knowledge and service focus, reliabilggalability, ease of use and price. Competitothigmindustry include Varolii, Genesys (formerlyualBite Communications),
PhoneTree and, in the medical and dental marki¢®rihk Communications, Patient Prompt and Ses@ummunications. We also face competition fromraievho
implement in-house solutions.

Communication Services

The market for wireline and wireless emergency camications services is competitive. The principahpetitive factors in wireline and wireless emeren
communications are the effectiveness of existifiggtructure, scalability, reliability, ease of upeice, technical features, scope of product offgs, customer service and
support, ease of technical migration, useful lff@ew technology and wireless support. Competitothe incumbent local exchange carrier and cortipetiocal exchange
carrier markets generally include internally depelo solutions, competitors in the wireless marnkeluide TeleCommunications Systems and competitottsel VolP services
market include Bandwidth.com, Inc. Competitionhe public safety desktop market is driven by fesgufunctionality, ease of use, price, reliabiliipgradability, capital
replacement and upgrade policies and customercgeavid support. Competitors in this market inclGdssidian Communications and EmergiTech.

The principal competitive factors in the automatatl processing technologies market are scalapflxibility, reliability, speed of implementindient applications
and price of services. Competitors in this marketmimarily premise-based services but a grouposted providers has recently emerged.
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The principal competitive factors in the telephdmyterconnect services market include networkgrenfince, ease and breadth of interconnectionstieis pricing
and the ability to support converging technolodiE3M to IP). Competitors in this market includedfiuent and Peerless Network along with CLECs.

The agent-based services market is highly competifihe principal competitive factors in this markelude, among others, quality of service, ranfjservice
offerings, flexibility and speed of implementingstomized solutions to meet clients’ needs, capatitustry-specific experience, technological exiperand price. In the
agentbased customer services market, many clients retaltiple communication services providers, whigp@ses us to continuous competition in order toaiera preferre
vendor. Competitors in the agent-based customeicesrindustry include Convergys, TeleTech, SykES0O, GC Services, Infosys Limited and Aegis Glohdé also
compete with the in-house operations of many ofexisting and potential clients.

Our Clients

Our clients vary by business unit. We have a lamy diverse client base for our Conferencing aniéaBoration Services, ranging from small businesedortune 100
clients, and operating in a wide range of industriecluding telecommunications, retail, finandatvices, technology and healthcare. Our AlertsNuatifications business
serves a large number of clients, who generallyatpen specific industries such as medical andadenm utilities. Traditionally, our Emergency Coranications clients have
been incumbent local exchange carriers and CLEGsADtomated Call Processing and Agent-Based Selisinesses serve larger enterprise clients apgiata wide
range of industries.

Although we serve many clients, we derive a sigaifit portion of our revenue from relatively fewecits. In 2013, our 100 largest clients accounteapproximately
54% of our revenue. No client accounted for 10%nore of our revenue in 2013.

Our Personnel

As of December 31, 2013, we had approximately 3btb€al employees, of which approximately 29,900eneamployed in the Communication Services segment
(including approximately 7,300 home-based, genegalit-time employees), 4,600 were employed inthdied Communications segment and approximately were
employed in corporate support functions. Of thaltemployees, approximately 8,700 were employadanagement, staff and administrative positions,appfoximately
7,800 were international employees.

Employees of our subsidiaries in France and Gerraamyepresented by local works councils. Employe&sance and certain other countries are alsersavby the
terms of industry-specific national collective agreents. Our employees are not represented by bay daganization in the United States. We beliéaa bur relations with
our employees and the labor organizations idedt#éiieove are good.

Our Technology and Systems Development

Technology is critical to our business and we Ivelithe scale and flexibility of our platform is @ngpetitive strength. Our software and hardwareesyst as well as ot
network infrastructure, are designed to offer higlality, integrated solutions. We have made sigaift investments in reliable hardware systems @atedjiated commercially
available software when appropriate. We currenglyehapproximately 748,000 telephony ports to haodigerence calls, alerts and notifications andauer service. These
ports include approximately 445,000 IP ports, whighbelieve provide us with the only large-scaleppietary IP-based global conferencing platformloggd and in use
today. Our technological platforms are designeldatodle greater transaction volume than our congostiBecause our technology is client focused, ftenaely on
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proprietary software systems developed internallgustomize our services. As of December 31, 2@&3mployed a staff of approximately 2,500 profasais in our
information technology departments.

We recognize the importance of providing unintetedpservice for our clients. We have invested Sicgmt resources to develop, install and maintaailities and
systems that are designed to be highly reliable.f@eilities and systems are designed to maximyagesn availability and minimize the possibility@fervice disruption.

We have network operations centers that operateo@#ds a day, seven days a week and use both ihterdaxternal systems to effectively operate auigment,
people and sites. We interface directly with tefeowinications providers and have the ability to ngeneapacity in real time. Our network operationstees monitor the stat
of elements of our network on a real-time basisféxictions of our network operations centers hidngeability to be managed at backup centers.

We rely on a combination of copyright, patent, &awdrk and trade secret laws, as well as on cortfaliy procedures and non-compete agreementsstabksh and
protect our proprietary rights in each of our segteeAt December 31, 2013 we owned approximateB/i2gistered patents and approximately 226 regdteademarks
including several patents and trademarks that vi@imdd as part of our past acquisitions. Certaiouwfpatents will expire in 2014. From time to tinae may sell a portion of
our patent portfolio, when we have concluded thatlienefit of the sale outweighs the benefit toblmsiness of continuing to maintain exclusive owhar of the applicable
patents. We do not expect these patent expiratipeales to have a material adverse effect on wsinbss. Trademarks continue as long as we actissgythe mark. We have
approximately 302 pending patent applications f@rtg to technology relating to transaction proa@egscall center and agent management, data cialfeaeporting and
verification, conferencing and credit card procegsNew patents that are issued have a life ofézds/from the date the patent application is ihtided. We believe the
existence of these patents and trademarks, alathgowr ongoing processes to add additional patamdsrademarks to our portfolio, may be a baroegritry for specific
products and services we provide and may also & fos defensive purposes in certain litigation.

Our International Operations
In 2013, revenue attributed to foreign countries approximately 19% of our consolidated revenuelang-lived assets attributed to foreign countriese
approximately 9% of our total consolidated longetivassets.

In 2013, our Unified Communications segment operatg of facilities in the U.S. and approximateB/f@reign jurisdictions in North and South Ameri&jrope,
Middle East and Africa (‘EMEA”) and Asia-PacificAPAC").

In 2013, our Communication Services segment opeéfaglities in the U.S., Canada, the Philippindgxico, Australia and Jamaica.

For additional information regarding our domesticl anternational revenues, see “Management’s D&8onsand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resoft
Operations” and the Financial Statements includedwith.

Government Regulation
Privacy

We provide services to healthcare clients thaprasiders of healthcare services, are consideredéied entities” under the Health Insurance Pditalaind
Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”). As covered éties, our clients must comply with standardsgaracy, transaction and code sets, and data $gcunder HIPAA, we
are sometimes considered a “business associat&hwdguires that we protect the security and pyvaf “protected health information” provided to Iy our clients. We
have implemented HIPAA and Health
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Information Technology for Economic and Clinicalatth Act (“HITECH”) compliance training and awaresseprograms for our healthcare services employgesalso have
undertaken an ongoing process to test data seatritly relevant levels. In addition, we have rewed physical security at all healthcare operatiemers and have
implemented systems to control access to all weegka

In addition to healthcare information, our datalsasentain personal data of our customers and slienstomers, including credit card and other psasmformation.
Federal law requires protection of customer pragrienetwork information (“CPNI”) applicable to oalients. Federal and state laws in the U.S. abasehose in the
European Union require notification to consumerthaevent of a security breach in or at our systérie consumers’ personal information may haserbcompromised as a
result of the breach. We have implemented procesmsgprocedures to reduce the risk of securitydires, and have prepared plans to comply with thesgcation rules
should a breach occur.

Telecommunications

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, Intrado Inc. and certaf its affiliates (collectively, “Intrado”), arsubject to various regulations as a result ofrthimitus as a regulated
competitive local exchange carrier, and/or an eerary services provider, and/or an inter-exchangeecaincluding state utility commissions regutats and Federal
Communications Commission (the “FCC”) regulatiodsated under the Telecommunications Act of 199&msnded. Also, under the New and Emerging Teclgsd®-11
Improvement Act of 2008 (NET911 Act, P.L. 11-283,4.S.C. 609) and its attendant FCC regulations @éCket No. 08-171, Report and Order dated Octathe008),
Intrado® is required to provide access to VolP tetety providers certain 9-1-1 and Enhanced, or B9-dlements.

The market in which Intrado operates may also Bieenced by legislation, regulation, and judiciala@ministrative determinations which seek to prtereonational
broadband plan, a nationwide public safety netwoelkt generation services, and/or competition @aldelephone markets, including 9-1-1 service paraof local exchange
service, or seek to modify the Universal Servicad=(fUSF”) program.

On December 12, 2013, the FCC released a Repoedet (“9-1-1 Order”)|mproving 9-1-1 Reliability, Reliability and Contiity of Communications Networks,
Including Broadband TechnologieFCC 13-158, requiring 9-1-1 Service Providers (@f&ned in the 9-1-1 Order), among other thingserify that the 9-1k Service Provide
has audited and identified critical 9-1-1 transmoisand monitoring facilities and taken reasonaitdgs to ensure reliability. The substantive regments went into effect
February 18, 2014. An initial certification is read one year after the effective date and the fiids certification is required two years afteetkffective date. Intrado is
analyzing the applicability of the 9-1-1 Order aalivas ways to comply with the 9-1-1 Order to tieeat it is applicable. Intrado may need cooperafiom third party
providers of network services to obtain relevariad@he providers Intrado relies on may not be #&bjerovide the necessary data or may not agrpeotdde the necessary
data at a reasonable commercial rate.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary West IP Comnsatibns, Inc. (formerly known as Smoothstone IP @amications Corporation) (“WIPC”), we provide
interconnected VolP services, which are subjecettain requirements imposed by the FCC, incluelitbout limitation, obligations to provide access}-1-1, pay federal
universal service fees and protect CPNI, even thdhhg FCC has not classified interconnected VotRices as telecommunications services. The regylaemuirements
applicable to WIPC's VolIP services could changhé FCC determines the services to be telecommtimnisaservices regulated under Part Il of the Comigations Act.

Federal laws regulating the provision of traditibiedecommunications services may adversely impaciconferencing business. Our conferencing busihas
submitted forms to the Universal Service Administe& Company (“USAC”) and paid federal USF and $amfees since August 1, 2008 based on our godid fai
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interpretation of the revenue reporting requireraemtd classification of our services. To the exteat USAC or the FCC disagrees with the methodptorgclassification of
our services, InterCall may be subject to additi@aats and obligations applicable to more tradgidelecommunications service providers.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary, HyperCube, L{:ByperCube”), we act as a telecommunicationsieaand provider of switching services throughdet t
United States. HyperCube routes communicationfidriaf all other carriers, including wireless, wire, cable telephony and VolP companies. HyperCiddecom, LLC, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of HyperCube, has obtailieghses to offer telecommunications services ftbenFCC and authorization to offer facilities-based resold
telecommunications services from Public Utility Qoimsions (“PUCSs”) in 45 states and the DistricCalumbia.

The FCC exercises regulatory authority over theipgi of the tandem transit and access serviceseaffey HyperCube. On November 18, 2011, the FC&€asgld a
Report and Order and Further Notice of ProposeéiRaking, FCC Release No. 11-161 (“FCC Orddhat comprehensively reforms the system under widghlated servic
providers compensate each other for the terminationterstate, intrastate, and local traffic. THeC adopted bill-and-keep as the ultimate unifaratjonal methodology for
all terminating telecommunications traffic exchathgéth a local exchange carrier. Under bill-andiketbe rate for exchanging terminating traffic @ and terminating
carriers look to their subscribers to cover the<o$ providing termination services. The FCC Ordiernot address rate levels for tandem transitices.

The rules adopted by the FCC provide for a multinteansition to a national uniform bill-and-keearhework. Carriers were required to cap most teatitig interstate
and intrastate intercarrier compensation rate eisnes of December 29, 2011. To reduce the digdagiiveen intrastate and interstate terminatingaéfice rates, carriers
were required to bring intrastate rates, where these higher than interstate rates, to the levéitefstate rates in two steps, the first by Jylgd12, and the second by July 1,
2013. Thereafter, carriers such as HyperCube redstce their interstate and intrastate terminati@hteansport rates to bill-and-keep by July 2018.

As part of the transition of the intercarrier comgpation system to bill-and-keep, the FCC also éistedtl in the FCC Order a prospective intercag@npensation
framework for traffic exchanged over public switditelephone network facilities that originates andérminates in IP format (“VolP-PSTN traffic’)hé FCC found that
where a providers’ interconnection agreement do¢sddress the appropriate rate for such traffie default intercarrier compensation rate forallterminating and
originating VolP-PSTN traffic would be equal toénstate access rates, while the default intercazampensation rate for other VolP-PSTN traffic webloe the otherwise-
applicable reciprocal compensation rates. To cbtlee compensation for originating or terminatingl-PSTN traffic in IP traffic, a local exchangerier, or its VolP
provider partner, must perform functions functidypaquivalent to the switched access functionsasf-RolPPSTN traffic performed by local exchange carriditse FCC alsc
addressed intercarrier compensation between wérelimriers and wireless providers in the FCC Ordlerong other things, the FCC adopted bill-and-kagphe default
methodology for all non-access traffic between lese and wireline providers.

In the Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking adbptepart of the FCC Order, the FCC sought commetite appropriate transition and recovery mechaffiis the
rate elements not reduced as part of the FCC Oraguding originating access (including originaicharges for 8YY traffic) and certain common aedidated transport.
The FCC also sought comment on the appropriateybtimework for IP-to-IP interconnection. We cahpredict the timing or outcome of these proposals.

Several states, industry groups, and other teleaamwations carriers filed petitions for reconsidinawith the FCC as well as petitions for reviefittee FCC Order in
federal courts. The cases are consolidated foewebiefore the US Court of Appeals for the 10th @ircThe outcome of these petitions is unpredieaBin December 23,
2011, on its own motion, the FCC modified two aspet the FCC Order, one of which impacts inteiearrompensation. The FCC determined that interacompensation
for local traffic exchanged

15



Table of Contents

between wireline and wireless carriers pursuaantinterconnection agreement in effect as of tlopaoin date of the FCC Order became subject tdaulteill-and-keep
methodology on July 1, 2012, rather than on Decer28eg2011.

On April 25, 2012, the Commission issued a recarsitibn of the FCC Order and revised the rateltiwatl exchange carriers could recover for origimgintrastate tol
VoIP-PSTN traffic (regardless of whether the taffriginated and/or terminated in IP format). Sfeally, the FCC directed that through June 30,£Gtr intrastate toll
originating VolP-PSTN traffic, local exchange cars will be permitted to tariff default access sdfi@r such traffic equal to their then currentéastate originating switched
access rates, absent a contract setting a diffex@tOn and after July 1, 2014, local exchangeera will be permitted to tariff default accesdeas for such traffic equal to
their then current interstate originating switclaedess rates.

There are initiatives in several state legislatiodswer intrastate access rates, aligning theth imterstate rates, some of which may be affebtethe FCC Order.
Depending on whether we are a net collector ort pager of any adjusted rate, such rate adjustneentisl have a negative effect on us.

Under the Twenty-First Century Communications amded Accessibility Act (‘CVAA”) and the FCC's impiheenting rules, providers of advanced communications
services will face new requirements to make theiivises accessible to persons with disabilitie®sEhnew obligations require that providers of etetit messaging, chat,
non-interconnected VolP and “interoperable videoferencing” must make their products and servicegssible to persons with disabilities unless fitds“achievable” to do
so. The CVAA and its rules also impose stringenbrd-keeping and annual reporting obligations oraaded communications services and on telecommtionisaand VolP
services previously subject to a different diséiesi access standard. These new requirements icopéttt a variety of services we offer, and coulguiee modifications to our
services and/or increase the cost of providingcadfe services.

On November, 13, 2013, the FCC issued a ReporQaddr,In re Rural Call Completion, Report and Order andrther Notice of Proposed Rulemakirfi;C 13-135,
mandating, among other things, that providers ofidistance voice service that make the initiaptaiistance call path choice for more than 100,08@ektic retail subscriber
lines record and report certain data related tbcoahpletion. The recording and reporting requirateere effective upon approval of the data cabbechby the Office of
Management and Budget and publication of the effectate in the Federal Register. One or more oBabsidiaries may be subject to these requireméfesare evaluating
the applicability of the requirements and our &pitdo comply, including any financial impact of cphance.

Any changes to these legal requirements, incluttinge caused by the adoption of new laws and régngaor by legal challenges, could have a matedakrse effect
upon the market for our services and products. delgys in implementation of the regulatory requieats could have a material adverse effect on osinkss, financial
condition and results of operations.

Debt Collection and Credit Reporting

The receivable management business is regulatédabttie federal and state level. The Federal T@atamission (“FTC”) has the authority to investigabnsumer
complaints against debt collectors and to recomneerfidrcement actions and seek monetary penaltieddition, a new Consumer Financial ProtectioneBur(“CFPB”) was
formed as part of the recently enacted Dodd-Franérieial Reform Act. The CFPB has authority to tatgiand bring enforcement actions against varigpiss of financial
service businesses including collection agenciespide the creation of this new agency, none oétifercement authority was taken from the FTC, nmepthat these two
government agencies will have dual enforcementaaityhover the debt collection industry. We exptiet CFPB will initiate rulemaking with respect tevaregulations that
may impact the collection business. The FederalBabt Collection Practices Act (“FDCPA8&stablishes specific guidelines and proceduredititatt collectors must follow |
communicating with consumer debtors, including:

. time, place and manner of communicatic
. prohibition of harassment or abuse by debt colls¢
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. restrictions on communications with third partiesl @pecific procedures to be followed when commatitig with third parties to obtain a consumer debto
location information

. notice and disclosure requirements; .

. prohibition of unfair or misleading representatidnysdebt collectors

Our collection business is also subject to the Eaédit Reporting Act (“FCRA”"), which regulates camer credit reporting. Under the FCRA, liabilitgybe imposed
on furnishers of data to credit reporting agentiethe extent that adverse credit information regubis false or inaccurate. In addition, the TeteghConsumer Protection Act
(“TCPA"), which was originally intended to regulatee telemarketing industry, contains certain psimris that also impact the collection industry. Megnificantly, the
TCPA prohibits the use of automated dialers to @alular telephones without consent of the consweme the potential liability for violations of thprovision is substantial.
2013 several United States District Courts held tiva defendant violated the TCPA when it usedwtnraated dialing device to call a residential fihat had been converted
to a Voice over Internet Protocol (VolP) serviceused an automated dialing device to call a cadhghnumber where appropriate consent had beemebthaut the number
had since been reassigned by the carrier to ahiry without the knowledge of the caller. In diati, some United States District Courts in 201l fvalls dialed in a mode
which required an employee to launch each call ftioeir desktop could still be considered automatdts and a violation of the TCPA because the egeipt used to make
the calls had the “capacity” to act as an autontetephone dialing system. Violations of the TCR#rg a potential penalty of $500-$1,500 for eaatetia number is dialed in
violation of the TCPA through the consumer priviagdat of action.

At the state level, most states require that deléctors be licensed or registered, hold a ce#té of authority and/or be bonded. To qualifysoch a license or
registration, the debt collector may be requiredatisfy minimum capital requirements. Due in parthe 2006 Recapitalization, we and our debt ctiba subsidiary have
been required to make special arrangements wité stgulators to obtain licensure. Failure to conwath license requirements may subject the debécior to penalties
and/or fines. In addition, state licensing authesitas well as state consumer protection agenti@siny cases, have the authority to investigateatecomplaints against debt
collectors and to recommend enforcement actionssaak monetary penalties against debt collectargidtations of state or federal laws.

In addition to complying with the foregoing fedeeaid state laws, in March 2011, West's debt catbecdbperations entered into a Stipulated Orderyd&®") as part of
a settlement agreement that was negotiated witkTi@staff after a lengthy investigation. That Qroejuires us to comply with the FDCPA and the FaldErade
Commission Act, which will not require any procealuchanges; however, violations of either law woslithject the Company to a contempt action brouglthé FTC in
addition to the civil penalties available to prigditigants. Further, the Order requires that atkent employees and any new employee hired oeendixt five years be
provided with a copy of the Order and a short statet regarding their compliance obligations. Thenany is also required to maintain certain typemfafrmation and data
that is subject to audit and inspection by the BU€r periods ranging from three to six years. fynave are required to include a new disclosuralbmritten communicatior
to consumers that directs them to call a toll fiamber if they have a complaint regarding the mam®hich their account was handled.

Teleservices

Teleservices sales practices are regulated atthetfederal and state level. The TCPA, enacte®@1 lauthorized and directed the FCC to regulaediemarketing
industry. The FCC set forth rules to implementTi@PA. The TCPA cases referenced above also apmyrtteleservices and alerts and notificationsisesv These rules,
which have been amended over time, currently plasgictions on the methods and timing of telemtankesales calls as well as certain calling prastiatilized in the
accounts receivable management business, including:

. restrictions on calls placed by automatic dialing announcing device
. limitations on the use of predictive dialers fotlmund calls
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institution of a Nationa"Do-Not-Call” Registry in conjunction with the FT(

guidelines on maintaining an interr*Do-Not-Call” list and honorin¢ Do-Not-Call” requests
restricts the use of prerecorded message telemagkezlls/text message

requirements for transmitting caller identificatimiormation; anc

restrictions on facsimile advertisir

The Federal Telemarketing Consumer Fraud and ABasef 1994 authorized the FTC to issue regulatidesigned to prevent deceptive and abusive telestingkacts
and practices. The FTC’s Telemarketing Sales RTIBR") became effective in January 1996 and has laeeended over time. The TSR applies to most ouithou
telemarketing calls to consumers and portions nfesmbound telemarketing calls. The TSR generally:

prohibits a variety of deceptive, unfair or abugractices in telemarketing sali

subjects a portion of inbound calls to additionattbsure requirement

prohibits the disclosure or receipt, for consideratof unencrypted consumer account numbers felinugelemarketing

mandates additional disclosure statements rel&iegrtain products or services, and certain tyfiedfers, especially those involving negative optfeatures

establishes additional authorization requiremenmtpéyment methods that do not have consumer gimteacomparable to those available under the Elpitt
Funds Transfer Act or the Truth in Lending Actfartelemarketing transactions involving -acquired account information and 1-to-pay conversion offer:

institutes a Nation¢* Do-Not-Call” Registry;

provides guidelines on maintaining an inter*Do-Not-Call” list and honorin¢* Do-Not-Call’ requests
limits the use of predictive dialers for outbouradls; and

restricts the use of p-recorded message telemarketing ci

In 2012, the FCC modified its TCPA rules in seveesipects. The new requirements include new oliigeto obtain express written consent to use ptiedidialers o
pre-recorded messages for outbound telemarketitsy sikengthened call abandonment measurementarantligation to provide “opt-out” options on oatind pre-recorded
messages. These new requirements were phasedrid@h& and are now in effect.

In addition to the federal regulations, there amnarous state statutes and regulations governiegnéeketing activities. These include restrictiomsthe methods and
timing of telemarketing calls as well as disclosurequired to be made during telemarketing caksiadividual state “Do-Not-Call” registries. Som@tes also require that
telemarketers register in the state before conagi¢élemarketing business in the state. Such ragjmh can be time consuming and costly. Many stag/e an exemption for
companies which have securities that are listed pational securities exchange. In addition, emgdaywho are involved in certain industry-speciéites activity, such as
activity regarding insurance or mortgage loansregeired to be licensed by various state commiss regulatory bodies and to comply with regolagi enacted by those

bodies.

The industries that we serve are also subjectryingdegrees of government regulation, includimgd and regulations, relating to contracting with government and
data security. We are subject to some of the lawlsragulations associated with government contig@s a result of our contracts with our clients also as a result of
contracting directly with the U.S. government arsdaigencies.
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With respect to marketing scripts, we rely on digrds and their advisors to develop the scriptsgased by us in making consumer solicitationbeimalf of our
clients. We generally require our clients to indésnos against claims and expenses arising withaesto the scripts and products which they protides.

We specifically train our marketing representatit@fandle calls in an approved manner. While wbe we are in compliance in all material respedth all federal
and state telemarketing regulations, complianch alitsuch requirements is costly and time-consgmiim addition, notwithstanding our compliance efpany failure on our
part to comply with the registration and other lagguirements applicable to companies engageelémiarketing activities could have an adverse efiaour business. We
could become subject to litigation by private pestand governmental bodies, alleging a violatioapgficable laws or regulations, which could regullamages, regulatory
fines, penalties and possible other relief undehdaws and regulations and the accompanying emstsincertainties of such litigation and enforcenaetions.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS
We may not be able to compete successfully in aghly competitive industries, which could adverselffect our business, results of operations anddircial condition.

We face significant competition in many of the metekin which we do business and expect that thigpetition will intensify. The principal competitifactors in our
business are range of service offerings, globahls#iies and price and quality of services. Iniéidd, we believe there has been an industry ttendove agent-based
operations toward offshore sites. This movementdcmsult in excess capacity in the United Statgsere most of our current capacity exists. Thedremward international
expansion by foreign and domestic competitors amdicuous technological changes may erode profitsringing new competitors into our markets ancugag prices. Our
competitors’ products, services and pricing pragi@as well as the timing and circumstances oéfie of additional competitors into our markewsuld adversely affect our
business, results of operations and financial dardi

Our Unified Communications segment faces technoldgidvances, which have contributed to pricingguees and could result in the loss of customatiogiships.
Competition in the web and video conferencing sawiarenas continues to increase as new venderstieatmarketplace and offer a broader range decencing solutions
through new technologies, including, without linikea, VVoIP, on-premise solutions, PBX solutionsifi@a communications solutions and equipment anubkat solutions.

Our Communication Services segment’s agent-basgidérs and growth depend in large part on UnitateStbusinesses automating and outsourcing callihgn
activities. Such automation and outsourcing maycoeotinue, or may continue at a slower pace, aarozgtions may elect to perform these services $eéras. In addition,
our Communication Services segment faces risks feminological advances that we may not be abdeicoessfully address. We compete with third-pastiection agencies,
other financial services companies and credit patgirs. Some of these companies have substargraliter personnel and financial resources thanavéndaddition,
companies with greater financial resources thamawe may elect in the future to enter the consutebt collection business.

There are services in both of our business segntesitsire experiencing pricing declines. We relyaarombination of an internal sales effort anddtipiarty
relationships to market our services. If we areblméo offset pricing declines through increaseshsaction volume and greater efficiency due tdlaréaof our sales efforts or
otherwise, our business, results of operationsfiaaticial condition could be adversely affected.
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We depend on third parties for certain services previde and increases in the cost of voice and dsgavices or significant interruptions in these séres could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and fir@al condition.

We depend on voice and data services provided bigustelecommunications providers. Because ofdbjfgendence, any change to the telecommunicatiarisetrtha:
would disrupt these services or limit our abilitydbtain services at favorable rates could adweedéct our business, results of operations amahial condition. While we
have entered into long-term contracts with mangwftelecommunications providers, there is no @lian for these vendors to renew their contracth ws or to offer the
same or lower rates in the future. In additionséheontracts are subject to termination or modificafor various reasons outside of our control.

An adverse change in the pricing of voice and dataices that we are unable to recover througle pnicreases of our services, or any significarrimption in voice ¢
data services, could adversely affect our busirressits of operations and financial conditionatfdition, if the providers of telecommunication Bawtages it may have a
material client impact. We may not have the contraloright to be indemnified for all harm causedanyoutage of our carriers and we may not be ahfedve the traffic to
alternative carriers.

Our business depends on our ability to keep pacthwur clients’ needs for rapid technological chasgand systems availability.

Technology is a critical component of our busin&¥s.have invested in sophisticated and specialipagputer and telephone technology and we anticipatsit will be
necessary for us to continue to select, inveshthdevelop new and enhanced technology on a tibesdis in the future in order to remain competit®er future success
depends in part on our ability to continue to depekchnology solutions that keep pace with evgivirdustry standards and changing client demamtisaduction of new
methods and technologies brings corresponding asksciated with effecting change to a complexatpeg environment and, in the case of adding thardy services, results
in a dependency on an outside technology providih respect to third party technology we use topsrt our services, some of which is provided by@mpetitors, the
failure of such technology or the third party bedamgrunable or unwilling to continue to provide tieehnology could interfere with our ability to sf$i customer demands and
may require us to make investments in a replaceteehnology, which could adversely affect our bass) financial condition and results of operations.

Growth in our IP-Based UC Solutions and Emergencp@munications businesses depends in large part ontmued deployment and adoption of emerging teclowes.

Growth in our IP-based UC Solutions business amchext generation 9-1-1 solution offering is lasgdependent on customer acceptance of communisasienvices
over IP-based networks, which is still in its eastgges. Continued growth depends on a numbectfriaoutside of our control. Customers may detigption and
deployment of IP-based UC Solutions for severadaaa, including available capacity on legacy nekspinternal commitment to in-house solutions anstemer attitudes
regarding security, reliability and portability ibf-based solutions. In the Emergency Communicatiusiness, adoption may be hindered by, among &htars, continued
reliance by customers on legacy systems, the cotitylef implementing new systems and budgetary taimgs. If customers do not deploy and adopt IBeldanetwork
solutions at the rates we expect, for these omatsons, our business, results of operationgiaacial condition could be adversely affected.

A large portion of our revenue is generated fronmlimited number of clients, and the loss of one oome key clients would result in the loss of reven

Our 100 largest clients by revenue accounted fprapmately 54% of our total revenue for the yeaded December 31, 2013. If we fail to retain a iicent amount
of business from any of our significant clientsr business, results of operations and financiatitamm could be adversely affected.
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We serve clients and industries that have expegkacsignificant level of consolidation in receatys. Additional consolidation could occur in whialr clients could
be acquired by companies that do not use our svihe loss of any significant client would resuléa decrease in our revenue and could adverffelgtaur business, resu
of operations and financial condition.

Security and privacy breaches of the systems wetag@otect personal data could adversely affect business, results of operations and financial dition.

Our databases contain personal data of our clieattbomers, including credit card and healthcdi@ination. Any security or privacy breach of thelsg¢abases,
whether from human error or fraud or malice onghe of employees or third parties or accidentethiécal failure, could expose us to liability, irase our expenses relating
to the resolution of these breaches and deterlmmte from selecting our services. Certain of dient contracts do not contractually limit ourdiity for the loss of
confidential information. Migration of our emerggnmommunications business to IP-based communicatimeases this risk. Our data security procedo@g not effectively
counter evolving security risks, address the sgcarid privacy concerns of existing or potentigmis or be compliant with federal, state, and lliteas and regulations in all
respects. For our international operations, wephtigated to implement processes and proceduresnply with local data privacy regulations. Anylimes in our security ar
privacy measures could adversely affect our busijrfesancial condition and results of operations.

Growth in our IP-Based UC Solutions and other newrsices may provide alternatives to our servicedalircould adversely affect our business, resultsoperations and
financial condition.

Our IP-Based UC Solutions and other new servicdseaimancements to existing services may compekeowit current conferencing and collaboration sewic
Continued growth in such emerging technologies neaylt in the availability of feature rich alterivass to our existing services with a more attrativicing model. These
developments could reduce the attractiveness tomess of our existing product offerings and redtmeprice which we can receive from customers wagpect to such
services, which could adversely affect our businessults of operations and financial condition.

Global economic conditions could adversely affear @usiness, results of operations and financialratition, primarily through disrupting our clients’businesses.

Uncertain and changing global economic conditiamduding disruption of financial markets, couldvadsely affect our business, results of operatasfinancial
condition, primarily through disruptions of ourettits’ businesses. Higher rates of unemploymentamelr levels of business generally adversely affieetlevel of demand for
certain of our services. In addition, continuat@nwvorsening of general market conditions in thététhStates, Europe or other markets importantutdasinesses may
adversely affect our clients’ level of spendingiligbto obtain financing for purchases and abilitymake timely payments to us for our services¢ctvieould require us to
increase our allowance for doubtful accounts, riegigtimpact our days sales outstanding and adieedtect our results of operations.

Our contracts generally are not exclusive and tyaliy do not provide for revenue commitments.

Contracts for many of our services generally enableclients to unilaterally terminate the contracteduce transaction volumes upon written nadioé without
penalty, in many cases based on our failure tanattrtain service performance levels. The ternthe$e contracts are often also subject to rersgwtiat any time. In
addition, most of our contracts are not exclusive do not ensure that we will generate a minimuwellef revenue. Many of our clients also retain tiple service providers
with whom we must compete. As a result, the prbfiity of each client program may fluctuate, somrets significantly, throughout the various stagea pfogram.
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Pending and future litigation may divert managem¢s time and attention and result in substantial cesif defense, damages or settlement, which couldeasely affect oL
business, results of operations and financial cotidn.

We face uncertainties related to pending and piaditigation. We may not ultimately prevail orlarwise be able to satisfactorily resolve thigiéition. In addition,
other material suits by individuals or certifieds$es, claims, or investigations relating to owirtess may arise in the future. Furthermore, wegdly indemnify our clients
against third-party claims asserting intellectualgerty violations and data security breaches, whiay result in litigation. Regardless of the onteoof any of these lawsuits
or any future actions, claims or investigationstialy to the same or any other subject matter, @& imcur substantial defense costs and these aatiay cause a diversion of
management’s time and attention. Also, we may haired to alter our business practices or pay smiisf damages or settlement costs as a resuiesétproceedings, which
could adversely affect our business, results ofatmns and financial condition. Finally, certaiitloe outcomes of such litigation may directly atfeur business model, and
thus our profitability.

Our technology and services may infringe upon thedllectual property rights of others. Intellectugdroperty infringement claims would be time-consumiand expensive
to defend and may result in limitations on our attyl to use the intellectual property subject to #eeclaims.

Third parties have asserted in the past and maytadaims against us in the future alleging thatage violating or infringing upon their intelleafuproperty rights. An
claims and any resulting litigation could subjestta significant liability for damages. An advedsermination in any litigation of this type coukhuire us to design around a
third party’s patent, license alternative technglé@m another party or reduce or modify our pradamd service offerings. In addition, litigationtisie-consuming and
expensive to defend and could result in the dieersif our time and resources. Any claims from tigadties may also result in limitations on our ipiio use the intellectual
property subject to these claims.

We are subject to extensive regulation, which colitdit or restrict our activities and impose finatal requirements or limitations on the conduct ofio business.

The United States Congress, the FCC, and the stateforeign jurisdictions where we provide sersibave promulgated and enacted rules and lawgdivatrn
personal privacy, the provision of telecommunicaervices, telephone solicitations, the collectbnonsumer debt, the provision of emergency comoation services and
data privacy. As a result, we may be subject teg@edings alleging violation of these rules and lawthe future. Additional rules and laws may regelthe pricing for our
offerings or require us to modify our operationservice offerings in order to meet our clientsvéee requirements effectively, and these regutetimay limit our activities
or significantly increase the cost of regulatorynpiiance.

There are numerous state statutes and regulatawesrgng telemarketing activities that do or maplggo us. For example, some states place resmiston the
methods and timing of telemarketing calls and negthiat certain mandatory disclosures be made gitiie course of a telemarketing call. Some stdsesraquire that
telemarketers register in the state before condgtélemarketing business in the state. Such ragjm can be time-consuming and costly. Compliamitk all federal and
state telemarketing regulations is costly and tooesuming. In addition, notwithstanding our comptia efforts, any failure on our part to comply wttle registration and
other legal requirements applicable to companigaged in telemarketing activities could have areaslyimpact on our business. We could become dubjétigation by
private parties and governmental bodies allegimplation of applicable laws or regulations, whimbuld result in damages, regulatory fines, persbied possible other relief
under such laws and regulations and the accompaguogists and uncertainties of such litigation anfdreement actions.

Federal and state consumer protection, privacyrelated laws and regulations extensively regulagerélationship between debt collectors and debkaderal and
state laws may limit our ability to recover on @lients’ consumer receivables regardless of anpaomission on our part. In addition, in March 20tve
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entered into a Stipulated Order as part of a se#ie agreement with the FTC that imposes duties wgdeyond those of current federal and state. [Barsexample, for a
period of five years from the date of entry of @wler, we must include a special disclosure omatten communications sent to consumers in conmeatith the collection
of debts. The disclosure advises the consumerrtdingights they have under the FDCPA, provid@hane number and address at West to which the omrsean direct a
complaint, and also provides contact informationtf@ FTC if the consumer wishes to file a comglaiith the Commission. In addition, for a periodfivke years, we must
provide a special notice to all employees thatselvihem of certain requirements under the FDCEBWdmg notice that individual collectors can teblie for violations of the
FDCPA. Each employee must sign an acknowledgerhahhe or she has received and read the noticevamdust maintain copies of the acknowledgementetify our
compliance. Additional consumer protection and geivprotection laws may be enacted that would ireaklitional or more stringent requirements oretifercement of an
collection on consumer receivables. In additiodefal and state governments are considering, agccoresider in the future, other legislative progsshat would further
regulate the collection of consumer receivable® fEtently created CFPB has broad regulatory atyhmrer consumer protection issues pertainingrtarfcial products and
services in the United States. The primary focuhefCFPB is on banks, but it also has authorigr eon-bank servicing agencies such as debt calfecompanies. The
CFPB has the authority to conduct compliance exatiuns of any company within its jurisdiction anayrbring enforcement actions when necessary taemfmnsumer
protection statutes. The CFPB is also authorizgatdmulgate regulations under consumer protectiatutes that may impact the Company. Any failuredmply with any
current or future laws applicable to us could limit ability to collect on our clients’ charged-afinsumer receivable portfolios, which could adesraffect our business,
results of operations and financial condition.

In addition, the FCC recently adopted rules regshe manner in which regulated service providersmensate each other for the termination of iraéesintrastate,
and local traffic, as well as intercarrier compeimsabetween wireline carriers and wireless proksd@he rules adopted by the FCC provide for a inyelar transition to a
national uniform terminating charge of zero, whistfknown as “bill-and-keep”. Carriers were requitecap all current rate elements as of Decembg2@B1 and to begin
reducing their termination and transport ratesnnueal steps, culminating with a bill-and-keep syst®y July 2018. In a Further Notice, the FCC issidering changes to rates
charged for origination of toll-free traffic, whidk a major type of traffic carried by West's sutiairy, HyperCube. These rules are currently belrajlenged by several states,
industry groups and telecommunications carrierd,thare are other initiatives by state regulatoraddress, and possibly reduce, intrastate acatess ke are unable to
predict the outcome of these rulemaking efforts] amy resulting regulations could limit our abilttydetermine how we charge for our services ane laa adverse effect on
our profitability.

We may not be able to adequately protect our prefaiy information or technology.

Our success depends in part upon our proprietéoynration and technology. We rely on a combinatéeopyright, patent, trademark and trade secres,|as well as
on confidentiality procedures and non-compete agesgs, to establish and protect our proprietarytsign each of our businesses. Third parties maiinge or misappropriate
our patents, trademarks, trade names, trade setretiser intellectual property rights, which coaldversely affect our business, results of oparatamd financial condition,
and litigation may be necessary to enforce outletial property rights, protect our trade sececetdetermine the validity and scope of the prdprierights of others. The
steps we have taken to deter misappropriation opoprietary information and technology or clielata may be insufficient to protect us, and we f@aynable to prevent
infringement of our intellectual property rightsmisappropriation of our proprietary informatiommAinfringement or misappropriation could harm @oeynpetitive advantage
we currently derive or may derive from our propaigtrights. In addition, because we operate in nfarsign jurisdictions, we may not be able to pevteur intellectual
property in the foreign jurisdictions in which wpevate.

23



Table of Contents

Our data and operation centers are exposed to serwnterruption, which could adversely affect outsiness, results of operations and financial coridit.

Our outsourcing operations depend on our abilitgriiiect our data and operation centers againsadarthat may be caused by fire, natural disagiarsjemics, powe
failure, telecommunications failures, computer sés, Trojan horses, other malware, failures ofsofitware, acts of sabotage or terrorism, riots@her emergencies. In
addition, for some of our services, we are dependemutside vendors and suppliers who may be aitpiaffected. In the past, natural disasters sichurricanes have cau:
significant employee dislocation and turnover ia #reas impacted. If we experience temporary angeent employee dislocation or interruption at onmore of our data or
operation centers through casualty, operating matfan, data loss, system failure or other evemésmay be unable to provide the services we argainally obligated to
deliver. As a result, we may experience a redudtiaevenue or be required to pay contractual danag some clients or allow some clients to terieilma renegotiate their
contracts. Failure of our infrastructure due todhkeurrence of a single event may have a disprigpately large impact on our business results. itsrruptions of this type
could result in a prolonged interruption in ourlipito provide our services to our clients, and business interruption and property insurance nayadequately compensate
us for any losses we may incur. These interruptoandd adversely affect our business, results efajions and financial condition. While we maintaisurance coverage that
may, subject to policy terms and conditions inahgdsignificant self-insured deductibles, cover @@rispects of cyber risks, such insurance coveraebe insufficient to
cover all losses.

Our future success depends on our ability to ret&i@y personnel. Our inability to continue to attraand retain a sufficient number of qualified empyees could adversely
affect our business, results of operations and fir@al condition.

Our future success depends on the experience amidigiog efforts and abilities of our managementeand on the management teams of our operatirgidéaities.
The loss of the services of one or more of thegeekeployees could adversely affect our businessilteof operations and financial condition. A kprtion of our
operations also require specially trained employEesm time to time, we must recruit and train dfied personnel at an accelerated rate in ordé&e&p pace with our clients’
demands and our resulting need for specially ttheraployees. If we are unable to continue to liggn and retain a sufficient labor force of qualif employees, our busine
results of operations and financial condition cdoddadversely affected.

Increases in labor costs as a result of state arddral laws and regulations, market conditions arnover rates could adversely affect our businesssults of operation:
and financial condition.

Portions of our Communication Services segment&ntased services are very labor intensive andréice high personnel turnover. Significant insesain the
employee turnover rate could increase recruitingjtasining costs and decrease operating effectsgeanad productivity. In addition, increases in latyor costs, costs of
employee benefits or employment taxes could adiyeestect our business, results of operations amanicial condition. In particular, the implementatiof the Patient
Protection and Affordable Care Act and the amendsiérereto contain provisions relating to mandatoigimum health insurance coverage for employedstwtould
materially impact our future healthcare costs far predominantly United States-based workforce. [gvitie legislation’s ultimate impact is not yet kg it is possible that
these changes could significantly increase our @msation costs. In addition, many of our employaeshired on a part-time basis, and a significantign of our costs
consists of wages to hourly workers. From timertet federal and state governments consider legisléo increase the minimum wage rate in theipeesive jurisdictions.
Increases in the minimum wage or labor regulatimua increase our labor costs.
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Because we have operations in countries outsidéhef United States, we may be subject to politieaionomic and other conditions affecting these coties$ that could
result in increased operating expenses and reguati

We operate or rely upon businesses in numerougmesioutside the United States. We may expantiéutinto additional countries and regions. Theeeraks
inherent in conducting business internationallg/uding the following:

. difficulties in staffing and managing internatiorgerations

. accounting (including managing internal control ofreancial reporting in our non-U.S. subsidiariga)x and legal complexities arising from internasl
operations

. burdensome regulatory requirements and unexpebtupes in these requirements, including data pfotegequirements

. data privacy laws that may apply to the transmissibour client’ and employe¢ data to the United State

. localization of our services, including translatiato foreign languages and associated expe

. longer accounts receivable payment cycles andatmtedifficulties;

. political and economic instability

. fluctuations in currency exchange rat

. potential difficulties in transferring funds gene@ overseas to the United States in a tax efficreanner:

. seasonal reductions in business activity duringsthemer months in Europe and other parts of thédw

. differences between the rules and procedures agsdavith handling emergency communications indthéed States and those related to IP emergency

communications originated outside of the Unitedeé3taanc
. potentially adverse tax consequent

If we cannot manage our international operatiomsassfully, our business, results of operationsfamashcial condition could be adversely affected.

Changes in foreign exchange rates may adverselgeiffour revenue and net income attributed to foneigubsidiaries.

We conduct business in countries outside of theddritates. Revenue and expense from our foreigratipns are typically denominated in local currescthereby
creating exposure to changes in exchange rategnRevand profit generated by our international afpems will increase or decrease compared to peoiods as a result of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates. Adwdrarges to foreign exchange rates could decrbasatue of revenue we receive from our internai@perations and
have a material adverse impact on our businessei@ky) we do not attempt to hedge our foreign ency transactions.

Our failure to repatriate cash from our foreign sudidiaries, or the costs incurred to do so, couldrfreour liquidity.

As of December 31, 2013, the amount of cash antd egsivalents held by our foreign subsidiaries 3.2 million. From time to time we may seek toaeate funds
held by these subsidiaries, and our ability to digtw cash from foreign subsidiaries will dependruiee results of operations of these subsidiarnesnaay be subject to legal,
contractual or other restrictions and other busireesisiderations. Our foreign subsidiaries
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may enter into financing arrangements that liméitiability to make loans or other payments to fpagments of our debt. In addition, dividend anériest payments to us
from our foreign subsidiaries may be subject teigm withholding taxes, which could reduce the ami@f funds we receive from our foreign subsidiariBividends and oth
distributions from our foreign subsidiaries mayoate subject to fluctuations in currency exchareges and legal and other restrictions on repatriativhich could further
reduce the amount of funds we receive from ourigoreubsidiaries.

In general, when an entity in a foreign jurisdicti@patriates cash to the United States, the anafusich cash is treated as a dividend taxableratiot U.S. tax rates.
Accordingly, upon the distribution of cash to usnfr our foreign subsidiaries, we will be subjectt&. income taxes. Although foreign tax credits rhayavailable to reduce
the amount of the additional tax liability, thesedits may be limited based on our tax attribuiémrefore, to the extent that we use cash geneirafedeign jurisdictions,
there may be a cost associated with repatriatis tathe United States or other limitations thatld adversely affect our liquidity.

If we are unable to complete future acquisitions ibrwe incur unanticipated acquisition liabilitiespur business strategy and earnings may be negaiaéfected.

Our ability to identify and take advantage of aitige acquisitions or other business developmepbdpnities is an important component in implemegiur overall
business strategy. We may be unable to identifgrfte or complete acquisitions or to do so ataiuavaluations.

In addition, we incur significant transaction coatsociated with our acquisitions, including suttsthfees for attorneys, accountants and otheisads. Any
acquisition could result in our assumption of unknand/or unexpected, and perhaps material, ltesliAdditionally, in any acquisition agreemehg hegotiated
representations, warranties and agreements oktliegsparties may not entirely protect us, andilities resulting from any breaches could exceegdatiated indemnity
limitations. These factors could impair our growtid ability to compete; divert resources from ofhatentially more profitable areas; or otherwisessaa material adverse
effect on our business, financial position and Itesaf operations.

If we are unable to integrate or achieve the objees of our acquisitions, our overall business msuyffer.

Our business strategy depends on successfullyratieg the assets, operations and corporate furebbbusinesses we have acquired and any addibosamesses we
may acquire in the future. The acquisition of aiddial businesses involves integration risks, initigd

. the diversion of managem¢s time and attention away from operating our bissirte acquisition and integration challenc
. the unanticipated loss of key employees of the iaeduibusinesse:
. the potential need to implement or remediate ctsitpyocedures and policies appropriate for a lacgenpany at businesses that, prior to the acénsilacked

these controls, procedures and polic

. the need to integrate accounting, information mansnt, human resources, contract and intellectoglgoty management and other administrative systems
each business to permit effective management

. our entry into markets or geographic areas wherenas have limited or no experient

We may be unable to effectively or efficiently igtate businesses we have acquired or may acquine future without encountering the difficultiessdribed above.
Failure to integrate these businesses effectivelydcadversely affect our business, results of a@rs and financial condition.
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In addition to this integration risk, our businesults of operations and financial condition doog¢ adversely affected if we are unable to achlegglanned
objectives of an acquisition including cost saviags synergies. The inability to achieve our plahaljectives could result from:

. the financial underperformance of these acquissti

. the loss of key clients of the acquired busine$sclvmay drive financial underperforman:

. the loss of key personnel at the acquired compamg

. the occurrence of unanticipated liabilities or @ogéncies for which we are unable to receive indéoation from the prior owner of the busine

Potential future impairments of our substantial gdwill, intangible assets, or other loi-lived assets could adversely affect our businessults of operations and financial
condition.

As of December 31, 2013, we had goodwill and initalegassets, net of accumulated amortization, pf@pgmately $1.8 billion and $231.4 million, resgigely.
Management is required to exercise significant joegt in identifying and assessing whether impaitnaticators exist, or if events or changes inwinstances have
occurred, including market conditions, operatingufts, competition and general economic conditi@ee “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of FirrCondition and
Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policie§eodwill and Intangible Assets.” Any changes in kegumptions about the business units and thesppots or changes
in market conditions or other externalities cowddult in an impairment charge, and such a chargkl ¢ve an adverse effect on our business, resfuttgerations and
financial condition.

We may not be able to generate sufficient casheovie all of our indebtedness and fund our othéguidity needs, and we may be forced to take otaetions, which may
not be successful, to satisfy our obligations undem indebtedness.

At December 31, 2013, our aggregate long-term itatiiess, including the current portion, was $3324illion. In 2013, our consolidated interest experthe call
premium on the subordinated debt call premium amelarated amortization of deferred financing cesis approximately $256.0 million. Our ability take scheduled
payments or to refinance our debt obligations anfdnd our other liquidity needs depends on ouarditial and operating performance, which is sulijpprevailing economic
and competitive conditions and to certain finandiaisiness and other factors beyond our controlce¥mot make assurances that we will maintain @l lefvcash flows from
operating activities sufficient to permit us to ghg principal, premium, if any, and interest om imdebtedness and to fund our other liquidity reeed

If our cash flows and capital resources are ineigffit to fund our debt service obligations andutedf our other liquidity needs, we may be forcedetuce or delay
capital expenditures or declared dividends, ssktsor operations, seek additional capital oruesire or refinance our indebtedness. We cannkeraasurances that we
would be able to take any of these actions, thegdlactions would be successful and permit us & e scheduled debt service obligations or thedé¢ actions would be
permitted under the terms of our existing or futdedt agreements, including our senior securedtdeadlities or the indentures that govern ourstanhding notes. Our senior
secured credit facilities documentation and theintdres that govern the notes restrict our altiitglispose of assets and use the proceeds frodighesition. As a result, we
may not be able to consummate those dispositions®the proceeds to meet our debt service or otiigrations, and any proceeds that are availalalg mot be adequate to
meet any debt service or other obligations then due

If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debtyill be in default of such debt and, as a result:
. our debt holders could declare all outstandinggipa and interest to be due and paya
. our debt holders under other debt subject to alessult provisions could declare all outstandinggipal and interest on such other debt to be duepayable
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. the lenders under our senior secured credit fadlitould terminate their commitments to lend usi@ycand foreclose against the assets securingooroviings;
and
. we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidati

Our current or future indebtedness could impair otinancial condition and reduce the funds availabte us for other purposes, including dividend payntg, and our
failure to comply with the covenants contained imosenior secured credit facilities documentation the indentures that govern our outstanding notesuld result in an
event of default that could adversely affect oustdts of operations.

Our current or future indebtedness could advera#ct our business, results of operations or farrcondition, including the following:

. our ability to obtain additional financing in thetfire for working capital, capital expendituresjaisitions, product development, general corpopatposes,
refinancing of our existing obligations or otherposes may be impaire

. a significant portion of our cash flow from opeaaits may be dedicated to the payment of interespandipal on our indebtedness, which will reduee funds
available to us for our operations, capital expemds, future business opportunities or other psepj

. the debt service requirements of our other indetsssl could make it more difficult for us to satisfyr financial obligations

. because we may be more leveraged than some obmpatitors, our debt may place us at a competitisadvantage

. our leverage will increase our vulnerability to romic downturns and limit our ability to withstaadverse events in our business by limiting ourrfaial
alternatives

. our ability to capitalize on significant busineggportunities and to plan for, or respond to, contipet and changes in our business may be limited;

. limit our ability to declare or pay dividenc

Our debt agreements contain, and any agreemerg§inance our debt likely will contain, financiat@restrictive covenants that limit our abilityitwur additional
debt, including to finance future operations orestbapital needs, and to engage in other activitiaswe may believe are in our lotgrm best interests, including to dispos
or acquire assets. Our failure to comply with themeenants may result in an event of default, whifchot cured or waived, could accelerate the mgtof our indebtedness
result in modifications to our credit terms. If dndebtedness is accelerated, we may not havemufficash resources to satisfy our debt obligatanmd we may not be able to
continue our operations as planned.

We had a negative net worth as of December 31, 20@t8ch may make it more difficult and costly forsuo obtain financing in the future and may othersé negatively
impact our business.

As of December 31, 2013, we had a negative netwafr$740.2 million. Our negative net worth priniamesulted from the incurrence of indebtednesin@nce our
Recapitalization in 2006. As a result of our negatiet worth, we may face greater difficulty ang@xse in obtaining future financing than we wowldef if we had a greater
net worth, which may limit our ability to meet oueeds for liquidity or otherwise compete effectyiel the marketplace.
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Despite our current indebtedness levels and thenesve covenants set forth in agreements govemiour indebtedness, we and our subsidiaries may isttur significant
additional indebtedness, including secured indebteds. Incurring additional indebtedness could inase the risks associated with our substantial intkiness.

Subject to the restrictions in our debt agreememtsand certain of our subsidiaries may incur $igant additional indebtedness, including additiosecured
indebtedness. Although the terms of our debt agee¢sicontain restrictions on the incurrence of mittl indebtedness, these restrictions are sutjexihumber of
qualifications and exceptions, and additional iriddhess incurred in compliance with these restristicould be significant. At December 31, 2013 aurile terms of our de
agreements, we would be permitted to incur up f@pmately $389.7 million of additional tranchesterm loans or increases to the revolving creatiility. If new debt is
added to our and our subsidiaries’ current del#l#ethe related risks that we face could increase.

The price of our common stock could be volatile.

The overall market and the price of our commonlstoay fluctuate greatly. The trading price of oamgmon stock may be significantly affected by vasidactors,
including:

. quarterly fluctuations in our operating resu

. changes in investc’ and analys’ perception of the business risks and conditiorsuofbusiness

. our ability to meet the earnings estimates andrgitbeformance expectations of financial analystseestors:
. unfavorable commentary or downgrades of our stgci&duity research analys

. fluctuations in the stock prices of our peer conigsior in stock markets in general; ¢

. general economic or political conditior

If securities or industry analysts do not publisiesearch or reports about our business, if they adedy change their recommendations regarding oumzmon stock or if
our operating results do not meet their expectatomur common stock price and its trading volumeutibdecline.

The market price of our common stock will be inflaed by the research and reports that industregaurgties analysts publish about us or our busiriéssie or more
of these analysts cease coverage of our compaiayl ¢ publish reports on us regularly, we cowdé visibility in the financial markets, which rh could cause the market
price of our common stock or its trading volumel&zline. Moreover, if one or more of the analysk®wover our company downgrade our common stodkour operating
results or prospects do not meet their expectatibiesmarket price of our common stock could declin

We may not generate sufficient cash flows or hauéfigsient restricted payment capacity under our sensecured credit facilities or the indentures gawing our
outstanding notes to pay our intended dividendstba common stock.

Subject to legally available funds, we intend ty paarterly cash dividends. We will only be ablepty dividends from our available cash on handfands generated
by us and our subsidiaries. Our ability to pay diévids to our stockholders will be subject to thiengeof our senior secured credit facilities andititeentures governing the
outstanding notes. Our operating cash flow andtald comply with restricted payments covenantsum debt instruments will depend on our futurfqenance, which will
be subject to prevailing economic conditions anfirtancial, business and other factors beyond oatrol. In addition, dividend payments are not ma&ody or guaranteed,
and our Board of Directors may never declare adéivd, decrease the level of dividends or entiredgahtinue the payment of dividends. Your decisidrether to purchase
shares
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of our common stock should allow for the possipithat no dividends will be paid. You may not regeany dividends as a result of the following aiddil factors, among
others:

. we are not legally or contractually required to paydends;

. while we currently intend to pay a regular quastelividend, the actual amount of dividends disttéazliand the decision to make any distribution t&ely at the
discretion of our Board of Directors and futureidands with respect to shares of our capital std@qy, will depend on, among other things, owutées of
operations, cash requirements, financial conditiwsiness opportunities, provisions of applicabie &nd other factors that our Board of Directory nieem
relevant;

. the amount of dividends distributed is and willdubject to contractual restrictions under the iestl payments covenants containec
. the indentures governing our outstanding nc
. the terms of our senior secured credit facilites]
. the terms of any other outstanding indebtednessiaeincur; anc

. the amount of dividends distributed is subjecttédeslaw restrictions

As a result of the foregoing limitations on ourlapito make distributions, we cannot assure yat the will be able to make all of our intended dedy dividend
payments.

Anti-takeover provisions contained in our certificaté incorporation and bylaws, as well as provisions@elaware law, could impair a takeover attempt thaur
stockholders may find beneficia

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmasecond amended and restated bylaws and Deléavamntain provisions that could have the efféfatendering
more difficult or discouraging an acquisition deelmdesirable by our Board of Directors. Our cogb®igovernance documents include provisions:

. establishing a classified Board of Directors sd tiat all members of our Board are elected at ome;!

. providing that directors may be removed by stoctbrd only for cause

. authorizing blank check preferred stock, which ddeg issued with voting, liquidation, dividend asttier rights superior to our common sto

. limiting the ability of our stockholders to call dibring business before special meetings and ®aakon by written consent in lieu of a meeti

. limiting our ability to engage in certain businessnbinations with any “interested stockholdesther than the Sponsors, Gary and Mary West, #igliates anc
certain transferees) for a th-year period following the time that the stockholdecame an interested stockholc

. requiring advance notice of stockholder proposaldfisiness to be conducted at meetings of ouklstdders and for nominations of candidates fort@eco

our Board of Directors; ar

. limiting the determination of the number of direston our Board of Directors and the filling of eacies or newly created seats on the Board to oardBof
Directors then in office

These provisions, alone or together, could delagtileatakeovers and changes in control of our camjma changes in our management.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subjectdwipions of Delaware law. Any provision of our amed and restated certificate of incorporationemosid amended
and restated bylaws or Delaware law that has tieetedf delaying or deterring a change in contalld limit the opportunity for our stockholdersreceive a premium for
their shares of our common stock, and could aliectthe price that some investors are willing &y fior our common stock.
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Our principal stockholders possess significant iméince over us. Their interests may not coincidehnother stockholders and they may make decisionthwihich other
stockholders may disagre

Entities controlled by Gary L. West and Mary E. Wélse Gary and Mary West Health Institute and stieent funds associated with the Sponsors owihgin t
aggregate, approximately 70.4% of our outstandorgroon stock. Under our amended and restated stiusdhagreement with our Sponsors and entities obietr with our
Founders, our Sponsors can designate up to fieetdirs, in the aggregate, to our Board of Directsubject to ownership of our common stock aboveauethresholds.
Because our Chief Executive Officer will be appethtand may be terminated, by our Board of Diregtour Sponsors will effectively have the abilityselect our Chief
Executive Officer through the designation of dioest subject to ownership of our common stock atzouertain threshold. As a result, these stockhis)deting individually
or together, could control substantially all mattexquiring stockholder approval, including thecéten of most directors and approval of significaatporate transactions. In
addition, this concentration of ownership may dedayrevent a change in control of our companyma#te some transactions more difficult or impossitithout the support
of these stockholders. The interests of these btildkrs may not always coincide with our interest® company or the interest of other stockholdersordingly, these
stockholders could cause us to enter into trarmabr agreements that you would not approve orendekisions with which other stockholders may disagBecause
investment funds associated with the Sponsors agreed to act together on certain matters, inctudiith respect to the election of directors, anchamore than 52% of our
voting power, we are considered a “controlled comypainder the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules. We cuiyeathil ourselves of the “controlled company” exiep under the
Nasdaqg Marketplace Rules. As such, we are exeropt ¢ertain of the corporate governance requiremamdsr the Nasdaq Marketplace Rules, includingelgeiirements the
a majority of our Board of Directors consist of épéndent directors, that we have a nominating arbcate governance committee that is composetesntif independent
directors and that we have a compensation comnititees composed entirely of independent directassa result, for so long as we are a controlethgany, stockholders
will not have the same protections afforded to létotders of companies that are subject to all efdbrporate governance requirements under the ijdddeketplace Rules.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporticontains a provision renouncing our interest amkpectancy in certain corporate opportunities, whicould
adversely affect our business or prospects.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmgtrovides that we renounce any interest or egpegtin, or in being offered an opportunity to apate in, any
business opportunity that may be from time to tpmesented to the Sponsors or any of their offiadirectors, agents, stockholders, members, partaffiigates and
subsidiaries (other than West and its subsidiaged)that may be a business opportunity for sucn&qr, even if the opportunity is one that we migttsonably have pursued
or had the ability or desire to pursue if granteel dpportunity to do so, and no such person skedibble to us for breach of any fiduciary or otbety, as a director or officer
or otherwise, by reason of the fact that such peracting in good faith, pursues or acquires amy fwsiness opportunity, directs any such busioppertunity to another
person or fails to present any such business appityt or information regarding any such busingggastunity, to us unless, in the case of any swghgn who is our director
or officer, any such business opportunity is exglsesffered to such director or officer solely iis lor her capacity as our director or officer. Narfi¢he Sponsors shall have
any duty to refrain from engaging directly or ireditly in the same or similar business activitietir@s of business as us or any of our subsidiaries

These provisions apply subject only to certain awhip requirements of the Sponsors and other dongitFor example, our Sponsors may become awara,tfme to
time, of certain business opportunities, such gsiiattion opportunities or ideas for product lingpansions, and may direct such opportunities terdusinesses in which th
have invested, in which case we may not becomeeawfaor otherwise have the ability to pursue sygpootunity. Further, such businesses may choosertpete with us for
these opportunities. As a result, our renouncingmerest and expectancy in any business oppayttimit may be from time to time presented to therfSors could adversely
impact our business or prospects if attractiverrss opportunities are procured by the Sponsotsidéar own benefit rather than for ours.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own our corporate headquarters facility in Oma&tebraska. We also own two other facilities in GimaNebraska used for administrative activities: @rincipal
operating locations are noted below.

Number of State: Number of Foreign
in Which Countries in
Properties are Which Properties
Operating Segment Owned / Leaser Principal Activities Located are Located
Unified Communications Owned Administration 3 —
Unified Communication Owned Production 1 —
Unified Communications Leased Administration
Sales 18 22
Unified Communication Leasec Production 2 2
Communication Service Owned Administration 1 —
Communication Service Owned Production 3 —
Communication Service Leasec Administration 6 1
Communication Service Leasec Production 17

Unified Communications has locations in AustraBaJgium, Brazil, Canada, China, Denmark, Finlan@ree, Germany, Hong Kong, India, Israel, Italypala South
Korea, Malaysia, Mexico, Netherlands, New Zeal&@idgapore, Spain, Sweden and the United Kingdormmr@anication Services locations in foreign countiesude
Australia, Canada, Jamaica, Mexico and the Philiggi

We believe that our facilities are adequate foraurent requirements and that additional spackbeibvailable as required. See Note 4 of the Nmt€onsolidated
Financial Statements included elsewhere in thisntefpr information regarding our lease obligations

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of business, we and cediour subsidiaries are defendants in variousdti@n matters and are subject to claims from dents for
indemnification, some of which may involve claines lamages that are substantial in amount. We tibalieve the disposition of claims currently perglivill have a
material effect on our financial position, resufperations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES

Our common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Gl&@wmect Market under the ticker symbol “WSTC” felimg our initial public offering (“IPO”) on March2,
2013. The table set forth below provides the irdaseldigh and low sales prices and dividends paidspare of our common stock since our IPO for the uarters during
2013. Subject to legally available funds, we intémdontinue to pay our shareholders a dividendspare, on a quarterly basis, in an amount comfgatalthe dividends
indicated in the table. However, any future deteation to pay cash dividends will be at the disorebf our Board of Directors and will depend upr results of operation
financial condition, capital requirements and sattier factors as the Board of Directors deems agle\un addition our ability to pay dividends atbject to applicable law,
our senior secured credit facilities and the indesg governing our senior notes. See “ManagemBigsussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebults of
Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Debt&mants” and the risk factors related to our abititpay future dividends in “Risk Factors.”

2013: High Low Dividend Per Share
First Quarter $19.3¢ $18.3¢ $ 0.0C
Second Quarte $24.1¢ $19.0¢ $ 0.22¢
Third Quartel $33.51 $21.1¢ $ 0.22¢
Fourth Quarte $26.3¢ $21.2¢ $ 0.22¢

The number of shareholders of record of our comstook as of February 13, 2014 was 64.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information regarding our compensation plargennvhich equity securities are authorized fordsme is set forth in “ltem 12 Security OwnershigCeftain
Beneficial Owners and Management and Related StddkhMatters” of this Report.

Sale of Unregistered Securities

During 2013, 63,773 shares of our common stock wisteibuted from the West Corporation Deferred @emsation Plan and 17,338 shares of our commoh stere
issued as a result of stock option exercises (cemmglprior to our IPO) for an aggregate considenadf $41,000. The shares of common stock issued egercise of options
or from the West Corporation Deferred Compensafitam, referenced in the foregoing, were issuedyauntsto written compensatory plans or arrangemantliance on the
exemptions provided by either Section 4(2) of teeusities Act or Rule 701 promulgated under Seci(i) of the Securities Act.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following line-graph presentation comparesaumulative shareholder returns with the Standaio&r’'s 500 Stock Index and the Standard & Poor& §6rth
American Technology Services Index since our IPRe line graph assumes the investment of $100 ic@ommon stock, the Standard & Poor’s Informatiochrelogy
Index, and the Standard & Poor’s 500 Index on M&2h2013 and assumes reinvestment of all dividends

COMPARISON OF 9 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among West Corporation, the S&P 500 Index,
$150 and the S&P 500 North American Technology Services Index
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—B&— West Corporation — A -S&P 500 ---3---S&P 500 North American Technology Services
*$100 invested on 3/2213 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.

S&P 500 North Americar

West Corporation S&P 500 Technology Services
March 22, 2013 $ 100.0¢ $100.0( $ 100.0(
March 31, 201¢ $ 101.7¢ $103.7¢ $ 102.57
April 30, 2013 $ 111.3¢ $105.7¢ $ 102.81
May 31, 201% $ 122.7( $108.2: $ 106.1:
June 30, 201 $ 118.6: $106.77 $ 103.7¢
July 31, 201 $ 117.6¢ $112.2( $ 110.1¢
August 31, 201: $ 118.2¢ $108.9¢ $ 109.3:
September 30, 201 $ 119.9: $112.37 $ 115.4¢
October 31, 201 $ 119.1( $117.5¢ $ 118.5(
November 30, 201 $ 125.8( $121.1% $ 123.8(
December 31, 201 $ 140.4¢ $124.1¢ $ 130.5:
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth, for the periodsgmeted and at the dates indicated, our selectaatibad consolidated financial data for each of et five years. The
selected consolidated historical operations statéayed balance sheet data have been derived frommistarical consolidated financial statements. €ursolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 atidefrears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 20idh have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLRjradependent
registered public accounting firm, are includectelsere in this annual report. The information ialdied in its entirety by the detailed informatiorcluded elsewhere in this
annual report and should be read in conjunctioh tanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of FinanCiandition and Results of Operations”, “Busineast the
“Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes” toareluded elsewhere in this annual report.

Year ended December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(amounts in thousands except per share amount

Operations Statement Data:

Revenue $ 2,685,85! $ 2,638,02: $ 2,491,32! $ 2,388,21. $ 2,375,74
Cost of service 1,260,57! 1,224,45! 1,113,28! 1,057,00:i 1,067,77
Selling, general and administrative expenSG&A”") 945,06: 935,39( 909,90¢ 911,02: 907,35¢
Operating incomi 480,21 478,17! 468,12¢ 420,18: 400,61:
Interest expens (232,93Y) (269,23¢) (269,86) (252,72, (254,109
Refinancing expens (23,10 (2,715 — (52,809 —
Other income, ne 2,581 1,38t 6,26 6,127 1,32¢
Income before income tax exper 226,76: 207,60¢ 204,52 120,78( 147,83t
Income tax expens 83,55¢ 82,06¢ 77,03« 60,47¢ 56,86:
Net income 143,20: 125,54 127,49: 60,30¢ 90,97¢
Less net incon—noncontrolling interes — — — — 2,74
Net incom—West Corporatiol $ 143,20: $ 125,54 $ 127,49 $ 60,30« $  88,22¢
Earnings (loss) per common she
Basic Class | $ 17.1¢ $ 17.07 $ 17.4¢
Diluted Class L $ 16.4¢ $ 16.31 $ 16.67%
Basic Commor $ 1.82 $ 2.04 $ (4.0 $  (10.00 $ (7.89)
Diluted Commor $ 1.7¢ $ 1.9¢ $ (4.01) $  (10.00 $ (7.84)
Selected Operating Data
Net cash flows from operating activiti $ 384,08 $ 318,91t $ 348,18 $ 312,82¢ $ 272,85
Net cash flows from investing activiti $ (135,509 $ (201,62) $ (329,44) $ (137,89¢) $ (112,619
Net cash flows from financing activitit $ (196,829 $ (33,130 $ (23,180 $ (133,65) $ (271,849
Operating margin (1 17.9% 18.1% 18.82% 17.€% 16.9%
Net income margin (2 5.2% 4.8% 5.1% 2.5% 3.7%

(1) Operating margin represents operating income &s@ptage of revenu
(2) Netincome margin represents net inc—West Corporation as a percentage of reve
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As of December 31
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(amounts in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data

Working capital $ 363,92 $ 303,42: $ 203,48t $ 213,46! $ 175,000
Property and equipment, r 364,76! 364,89¢ 350,85¢ 341,36t 333,26
Total asset 3,486,26 3,448,15. 3,227,51i 3,005,25! 3,045,26.
Total debt (3] 3,5625,34 4,017,65! 3,516,36! 3,533,561 3,633,24.
Class L common stoc — — — 1,504,44! 1,332,72
Stockholder deficit (740,17:) (1,249,68) (896,415 (2,543,501 (2,424,46)
Other Financial Data:
Capital Expenditure $ 127,70 $ 128,42¢ $ 120,12: $ 122,04¢ $ 122,66¢
Cash dividends declared ( 56,45¢ 511,04 — — —
(3) Debt excludes portfolio notes payable in 2C
(4) Cash dividends declared in 2013 and 2012 were $(67 share and $8.00 per share, respecti
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Business Overview

We are a leading provider of technology-driven, oumication services. We offer a broad portfolisefvices, including conferencing and collaboratigrified
communications, alerts and notifications, emergermymunications, business process outsourcingedephony / interconnect services. The scale ancegging capacity of
our proprietary technology platforms, combined vathr expertise in managing voice and data trarmastienable us to provide reliable, high-qualitission-critical
communications designed to maximize return on imaest for our clients. Our clients include Fortur@®0 companies, along with small and medium ent&giin a variety (
industries, including telecommunications, retaiiahcial services, public safety, technology analtheare. We have sales and operations in the tSitates, Canada, Europe,
the Middle East, Asia Pacific, Latin America anduBoAmerica.

Since our founding in 1986, we have invested sigaiftly to expand our technology platforms and dgveur operational processes to meet the complex
communications needs of our clients. We have edobug business mix from labor-intensive communaagervices to predominantly diversified and platfdased,
technology-driven voice and data services.

Investing in technology and developing specialiegpertise in the industries we serve are critioahgonents to our strategy of enhancing our sendoesdelivering
operational excellence. In 2013, we managed ovdilB8n telephony minutes and approximately 148iom conference calls, facilitated over 290 mifli®-1-1 calls, and
delivered over 1.4 billion notification calls andtd messages. With approximately 748,000 telepportg to handle conference calls, alerts and watifins and customer
service at December 31, 2013, we believe our ptatgrovide scale and flexibility to handle gredatansaction volume than our competitors, offeresigu service and
develop new offerings. These ports include appraxéty 445,000 IP ports, which we believe providewvith the only large-scale proprietary IP-basedglaonferencing
platform deployed and in use today. Our technolddgyen platforms allow us to provide a broad ran§eomplementary automated and agent-based sesffeéngs to our
diverse client base.

Financial Operations Overview
Revenue

In our Unified Communications segment, our confeinegp and collaboration services, event serviceslBrthsed unified communication solutions are galhebilled
on a per participant minute or per seat basis anélerts and notifications services are genetillgd on a per message or per minute basis. Billates for
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these services vary depending on participant gpbggdocation, type of service (such as audio, @ideweb conferencing) and type of message (suebias, text, email or
fax). We also charge clients for additional feasuich as conference call recording, transcripg@mices or professional services. Since we ethtee conferencing services
business, the average rate per minute that we elheag declined while total minutes sold has ina@ashis is consistent with industry trends. Weestghis trend to continue
for the foreseeable future.

In our Communication Services segment, our emeggeammunications solutions are generally billed penth based on the number of billing telephone tmens or
cell towers covered under each client contract.af§e bill monthly for our premise-based databasatism. In addition, we bill for sales, installati@and maintenance of our
communication equipment technology solutions. Gatfprm-based and agent-based customer servicéawdlare generally billed on a per minute or pmurtbasis. We are
generally paid on a contingent fee basis for oceirables management and overpayment identificatwhrecovery services as well as for certain cdlgent-based services.
Our telephony / interconnect services are genebdlliyd based on usage of toll-free originationveess.

Cost of Services

The principal component of cost of services for duaified Communications segment is our variablepgbne expense. Significant components of ourafasgrvices il
this segment also include labor expense, primagigted to commissions for our sales force. Bectusaservices we provide in this segment are Isrglaltform-based, labor
expense is less significant than the labor expermsexperience in our Communication Services segment

The principal component of cost of services for Gommunication Services segment is labor expersgoiexpense in costs of services primarily reflect
compensation and benefits for the agents providingagent-based services, but also includes corafiendor personnel dedicated to emergency comnatioits database
management, manufacturing and development of @mise-based public safety solution as well as casions for our sales professionals. We generaifycpanmissions to
sales professionals on both new sales and incrainevenue generated from existing clients. Sigaift components of our cost of services in thisreag also include
variable telephone expense.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The principal component of our selling, general addhinistrative expenses (“SG&A”) is salary and &fén for our sales force, client support staf€¢heology and
development personnel, senior management and péhgonnel involved in business support functior3&8 also includes certain fixed telephone costsval as other
expenses that support the ongoing operation obosiness, such as facilities costs, certain senocgract costs, equipment depreciation and maames, impairment charges
and amortization of finite-lived intangible assets.

Key Drivers Affecting Our Financial Position and Reilts of Operations

Factors Related to Our Indebtednes3n each of February 20, 2013 and January 24,,2084t, certain domestic subsidiaries of Westuasigiary borrowers, Wells
Fargo Bank, National Association (“Wells Fargo$,administrative agent, and the various lendeny plaereto modified our senior secured credit faed (“Senior Secured
Credit Facilities”) by entering into Amendment N&to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (th@dTamendment”) and Amendment No. 4 to Amended Redtated
Credit Agreement (“Fourth Amendment”), respectivétyeach case, amending our Amended and Restatelit Bgreement, dated as of October 5, 2010, lysanong West,
Wells Fargo, as administrative agent, and the uarlenders party thereto, as lenders (as amendédieypdment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Crediéément, dated as
of August 15, 2012, Amendment No. 2 to Amended Rastated Credit Agreement, dated as of Octobe2@¥, the Third Amendment and the Fourth Amendntéet,
“Amended Credit Agreement”).
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The Third Amendment provided for a reduction in #mplicable margins and interest rate floors ofelin loans, extended the maturity of a portiothefterm loans
due July 2016 to June 2018, and added a furthprdsten to the applicable margins of all term loapsn satisfaction of certain conditions, which dtinds were satisfied
effective as of April 30, 2013 and continued to lggs of December 31, 2013. As of December 31, 2@&3had outstanding the following senior secuegthtloans:

. Term loans in an aggregate principal amount of aaprately $2.1 billion (the “2018 Maturity Term Log"). The 2018 Maturity Term Loans will mature on
June 30, 2018, and the interest rate margins aiyéido the 2018 Maturity Term Loans were 2.75%LHBOR rate loans, and 1.75%, for base rate loand

. Term loans in an aggregate principal amount of adprately $312.1 million (the “2016 Maturity Ternoans”; and, together with the 2018 Maturity Term
Loans, the “Term Loans")The 2016 Maturity Term Loans will mature on July, 2816, and the interest rate margins applicabteeé®016 Maturity Term Loar
were 2.25%, for LIBOR rate loans, and 1.25%, fasebeate loans

The Third Amendment also provided for interest feders applicable to the Term Loans. The interast floors as of December 31, 2013 were 1.00%, HBOR rate
loans, and 2.00%, for base rate loans.

The Fourth Amendment provided for a further redurcin the applicable margins and interest raterfiad all Term Loans. As of January 24, 2014, titerest rate
margins applicable to the 2018 Maturity Term Loans2.50% for LIBOR rate loans and 1.50% for base loans, and the interest rate margins applidafilee 2016 Maturit
Term Loans are 2.0% for LIBOR rate loans and 1.6#bfse rate loans. The Fourth Amendment also geswvior interest rate floors applicable to the Téoans. The intere:
rate floors effective January 24, 2014 are 0.7564 fBOR rate loans and 1.75% for base rate loans.

On March 27, 2013, we completed an IPO of 21,27 gMares of our common stock, par value $0.005lpere, registered pursuant to a Registration Seateon
Form S-1 (File No. 333-162292). Proceeds receivenh the IPO, net of the underwriting discount w@4€1.0 million. We paid $25.0 million in Sponsormagement fees to
an investor group led by Thomas H. Lee Partnef3, &nd Quadrangle Group LLC (the “Sponsors”) purst@mthat certain management agreement, datecocga!, 2006,
and that certain management letter agreement, déaech 8, 2013. The management agreement termifa@etordance with its terms immediately prioctmnpletion of the
IPO.

On April 26, 2013, we redeemed our 11% $450.0 amilfprincipal amount senior subordinated notes & 2The redemption price was equal to 103.667t%hef
principal amount of the senior subordinated ndtés.recorded a $16.5 million subordinated debtmamium and $6.6 million accelerated amortizatibdeferred financing
costs as a non-operating expense. In addition,aikgrcrued and unpaid interest on the redeemeodrserbordinated notes up to April 26, 2013. Follogvthis redemption,
none of the senior subordinated notes remain oudstg.

On August 26, 2013, our revolving trade accountgis@ble financing facility was amended and extendé&e amended and extended facility provides 1@&5%0
million in available financing and was extendedtme 30, 2018, reduced the unused commitment f@€586 from 0.50% and lowered the LIBOR spread amdwings to
135 basis points from 150 basis points.

Evolution into a Predominately Platform-based Siolu$ BusinesaVe have evolved into a diversified and platformezhtechnology-driven service provider. Since
2005, our revenue from platform-based serviceghawn from 37% of total revenue to 73% for 2013 and operating income from platform-based serviwes grown from
53% of total operating income to 92% over the saar@d. As in the past, we will continue to seell arvest in higher margin businesses, irrespeafwehether the
associated services are delivered to our custothersgh an agent-based or a platform-based envieahriiVe expect our platform-based service linegdoov at a faster pace
than agent-based services and as a result wilireanto increase as a percentage of our total texddowever, many of our customers require an rategd service offering
that incorporates both
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agent-based and platform-based services — for dearup automated voice response system with theroftr the client’'s customer to speak to an agéntordingly, we
expect agent-based services will continue to remtes meaningful portion of our service offeringsthe foreseeable future.

Acquisition Activities Identifying and successfully integrating acquisis of value-added service providers has beery adémponent of our growth strategy. We will
continue to seek opportunities to expand our safiommunication services across industries, ggatgea and end-markets. While we expect this widuwgrimarily thru
organic growth, we have and will continue to acgussets and businesses that strengthen our valesfiion to clients and drive value to us. Weénhdeveloped an internal
capability to source, evaluate and integrate adipris that we believe has created value for shadels. Since 2005, we have invested approxim&2I billion in strategic
acquisitions. We believe there are acquisition @atds that will enable us to expand our capagditind markets and intend to continue to evalu@feisitions in a discipline
manner and pursue those that provide attractiverdppities to enhance our growth and profitabillty2013, $20.9 million of our revenue growth wésibutable to the
acquisition of HyperCube completed in March of 2012

Key Factors Related to Cash Flows

Our expectation is to return some portion of owhciow to shareholders each year through a reguilarterly dividend. We expect to use the remaiwiash flow to
reduce leverage and fund acquisitions to accelgrateth.

Interest expense for 2013 was $232.9 million. Hedlower debt balances and lower interest ratekicapge following our IPO been in effect at Janu&ry2013, intere:
expense would have been $24.7 million lower tharéported amount. On April 26, 2013, we redeerheckhtire outstanding $450.0 million principal ambaf our 11%
senior subordinated notes. The redemption pricel®8%567% of the principal amount of the seniorssdimated notes. The pricing of the Third Amendreard redemption «
the 11% senior subordinated notes reduced our &nash interest expense by approximately $97.0onillFurther, the Third Amendment extended the nitstof $1.1 billion
of term loans to June 2018.

Overview of 2013 Results

The following overview highlights the areas we beé are important in understanding our resultgpefations for the year ended December 31, 2013. Stmmary is
not intended as a substitute for the detail pravielsewhere in this annual report, or for our ctidated financial statements and notes theretaded elsewhere in this ann
report.

e Ourrevenue increased $47.8 million, or 1.8% in3!
. Our operating income increased $2.0 million, o#6,4n 2013 compared to operating income in 2(

. Our Adjusted EBITDA increased to $704.4 million2613, compared to $686.9 million in 2012, an inseeaf 2.6%. For information regarding the compaotati
of Adjusted EBITDA, set‘—Liquidity and Capital Resourc—Adjusted EBITD#" below.

e Our cash flows from operating activities were $38dillion, an increase of $65.2 million, or 20.48tiring 2013 compared to cash flows from operating
activities in 2012

. On February 20, 2013, we amended our Senior Se€lnextit Facilities. The Third Amendment provided éoreduction in the applicable margins and interes
rate floors of all term loans and extended the nitgtof a portion of the term loans due July 20@@tine 2018. The applicable margins for each ofetima loan
tranches reflected a further step down of 0.50%dapon our initial public offering completed in Mk 2013 and maintaining a total leverage ratie tean or
equal to 4.75:1.00, which conditions were satisé@éfdctive as of April 30, 2013 and continued tplgms of December 31, 201

¢ On March 8, 2013, we completed a 1-for-8 reversekssplit and amended our Amended and Restatedi€a# of Incorporation by filing an amendment kit
the Delaware Secretary of State. We also adjubtedhiare amounts under our Executive Incentive &dNonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan a&saltr
of the X-for-8 reverse stock spli
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. On March 27, 2013, we completed our IPO of 21,206 ghares of common stock. Proceeds from the nfferiet of the underwriting discounts and commiss
were $401.0 million

e On April 26, 2013, we redeemed our $450.0 millid¥dsenior subordinated notes. The redemption prae103.667% of the principal amount of the senior
subordinated notes. These notes were paid in

. On each of May 16, 2013, August 22, 2013 and NoweriB, 2013 we paid a $0.225 per common shareegiyadividend. The dividend paid to shareholders of
record as of the close of business on each of M2p83, August 12, 2013 and November 8, 2013 w8s8htillion and the total payments were $56.5 wrillin
the aggregate

. On April 26, 2013, Mood's Investors Service upgraded West Corpor’s corporate family rating to B1 from B

. On June 19, 2013, Standard & Poors Ratings Serujpgsaded West Corporation’s corporate credit gatinBB- from B+ and raised the senior securedeissu
level rating to BB from B+

. On August 26, 2013, we amended and extended oalvieg trade accounts receivable financing facilifye amended and extended facility provides f&531
million in available financing and was extendeditme 30, 2018, reduced the unused commitment f@é&586 from 0.50% and lowered the LIBOR spread on
borrowings to 135 basis points from 150 basis [0

The following table sets forth our Consolidatedt&tzents of Operations Data as a percentage of uevien the periods indicated:

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Revenue 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of service 46.¢ 46.4 447
Selling, general and administrative expenSG&A”) 35.2 35.5 36.5
Operating incom: 17.¢ 18.1 18.¢
Interest expens 8.7 10.2 10.€
Refinancing expens 0.¢ 0.1 —
Other income 0.1 0.1 0.2
Income before income tax exper 8.4 7.¢ 8.2
Income tax expens 3.1 3.1 3.1
Net income 5.2% 4.£% 5.1%

Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Revenue:Total revenue in 2013 increased $47.8 million, .84, to $2,685.9 million from $2,638.0 million i®22. This increase included revenue of $20.9 nnillio
from the acquisition of HyperCube. The HyperCubguasition closed on March 23, 2012. HyperCube'siitsshave been included in the Communication Ses/gegment
since that date. The remaining $26.9 million inseei revenue in 2013 was due to organic growth.

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2Qt2argest 100 clients accounted for approximabdi§e and 57% of total revenue, respectively. In28id 2012,
no client accounted for more than 10% of our agaeegevenue.
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Revenue by segment:

For the year ended December 3:

% of Total % of Total
2013 Revenue 2012 Revenue Change % Change
Revenue in thousand
Unified Communication $1,498,21. 55.8% $1,451,30. 55.(% $ 46,912 3.2%
Communication Service 1,223,85! 45.6% 1,198,32 45.8% 25,53¢ 2.1%
Intersegment eliminatior (36,21 -1.4% (11,59)) -0.4% (24,616 212.2%
Total $2,685,85! 100.(% $2,638,02: 100.(% $ 47,83 1.8€%

Unified Communications revenue in 2013 increasegi $4nillion, or 3.2%, to $1,498.2 million from $54.3 million in 2012. The increase in revenue wasarily
attributable to the addition of new customers all agan increase in usage primarily of our web andio-based services by our existing customers.ifitrease in revenue
attributable to increased usage and new custonagreusas partially offset by a decline in the ratesrged to existing customers for those servicks.vblume of minutes
used for our reservationless services, which adsdon the majority of our Unified Communicatioresenue, grew approximately 10.8% in 2013 over 204#le the average
rate per minute for reservationless services dedlloy approximately 7.4%.

During 2013, revenue in the APAC and EMEA regiorsngto $470.4 million, an increase of 2.6% over2@timarily related to volume growth in EMEA.

Communication Services revenue in 2013 increas&db$Rillion, or 2.1%, to $1,223.9 million from $B&.3 million in 2012. The increase in revenue ii2hcluded
$20.9 million from the acquisition of HyperCube.\iRaue from agent-based services in 2013 decred$ef fillion compared with revenue for 2012. Rewegtowth from
automated services offered by the Communicationi&es segment, primarily Telephony / Interconnexviges, offset the decline in revenues from adased services.

Cost of ServicesCost of services consists of direct labor, teleghexpense and other costs directly related to gioyiservices to clients. Cost of services in 2013

increased $36.1 million, or 2.9%, to $1,260.6 miilfrom $1,224.5 million in 2012. As a percentagesvenue, cost of services increased to 46.9%0183rom 46.4% in
2012.

Cost of Services by segment:

For the year ended December 3

2013 % of Revenue 2012 % of Revenue Change % Change
Cost of services in thousanc
Unified Communication $ 639,10 42.7% $ 616,89¢ 42.5% $ 22,20¢ 3.€%
Communication Service 655,38( 53.6% 616,89: 51.5% 38,48¢ 6.2%
Intersegment eliminatior (33,900 NM (9,339 NM (24,577) 263.2%
Total $1,260,57! 46.% $1,224,45! 46.2% $36,12( 2.5%

NM—Not Meaningful

Unified Communications cost of services in 2013éased $22.2 million, or 3.6%, to $639.1 millioarfr $616.9 million in 2012. The increase is primadtiven by
increased service volume. As a percentage of égment’s revenue, Unified Communications cost ofises increased to 42.7% in 2013 from 42.5% in20he increase in
cost of services as a percentage of revenue f@ B0due primarily to changes in the product meggraphic mix, and declines in the average ratenpeute for
reservationless services.
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Communication Services cost of services in 2018cimsed $38.5 million, or 6.2%, to $655.4 millioarfr $616.9 million in 2012. The increase in coss@ivices in
2013 was the result of $12.6 million of incrememiadt of services from the HyperCube acquisitioth imcereased service volume primarily for telephéimterconnect
services. As a percentage of revenue, Communic8gowvices cost of services increased to 53.6% 113 2@m 51.5% in 2012. This increase in cost ofisess as a percentage
of this segment’s revenue in 2013 is due primadlyeduced margins in agent-based services.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSG&A expenses in 2013 increased $9.7 million, 6#4,.to $945.1 million from $935.4 million for 2012he increase
in SG&A expenses in 2013, included $25.0 million &ponsor management fees and related terminatithe ananagement agreement in connection withRi@ednd $3.0
million of IPO related bonuses. As a percentageeeénue, SG&A expenses improved to 35.2% in 2043 f85.5% in 2012. In 2013, the Sponsor manageneentélated
termination of the management agreement and IP&@etbonuses had a 1.0% impact on SG&A expensepacentage of revenue. In 2012, SG&A included ¥ &d@llion of
share based compensation expense for the modificafivesting criteria of certain stock options aliddend equivalents paid on notional shares indmierred compensation
plan in connection with the special cash divideadlared by our Board of Directors on August 15,201

Selling, general and administrative expenses byrsegt:

For the year ended December 3

2013 % of Revenue 2012 % of Revenue Change % Change
SG&A in thousands
Unified Communication $472,67. 31.52% $449,83¢ 31.% $ 22,83¢ 5.1%
Communication Service 474,69 38.8% 487,81t 40.7% (13,129 -2.7%
Intersegment eliminatior (2,307) NM (2,269 NM (43) 1.5%
Total $945,06: 35.2% $935,39( 35.5% $ 9,672 1.C%

NM—Not meaningful

Unified Communications SG&A expenses in 2013 inseeb$22.8 million, or 5.1%, to $472.7 million frcéB¥49.8 million in 2012. As a percentage of thismsegt's
revenue, Unified Communications SG&A expenses mmed to 31.5% in 2013 compared to 31.0% in 2018.9ponsor management fee, related terminationeof th
management agreement and IPO related bonusestafidcaUnified Communications was $17.7 million,igthhad a 1.2% impact on SG&A expenses as a pagenuf
revenue for Unified Communications.

Communication Services SG&A expenses in 2013 deeck&13.1 million, or 2.7%, to $474.7 million fr$487.8 million in 2012. During 2012, Communication
Services recorded $10.9 million for site closurd aaverance expenses and asset impairment. Seeenathsite closure expenses in 2013 were $0.%milAs a percentage
this segment’s revenue, Communication Services S@&pgenses improved to 38.8% in 2013 from 40.79%0it22 The Sponsor management fee, related termmatfithe
management agreement and IPO related bonusestalldcaCommunication Services was $10.3 millionjchthad a 0.8% impact on SG&A expenses as a pagerf
revenue for Communication Services.

Operating Income:Operating income in 2013 increased $2.0 million) @, to $480.2 million from $478.2 million in 2B1As a percentage of revenue, operating
income decreased to 17.9% in 2013 from 18.1% ir2201
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Operating income by segment:

For the year ended December 3:

2013 % of Revenue 2012 % of Revenue Change % Change
Operating income in thousant
Unified Communication $386,43( 25.8% $384,56! 26.5% $1,871 0.5%
Communication Service 93,77¢ 7.1% 93,61( 7.8% 16€ 0.2%
Total $480,21« 17.% $478,17! 18.1% $2,03¢ 0.4%

Unified Communications operating income in 2013 éased $1.9 million, or 0.5%, to $386.4 millionrfr&384.6 million in 2012. As a percentage of tligreent’s
revenue, Unified Communications operating incomereiesed to 25.8% in 2013 from 26.5% in 2012 dugedactors discussed above for revenue, costroices and SG&A
expenses. In 2013, the Sponsor management fedégmination of the management agreement andéR(@d bonuses had a 1.2% impact on operatimgrie@as a
percentage of revenue for Unified Communications.

Communication Services operating income in 2018iased $0.2 million, or 0.2%, to $93.8 million fré®3.6 million in 2012. As a percentage of revenue,
Communication Services operating income decreas@d’#6 in 2013 from 7.8% in 2012 due to the factbssussed above for revenue, cost of serviceS&®&A expenses.
In 2013, the Sponsor management fee, related tatimmof the management agreement and IPO relatedses had a 0.8% impact on operating income ascamtage of
revenue for Communication Services.

Other Income (Expense)Other income (expense) in 2013 includes intergsérge from borrowings under credit facilities antstanding notes, the $16.5 million call
premium and $6.6 million accelerated amortizatibdeferred financing costs on the redemption of Hi% senior subordinated notes, the $4.0 milliagregate foreign
exchange loss on affiliate transactions denominiatedrrencies other than the functional currenoy iterest income from short-term investments . eDéxpense in 2013 was
$253.5 million compared to $270.6 million in 2012&erest expense, inclusive of the subordinatedsoall premium and accelerated amortization ofmleél financing costs
in 2013 was $256.0 million compared to $272.0 wilin 2012.

During 2013, we recognized a $4.0 million loss orefgn currency transactions denominated in curesnather than the functional currency compareal $4.6 million
loss on foreign currencies in 2012. During 2013 2842 we recognized a $6.2 million gain and $3.lanigain in marking the investments in our norefiied retirement
plans to market, respectively. This mark-to-madeaih recognized in other income is offset by addiil compensation expense recorded in SG&A expense.

Net Income:Our net income in 2013 increased $17.7 million1411%, to $143.2 million from $125.5 million in 2D1The increase in net income was driven primarily
by $36.3 million lower interest expense, $2.0 highgerating income, $1.2 million higher non-opergtincome and a lower effective tax rate. In 2at8,Sponsor
management fee, related termination of the manageaggeement, IPO related bonuses, subordinated watl premium and accelerated interest expemsbdaleferred
financing costs associated with the senior subatdihnotes had a $31.7 million negative impactetrintome. Net income includes a provision for meotax expense at an
effective rate of approximately 36.8% for 2013, @amed to an effective tax rate of approximatel\b63®in 2012.

Earnings per common shareEarnings per common share-basic for 2013 and 2@t2 $1.82 and $2.04, respectively. Earnings pemtomshare-diluted for 2013 and
2012 were $1.78 and $1.98, respectively. The régluat earnings per share was driven by the 21(@badditional shares issued and outstanding estét of our IPO
completed on March 27, 2013.
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Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

RevenueTotal revenue in 2012 increased $146.7 millior.8f6, to $2,638.0 million from $2,491.3 million2011. This increase included revenue of $96.2 omilli
from acquired entities. The acquisitions which cas®this increase were Twenty First Century Comigations, Inc., Preferred One Stop Technologiesitieidh Unisfair,
Inc., WIPC, Contact One, Inc. (“Contact One”), RRoint Solutions, LLC (“PivotPoint”) and HyperCubEhese acquisitions closed on February 1, 2011ruaep 1,

2011, March 1, 2011, June 3, 2011, June 7, 2014ustul0, 2011 and March 23, 2012, respectivelyuRefrom PivotPoint, Contact One and HyperCubeehasen included
in the Communication Services segment since tespective acquisition dates. All of the other asijoins, noted above, have been included in théiéthCommunications
segment since their respective acquisition dates.

During the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2@t 1argest 100 clients represented approximatédp &nd 55% of total revenue, respectively. In 20i2¢lient

accounted for more than 10% of our aggregate rexedn2011, the aggregate revenue from our laestt, AT&T, as a percentage of our total revemas approximately
10%.

Revenue by segment:

For the year ended December 3:

% of Total % of Total
2012 Revenue 2011 Revenue Change % Change
Revenue in thousand
Unified Communication $1,451,30. 55.(% $1,364,03; 54.8% $ 87,26¢ 6.4%
Communication Service 1,198,32( 45.2% 1,137,901 45.71% 60,42( 5.2%
Intersegment eliminatior (11,59)) -0.4% (10,60 -0.5% (990 9.2%
Total $2,638,02: 100.(% $2,491,32! 100.(% $146,69¢ 5.5%

Unified Communications revenue in 2012 increased $&illion, or 6.4%, to $1,451.3 million from $858.0 million in 2011. The increase in revenue ideld $27.4
million from acquisitions. The remaining $59.9 nwill increase was primarily attributable to the &ddiof new customers as well as an increase igaipamarily of our web
and audio-based services by our existing custorfRengenue attributable to increased usage and nstwroer usage was partially offset by a declindénraites charged to
existing customers for those services. The volufmainutes used for our reservationless services;twaccounts for the majority of our Unified Comneations revenue,
grew approximately 9.0% in 2012 over 2011, while #verage rate per minute for reservationlesscesdeclined by approximately 6.7%.

During 2012, revenue in the APAC and EMEA regiorasngto $458.5 million, an increase of 4.0% over R@timarily related to volume growth in APAC. Usitige
same foreign currency rates in effect during 20&tenue in APAC and EMEA increased 6.4% in 2012.

Communication Services revenue in 2012 increas@d$8illion, or 5.3%, to $1,198.3 million from $B7.9 million in 2011. The increase in revenue ii2Mcluded
$68.8 million from acquisitions. Revenue from agkased services for 2012 increased $20.6 milliongared with revenue for 2011, partially offset byeline of $12.8
million in direct response agent revenue. Revenu® quipment sales in public safety declined b§.$hillion due to reduced government spendingptdslic safety
equipment and due to the transition to a softwara services (“SAAS”) model. The SAAS model progidecurring monthly revenue over a myidiar period as opposed to
upfront one-time sale, with monthly maintenancesfee

Cost of ServicesCost of services consists of direct labor, teleghexpense and other costs directly related to giyiservices to clients. Cost of services in 2012
increased $111.2 million, or 10.0%, to $1,224.8ionlfrom $1,113.3 million in 2011. Cost of servicBom acquired entities was $56.0 million. As acpatage of revenue,
cost of services increased to 46.4% in 2012 frot@%4in 2011.
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Cost of Services by segment:

For the year ended December 3:

2012 % of Revenue 2011 % of Revenue Change % Change
Cost of services in thousanc
Unified Communication $ 616,89¢ 42.5% $ 558,26 40.%% $ 58,63: 10.5%
Communication Service 616,89: 51.5% 563,83: 49.6% 53,06: 9.4%
Intersegment eliminatior (9,339 NM (8,809) NM (525) 6.C%
Total $1,224,45! 46.2% $1,113,28! 44.1% $111,17( 10.C%

NM—Not Meaningful

Unified Communications cost of services in 2012éased $58.6 million, or 10.5%, to $616.9 millioorh $558.3 million in 2011. Cost of services froogaired
entities increased cost of services by $16.6 millibhe remaining increase is primarily driven bgremsed service volume. As a percentage of thiseets revenue, Unified
Communications cost of services increased to 4262012 from 40.9% in 2011. The increase in costesf/ices as a percentage of revenue for 201 2eipdmarily to
changes in the product mix, geographic mix, theaiotpf acquired entities and declines in the averate per minute for reservationless services.

Communication Services cost of services in 2012@msed $53.1 million, or 9.4%, to $616.9 millioarfr $563.8 million in 2011. The increase in cosseivices
included $39.4 million of additional costs from aggd entities. The remaining $13.7 million increagas primarily driven by increased service voluk®a percentage of
revenue, Communication Services cost of servicee#sed to 51.5% in 2012 from 49.6% in 2011. Theemse in cost of services as a percentage ofueviare012 was the

result of additional costs from acquired entitiad a higher mix of agent-based services.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpenseSG&A expenses in 2012 increased $25.5 million,.8#2 to $935.4 million from $909.9 million for 201The increase
in SG&A expenses in 2012 reflected an improvemermiur SG&A expense margin that was offset by $30illon of additional SG&A expenses from acquiredtiges and a
fair value adjustment in the valuation of an acijjipis earn-out accrual. As a percentage of reveBGRA expenses improved to 35.5% in 2012 from 36i6%011. In 2012,
SG&A included $18.3 million of share based compénsaexpense for the modification of vesting ciiéiesf certain stock options and dividend equivadgrdid on notional
shares in our deferred compensation plan in coioreutith the special cash dividend declared byBaoard of Directors on August 15, 2012. In 2011, $G&cluded $18.5
million of share based compensation expense fomthdification of vesting criteria of restricted skogrants.

Selling, general and administrative expenses byraegt:

For the year ended December 3:

2012 % of Revenue
SG&A in thousands
Unified Communication $449,83t 31.(%
Communication Service 487,81¢ 40.7%
Intersegment eliminatior (2,26%) NM
Total $935,39( 35.5%

NM—Not meaningful

2011 % of Revenue
$442,53¢ 32.8
469,16° 41.2%

(1,799 NM
$909,90¢ 36.5%

Change % Change
$ 7,297 1.€%
18,65: 4.C%
(466) 25.5%
$25,48: 2.8%

Unified Communications SG&A expenses in 2012 inseeb$7.3 million, or 1.6%, to $449.8 million from4R.5 million in 2011. The $7.3 million increaseSG&A

expenses in 2012 reflected an improvement in our
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SG&A expense margin, which included an adjustmertrt earn-out provision of $7.9 million, that wastally offset by $5.8 million of additional SG&A&xpenses from
acquired entities. As a result of these changesUaified Communications SG&A expenses as a peaggndf this segments’ revenue in 2012 improvedlto® from 32.4%
in 2011.

Communication Services SG&A expenses in 2012 irme&$18.7 million, or 4.0%, to $487.8 million fréh169.2 million in 2011. This increase in SG&A expen
reflects an improvement in SG&A margin of $16.8lioil that was offset by $6.8 million for site clastand severance expense and $4.1 million in &speirments. During
2012, SG&A expenses from acquired entities were@gdllion. As a percentage of this segment’s reegrCommunication Services SG&A expenses improwetdi7% in
2012 from 41.2% in 2011.

Operating Income:Operating income in 2012 increased $10.0 milliar2.4%, to $478.2 million from $468.1 million in 20. As a percentage of revenue, operating
income decreased to 18.1% in 2012 from 18.8% 201

Operating income by segment:

For the year ended December 3

2012 % of Revenue 2011 % of Revenue Change % Change
Operating income in thousanc
Unified Communication $384,56! 26.5% $363,22¢ 26.€% $21,33¢ 5.¢%
Communication Service 93,61( 7.8% 104,90: 9.2% (11,297) -10.8%
Total $478,17! 18.1% $468,12¢ 18.8% $ 10,047 2.1%

Unified Communications operating income in 2012 éased $21.3 million, or 5.9%, to $384.6 millioarfr $363.2 million in 2011. The $21.3 million incseawas
primarily due to organic growth and an adjustmerr earn-out provision of $7.9 million. As a petege of this segment’s revenue, Unified Commuiooatoperating
income declined to 26.5% in 2012 from 26.6% in 2@W# to the factors discussed above for revenst ofservices and SG&A expenses.

Communication Services operating income in 2012efsed $11.3 million, or 10.8%, to $93.6 millioorfr $104.9 million in 2011. This $11.3 million redion is
primarily attributable to the $10.9 million SG&A panse for site closure, related severance chargeasset impairments. As a percentage of reverurap@inication
Services operating income decreased to 7.8% in #0129.2% in 2011 due to the factors discussedaliar revenue, cost of services and SG&A expenses.

Other Income (Expense)Other income (expense) includes interest expese flrorrowings under credit facilities and outstagdnotes, the aggregate foreign
exchange gain (loss) on affiliate transactions d@nated in currencies other than the functionatenry and interest income. Other expense in 202$240.6 million
compared to $263.6 million in 2011. Interest exgeins2012 was $272.0 million compared to $269.9iomlin 2011. In 2012, the change in interest exygenas primarily due
to higher outstanding debt obligations as a resftlhe Amended Credit Agreement. A portion of tie¢ proceeds from the New Term Loans under the Areei@fedit
Agreement were used to repay approximately $448l&min term loans under our senior secured dréadiilities due in October 2013. As a result of tepayment, the
associated unamortized deferred debt issuance @o®8s7 million were fully amortized and recordeslinterest expense. During 2012, we recognized@idillion loss on
foreign currency transactions denominated in cwigmnother than the functional currency compareal $6.5 million gain on foreign currencies in 20Diring 2012 and 2011
we recognized a $3.3 million gain and $1.3 millioss in marking the investments in our non-quadifietirement plans to market, respectively.
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Net Income:Our net income in 2012 decreased $2.0 million,.6%4, to $125.5 million from $127.5 million in 201The decrease in net income was due to the factors
discussed above for revenue, cost of services, S&&nse and other income (expense). Net inconhedies a provision for income tax expense at arctife rate of
approximately 39.5% for 2012, compared to an eiffediax rate of approximately 37.7% in 2011. Theréase in the effective tax rate is primarily do¢he expiration of
federal credits and an increase in the accrualficertain tax positions.

Earnings (Loss) per common shar&arnings (loss) per common share-basic for 2012844 were $2.04 and $(4.01), respectively. Easpgr common share-
diluted for 2012 and 2011 were $1.98 and $(4.@&Hpectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations angitehexpenditures primarily through net cash fldvesn operations supplemented by borrowings undersenior
secured credit and asset securitization facilities.

On March 27, 2013, we completed our IPO of 21,206 ghares of common stock. Proceeds from the offeriet of the underwriting discounts and commissiwere
$401.0 million. On April 26, 2013, we redeemed $450.0 million 11% senior subordinated notes. Tddgemption price was 103.667% of the principal anofithe senior
subordinated notes.

On April 26, 2013, Moody'’s Investors Service upgradVest Corporation’s corporate family rating tofBdm B2. On June 19, 2013, Standard & Poors Rating
Services upgraded West Corporation’s corporatetar@iihg to BB- from B+ and raised the senior seclissue-level rating to BB from B+.

Our current and anticipated uses of our cash, egslvalents and marketable securities are to fyredaiing expenses, acquisitions, capital experaditunterest
payments, tax payments, quarterly dividends andepayment of principal on debt.

Year Ended December 31, 2013 compared to 2012
The following table summarizes our net cash flowsategory for the periods presented (in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 Change % Change
Net cash flows from operating activiti $ 384,08 $ 318,91t $ 65,17: 20.4%
Net cash flows used in investing activit $(135,50¢) $(201,62) $ 66,11« -32.&%
Net cash flows used in financing activit $(196,82) $ (33,130) $(163,69¢) 494.1%

Net cash flows from operating activities in 2018reased $65.2 million, or 20.4%, to $384.1 millmmmpared to net cash flows from operating actisit€$318.9
million in 2012. The increase in net cash flowsrroperating activities is primarily due to the iease in net income and improvements in our workaygtal, primarily the
timing of interest payments and collection of agdsueceivable. These improvements in working eaprere partially offset by the timing of paymetasvendors.

Days sales outstanding (“DSO”), a key performamckcator that we utilize to monitor the accountsefeable average collection period and assess lbeetkection
risk, was 60 days at December 31, 2013. Through@ii8, DSO ranged from 60 to 63 days. At DecembgP312, DSO was 60 days and ranged from 60 to §5 diaring
2012.

Net cash flows used in investing activities in 2@Egreased $66.1 million, or 32.8%, to $135.5 orillcompared to net cash flows used in investinyities of $201.6
million in 2012. In 2013, business acquisition istieg was $77.3 million less than in 2012, as rguégitions were completed in 2013. During the yeraded December 31,
2013, cash used for capital expenditures was $188lién compared to $125.5 million during 2012.
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Net cash flows used in financing activities in 20i&eased $163.7 million to $196.8 million compmhte net cash flows used in financing activities$88.1 million for
2012. During 2013, net proceeds from our IPO netlafted offering costs were $398.1 million. Dur2@13, we redeemed $450.0 million 11% senior subatdd notes. The
redemption price was 103.667% of the principal amt@tfi the senior subordinated notes. Dividends pakD13 were $56.7 million. During 2013, deferfathncing and other
debt related costs of $30.8 million were paid inrection with the Third Amendment on February 2,2 Principal repayments on long-term obligatiorale during 2013
were $42.3 million compared to $20.3 million dur@@l2.

As of December 31, 2013, the amount of cash antd egsivalents held by our foreign subsidiaries $@®.2 million. We have also accrued U.S. taxes250% millior
of unremitted foreign earnings and profits. Ouenttis to permanently reinvest a portion of thesal$ outside the U.S. for acquisitions and capitaknsion, and to repatriate
a portion of these funds. Based on our curreniegtefl capital needs and the current amount of aaditash equivalents held by our foreign subsiamwe do not anticipate
incurring any material tax costs beyond our acciagdgosition in connection with such repatriatibnt we may be required to accrue for unanticipatéditional tax costs in
the future if our expectations or the amount ohdasld by our foreign subsidiaries change.

Subject to legally available funds, we intend ty paguarterly cash dividend at a rate equal to@pprately $18.8 million per quarter (or an annwerof
approximately $75.3 million). Based on approxima&3.7 million shares of common stock outstandthis implies a quarterly dividend of approximat8ly.225 per share (or
an annual dividend of approximately $0.90 per shake anticipate funding our dividend with cash gretted by our operations. The declaration and paywofeall future
dividends, if any, will be at the sole discretidroar Board of Directors. On January 30, 2014, weaunced a $0.225 per common share quarterly dididehe dividend is
payable February 20, 2014, to shareholders of deasiof the close of business on February 10, 2014.

Given our current levels of cash on hand, antieipaiash flow from operations and available borrgwiapacity, we believe we have sufficient liquidityconduct our
normal operations and pursue our business stratetyg ordinary course.

Year Ended December 31, 2012 compared to 2011
The following table summarizes our net cash flowsategory for the periods presented (in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 3]

2012 2011 Change % Change
Net cash flows from operating activiti $ 318,91t $ 348,18° $(29,279) -8.4%
Net cash flows used in investing activit $(201,62%) $(329,44) $127,81¢ -38.&%
Net cash flows used in financing activit $ (33,130) $ (23,180) $ (9,950 42.%%

Net cash flows from operating activities in 2012mased $29.3 million, or 8.4%, to $318.9 milliampared to net cash flows from operating activitie$348.2
million in 2011. The decrease in net cash flowsfraperating activities is primarily due to an $18#lion increase in cash interest payments and%&8llion increase in
cash tax payments, including foreign income taxnpayts due to higher utilization of net operatingslearry forwards in prior years compared to 20i®tagher domestic
cash taxes associated with repatriation of fore@mings.

DSO, a key performance indicator that we utilizentonitor the accounts receivable average colleqignind and assess overall collection risk, wad®@ at
December 31, 2012. Throughout 2012, DSO ranged @0no 65 days. At December 31, 2011, DSO was §% dad ranged from 58 to 62 days during 2011.

Net cash flows used in investing activities in 2@E2reased $127.8 million, or 38.8%, to $201.6ianlcompared to net cash flows used in investiniyities of $329.
million in 2011. In 2012, business acquisition
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investing was $134.4 million less than in 2011 tugewer acquisitions. During the year ended Deaamti, 2012, cash used for capital expenditures&as.5 million
compared to $117.9 million during 2011, an increafsk7.6 million.

Net cash flows used in financing activities in 20i&eased $9.9 million or 42.9%, to $33.1 millicompared to net cash flows used in financing aaiviof $23.2
million for 2011. During 2012, we entered into #hmended Credit Agreement, which provided for $97#@ilion of New Term Loans, due June 30, 2018. \&feaid the
$448.4 million term loans due October 24, 2013 withortion of the net proceeds from the New Terrari In connection with the New Term Loans we $&i@d.5 million in
related debt issuance costs that will be amortizedinterest expense over the life of the New Téwoans. Also, on August 15, 2012, we announcedahaBoard of Directot
declared a special cash dividend of $1.00 per save paid to stockholders of record as of Audisst2012. In addition, we made equivalent cash gaysnand/or
adjustments to holders of outstanding stock optiorreflect the payment of such dividend and, inregction with such payment, accelerated the vestingrtain stock optiot
that were scheduled to vest in 2013. We used @opaof the net proceeds from the New Term Loansaasth on hand to fund approximately $492.0 miltash dividends to
stockholders (including holders of restricted stagkher currently or upon a future vesting datg) approximately $18.3 million dividend equivaleash payments with
respect to stock options (either currently or updoture vesting date).

As of December 31, 2012, the amount of cash an egsivalents held by our foreign subsidiaries $88.6 million. We have also accrued U.S. taxes18v$ millior
of unremitted foreign earnings and profits. Oueiritis to permanently reinvest a portion of thesel§ outside the U.S. for acquisitions and capiahnsion, and to repatriate
a portion of these funds. Based on our currenieptefl capital needs and the current amount of maditash equivalents held by our foreign subsisame do not anticipate
incurring any material tax costs beyond our acciagdosition in connection with such repatriatibot we may be required to accrue for unanticipatiditional tax costs in
the future if our expectations or the amount ohdasld by our foreign subsidiaries change.

Senior Secured Term Loan Facility.

On February 20, 2013, we modified our Senior Set@edit Facilities by entering into the Third Antement. The Senior Secured Credit Facilities, asifieadby the
Third Amendment, provided for a reduction in the@lagable margins and interest rate floors of alirtdoans, extended the maturity of a portion oftéren loans due July 20:
to June 2018 and added a further step down toppkcable margins of all term loans upon satisfatof certain conditions, which conditions weresfad effective as of
April 30, 2013 and continued to apply as of Decen@ig 2013. As of December 31, 2013, we had outistgrthe following senior secured term loans:

. 2018 Maturity Term Loans in an aggregate princgrabunt of approximately $2.1 billion. The 2018 M#guTerm Loans will mature on June 30, 2018, amal t
interest rate margins applicable to the 2018 Mgturerm Loans were 2.75%, for LIBOR rate loans, artb%, for base rate loans; ¢

. 2016 Maturity Term Loans in an aggregate princgrabunt of approximately $312.1 million. The 2016tiay Term Loans will mature on July 15, 2016, and
the interest rate margins applicable to the 2016ukity Term Loans were 2.25%, for LIBOR rate loaasd 1.25%, for base rate loa

The Third Amendment also provided for interest flders applicable to the Term Loans. The interast floors at December 31, 2013 were 1.00%, f&QR rate
loans, and 2.00%, for base rate loans.

In connection with the Third Amendment, we incurretinancing expenses of approximately $24.2 milfior the soft-call premium paid to holders of tdoans
outstanding prior to the effectiveness of the Tirdendment and $6.2 million for other fees and esps. These costs were capitalized as deferreacfimgcosts and will be
amortized over the life of the Senior Secured Grédcilities, as amended by the Third Amendment.
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On January 24, 2014, we modified our Senior SecGredit Facilities by entering into the Fourth Ardement. The Fourth Amendment provided for a furtieeluction
in the applicable margins and interest rate fladrall Term Loans. As of January 24, 2014, thergdgérate margins applicable to the 2018 MaturgynT Loans are 2.50% for
LIBOR rate loans and 1.50% for base rate loans tlamdhterest rate margins applicable to the 20B6ukity Term Loans are 2.0% for LIBOR rate loand 4r0% for base rate
loans. The Fourth Amendment also provides for @gerate floors applicable to the Term Loans. Titerest rate floors effective January 24, 20140ar8% for LIBOR rate
loans and 1.75% for base rate loans. The Fourthrdiment also includes a soft call option applicablthe Term Loans. The soft call option providesg@remium equal to
1.0% of the amount of the repricing payment inglient that, on or prior to the six-month anniveysarthe effective date of the Fourth Amendment s\ its subsidiary
borrowers enter into certain repricing transactions

In connection with the Fourth Amendment, the Conypacourred refinancing expenses of approximately $billion of fees and expenses which will be arzed into
interest expense over the remaining life of thei@e®ecured Credit Facilities.

Our Senior Secured Credit Facilities bear inteagéstriable rates. The amended and restated ssetared term loan facility, after giving effectth@ Third
Amendment, requires annual principal payments pfeapmately $23.8 million, paid quarterly with badin payments at maturity dates of July 15, 2016Jame 30, 2018 of
approximately $305.9 million and $1,980.7 millie@spectively. The effective annual interest ratesiusive of debt amortization costs, on the teramkbunder the Senior
Secured Credit Facilities for 2013 and 2012 we85% and 5.76%, respectively.

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility.

Our senior secured revolving credit facility progisenior secured financing of up to $201 milliod amatures on January 15, 2016. The senior secawediving credit
facility pricing is based on our total leveragdaatnd the grid ranges from 2.75% to 3.50% for LB@te loans (LIBOR plus 2.75% at December 31, 204r&d the margin
ranges from 1.75% to 2.50% for base rate loanse(ae plus 1.75% at December 31, 2013). We argéregtjito pay each non-defaulting lender a commitrfes of 0.375% in
respect of any unused commitments under the sseaured revolving credit facility. The commitmeegfin respect of unused commitments under the issagured revolvin
credit facility is subject to adjustment based upantotal leverage ratio.

The senior secured revolving credit facility wasltawn for the year ended December 31, 2013, andwdiwn at December 31, 2012. The average dailtanding
balance of the senior secured revolving creditifgauring 2012 was $1.3 million. The highest bada outstanding on the senior secured revolvinditcfacility during 2012
was $19.9 million.

Subsequent to December 31, 2013, we may requeisioadditranches of term loans or increases taévelving credit facility in an aggregate amount tmexceed
$389.7 million, including the aggregate amount 85& 7 million of principal payments previously madeespect of the term loan facility. Availabilibf such additional
tranches of term loans or increases to the revgleredit facility is subject to the absence of default and pro forma compliance with financial enants and, among other
things, the receipt of commitments by existing dditional financial institutions.

2016 Senior Subordinated Notes

On April 26, 2013 we redeemed the entire outstan@#50.0 million principal amount of our 11% SerBrbordinated Notes. The redemption price was BJ86of
the principal amount of the Senior Subordinatedeoln addition, we paid accrued and unpaid inteneshe redeemed Senior Subordinated Notes upitaot including, the
Redemption Date. Following this redemption, non¢hefSenior Subordinated Notes remained outstani¥tegrecorded the $16.5 million subordinated delitpremium in
other non-operating expense. Upon completion ofédemption, we recorded other non-operating expeh$6.6 million for the remaining amortizationtb® balance of
deferred financing costs associated with the Seutrordinated Notes.
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2018 Senior Notes
On October 5, 2010, we issued $500 million aggeegancipal amount of 8 5/8% senior notes that meatun October 1, 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”).

At any time prior to October 1, 2014, we may rededinor a part of the 2018 Senior Notes at a redempprice equal to 100% of the principal amounf018 Senior
Notes redeemed plus the Applicable Premium (asééfin the indenture governing the 2018 Senior $)ais of, and accrued and unpaid interest to tteeafaedemption
subject to the right of holders of 2018 Senior Naita the relevant record date to receive intenestah the relevant interest payment date.

On and after October 1, 2014, we may redeem th8 3@hior Notes in whole or in part at the redempfidces (expressed as percentages of principalianuod the
2018 Senior Notes to be redeemed) set forth belogvgccrued and unpaid interest thereon to thecgippé date of redemption, subject to the rightaflers of 2018 Senior
Notes of record on the relevant record date toivedaterest due on the relevant interest paymate,df redeemed during the twe-month period beginning on October 1 of
each of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage
2014 104.31<
2015 102.15t¢
2016 and thereafte 100.00(

2019 Senior Notes
On November 24, 2010, we issued $650.0 million eggte principal amount of 7 s/ % senior notes thatune January 15, 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes”).

At any time prior to November 15, 2014, we may exdell or a part of the 2019 Senior Notes at amgdion price equal to 100% of the principal amoof2019
Senior Notes redeemed plus the Applicable Premasméfined in the indenture governing the 2019 @e¥otes) as of, and accrued and unpaid interebetdate of
redemption, subject to the right of holders of 2@Ehior Notes on the relevant record date to redeierest due on the relevant interest paymeset dat

On and after November 15, 2014, we may redeemQ@i8 Senior Notes in whole or in part at the redéonpprices (expressed as percentages of principalat of the
2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed) set forth belogvgccrued and unpaid interest thereon to thecgippé date of redemption, subject to the rightaflers of 2019 Senior
Notes of record on the relevant record date toivedaterest due on the relevant interest paymat#,df redeemed during the twe-month period beginning on November 15
of each of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage
2014 103.93¢
2015 101.96¢
2016 and thereafte 100.00(

We and our subsidiaries, affiliates or significahareholders may from time to time, in our solemison, purchase, repay, redeem or retire anyobatstanding debt
or equity securities (including any publicly issugegbt or equity securities), in privately negotibte open market transactions, by tender offertioervise.

Amended and Extended Asset Securitiz:

On August 26, 2013, the revolving trade accountsivable financing facility between West ReceivalléC, a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote direct sidiary of
West Receivables Holdings LLC and Wells Fargo waeraded and extended. The amended and extendet)facivides for $185.0 million in available
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financing and the term of the facility was extentiedune 30, 2018. The amended and extended yaaltib reduced the unused commitment fee to 0.46fb ©.50% and
lowered the LIBOR spread on borrowings to 135 bpsiats from 150 basis points. Under the amendeldeatended facility, West Receivables Holdings Ld&lls or
contributes trade accounts receivables to WestifRddes LLC, which sells undivided interests in fhechased or contributed accounts receivablesdsh to one or more
financial institutions. The availability of the fdimg is subject to the level of eligible receivabidter deducting certain concentration limits eggkerves. The proceeds of the
facility are available for general corporate pugmsNest Receivables LLC and West Receivables HgédiLC are consolidated in our condensed condeliinancial
statements included elsewhere in this report. Atdbeber 31, 2013 and 2012, this facility was undralime highest balance outstanding during 2013 &1@ 2vas $50.0
million and $39.0 million, respectively.

Debt Covenant

Senior Secured Term Loan Facility and Senior Set&evolving Credit Facility—We are required to comply on a quarterly basi aitnaximum total leverage ratio
covenant and a minimum interest coverage ratio mawve Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreementiotad leverage ratio of consolidated total debE€tmsolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the Amended Credit Agreemendly not exceed 6.50 to 1.0 at December 31, 201Bitee interest coverage ratio of Adjusted EBITD@AHe sum of
consolidated interest expense must be not lessiti®&nto 1.0. The total leverage ratio will becomere restrictive over time (adjusted annually utihtd maximum leverage
ratio reaches 6.00 to 1.0 as of December 31, 2@Hih ratios are measured on a rolling four-quarteis. We were in compliance with these finanoialenants at
December 31, 2013. We believe that for the forédedature we will continue to be in compliance lwdur financial covenants. The Senior Secured CFaatilities also
contain various negative covenants, including ltitns on indebtedness, liens, mergers and comasiolith, asset sales, dividends and distributiomsfmurchases of our capi
stock, investments, loans and advances, capitaneifures, payment of other debt, transactions affiiates and changes in our lines of business.

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities include certaistomary representations and warranties, affivemaovenants, and events of default, includingnpent defaults,
breaches of representations and warranties, covdeéaults, cross-defaults to certain indebtednessain events of bankruptcy, certain events ustRISA, material
judgments, the invalidity of material provisionstbé documentation with respect to the Senior SEt@redit Facilities, the failure of collateral endhe security documer
for the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, the f&laf the Senior Secured Credit Facilities to b@aedebt under the subordination provisions ofaiarof our subordinated de
we may have outstanding from time to time and angbaf control of us. If an event of default occting lenders under the Senior Secured Creditifesivill be entitled to
take certain actions, including the acceleratioalbAmounts due under the Senior Secured Creditities and all actions permitted to be taken kseaured creditor. We
believe that for the foreseeable future, the SeBerrured Credit Facilities offer us sufficient ceipafor our indebtedness financing requirement$ @e do not anticipate that
the limitations on incurring additional indebteds@scluded in the Senior Secured Credit Facilitilsmaterially impair our financial condition armperating performance.

2018 Senior Notes and 2019 Senior NeteEhe indentures governing the 2018 Senior Notestla®@019 Senior Notes contain covenants limitalgpng other things,
our ability and the ability of our restricted sutiaries to: incur additional debt or issue ceraieferred shares, pay dividends on or make digtabs in respect of our capital
stock or make other restricted payments, makeindrtaestments, sell certain assets, create liamsedtain assets to secure debt, consolidate, meetieor otherwise dispose
of all or substantially all of our assets, entéoigertain transactions with our affiliates andigeate our subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaviée were in compliance with
these financial covenants at December 31, 2013.

Amended and Extended Asset Securitizatidhe amended and extended asset securitizatidityfaintains various customary affirmative and atdge covenants and
also contains customary default and terminatiowigions, which provide for acceleration of amoumtged under the program upon the occurrence ofioerta
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specified events, including, but not limited tajdee to pay yield and other amounts due, defaitsertain indebtedness, certain judgments, changamtrol, certain events
negatively affecting the overall credit qualityasfilateralized accounts receivable, bankruptcyiaadlvency events and failure to meet financiaisesquiring maintenance of
certain leverage and coverage ratios, similar és¢runder our Senior Secured Credit Facility.

Our failure to comply with these debt covenants mesplt in an event of default which, if not cudwaived, could accelerate the maturity of oueinigdness. If our
indebtedness is accelerated, we may not have igufficash resources to satisfy our debt obligataorswe may not be able to continue our operatisndanned. If our cash
flows and capital resources are insufficient todfmur debt service obligations and keep us in ca@npé with the covenants under our Senior SecurediCFacilities or to
fund our other liquidity needs, we may be forcededuce or delay capital expenditures, sell agsatperations, seek additional capital or restmectr refinance our
indebtedness including the notes. We cannot erntbateve would be able to take any of these actithrad,these actions would be successful and woedohip us to meet our
scheduled debt service obligations or that theerecwould be permitted under the terms of ousting or future debt agreements, including our &eSecured Credit
Facilities and the indentures that govern the n@es Senior Secured Credit Facilities documentasiod the indentures that govern the notes resticability to dispose of
assets and use the proceeds from the disposit®a.rdsult, we may not be able to consummate tigpesitions or use the proceeds to meet our @ebice or other
obligations, and any proceeds that are availablemabe adequate to meet any debt service or ottleyations then due.

If we cannot make scheduled payments on our debtyibe in default, and as a result:
. our debt holders could declare all outstandinggipa and interest to be due and paya

. the lenders under our Senior Secured Credit Fasiltould terminate their commitments to lend usi@eycand foreclose against the assets securing our
borrowings; anc

. we could be forced into bankruptcy or liquidati

Adjusted EBITDA— The common definition of EBITDA is “Earnings Befoirterest Expense, Taxes, Depreciation and Amditiz& In evaluating liquidity and
performance, we use “Adjusted EBITDA” and “CovenAdjusted EBITDA”. We define Adjusted EBITDA as e&rgs before interest expense, share-based contfmensa
taxes, depreciation and amortization and transaciists. We define Covenant Adjusted EBITDA as Atjd EBITDA plus post-acquisition synergies, sltsares and other
impairments, other non-cash reserves, certairatiog settlement costs, noncontrolling interestl excluding unrestricted subsidiaries. EBITDA, Asted EBITDA and
Covenant Adjusted EBITDA are not measures of fimgmeerformance or liquidity under generally acegpaccounting principles (“GAAP”). Although we uAdjusted
EBITDA and Covenant Adjusted EBITDA as measureswfliquidity, the use of Adjusted EBITDA and Cowen Adjusted EBITDA is limited because it does imatude
certain material costs, such as depreciation, aratidn and interest, necessary to operate ounbssiand for Covenant Adjusted EBITDA includes simjients for synergies
that have not been realized. In addition, as déstldelow, certain adjustments included in ourutation of Covenant Adjusted EBITDA are based omaggmens estimate
and do not reflect actual results. For examplet-poguisition synergies included in Covenant AdddsEBITDA are determined in accordance with ouri@eBecured Credit
Facilities and indentures governing our outstandiotes, which provide for an adjustment to EBIT3Abject to certain specified limitations, for reaably identifiable and
factually supportable cost savings projected bingod faith to be realized as a result of acti@hen following an acquisition. EBITDA, Adjuste@H DA and Covenant
Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in is@ator as a substitute for net income, cash flomnfaperations or other income or cash flow datagmegin accordance
with GAAP. Adjusted EBITDA and Covenant Adjusted IEBA, as presented, may not be comparable to silyitdled measures of other companies. AdjustedTEB\ and
Covenant Adjusted EBITDA is presented here as veersiand investors use them as measures of oaribitability to service debt and compliance withvenants in our
senior credit facilities. Set forth below is a raciiation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and CovenaAtjusted EBITDA to cash flow from operations and imeome.
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For the year ended December 3:

(amounts in thousands] 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities $ 384,08 $ 318,91¢ $ 348,18 $ 312,82¢ $ 272,85
Income tax expens 83,55¢ 82,06¢ 77,03¢ 60,47¢ 56,86:
Deferred income tax (expense) ben 2,52t (2,319 (23,71¢) (20,83)) (28,274
Interest expense and other financing cha 257,69t 273,11 272,38: 305,52¢ 254,10:
Allowance for impairment of purchased accounts ikedse — — — — (25,464
Impairments — (3,715 — (37,67 —
Provision for shar-based compensatic (10,55% (25,849 (23,34) (4,237) (3,840
Amortization of debt acquisition cos (24,849 (17,32 (13,449 (35,267) (16,41¢)
Other (99) 432 (232) (652) (37%)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, nbusiness acquisitior (27,627) 36,81¢ 11,952 16,46¢ 80,83
EBITDA 664,74: 663,14¢ 648,81 596,63¢ 590,28¢
Provision for shar-based compensation ( 10,55¢ 25,84¢ 23,34: 4,23 3,84(
Sponsor management/termination fee and IPO b 27,97¢ 4,12: 4,08t 4,18¢ 4,17¢
M&A and acquisition related cos 1,17z 1,652 8,72: 84¢ 132
Acquisition earnout revers — (7,887) — — —
Adjusted EBITDA 704,44 686,88! 684,96 605,90° 598,43(
Acquisition synergies and transaction costs 2,86t 9,701 1,50¢ — 13,69¢
Non-cash portfolio impairments (i — — — — 25,46¢
Site closures and other impairments 1,547 12,24t 2,23: 44,04( 6,97¢
Non-cash foreign currency loss (gain) 3,97( 1,581 (6,459 1,19¢ (229)
Litigation settlement costs ( — 2,66 (89%) 3,50/ 3,601
Covenant Adjusted EBITDA (¢ $ 712,82! $ 713,07 $ 681,35 $ 654,65( $ 647,94
Covenant Adjusted EBITDA Margin (t 26.5% 27.(% 27.2% 27.L% 27.2%
Leverage Ratio Covenant and Interest Coverage Rati@ovenant:
Total debt (i) $3,295,30! $3,838,54! $3,422,58. $3,436,76. $3,577,29.
Ratio of total debt to Covenant Adjusted EBITDA 4.6x 5.3x 5.0x 5.3x 5.5x%
Cash interest expense | $ 212,71 $ 252,78 $ 258,06 $ 237,96! $ 243,40:
Ratio of Covenant Adjusted EBITDA to cash inter@gpense (I 3.4x 2.9x 2.7x 2.8x 2.7x
(&) Represents total shi-based compensation expense determined at fair.\
(b) Represents, unrealized synergies for acquisifioonsisting primarily of headcount reductiond salephony-related savings. Amounts shown are iteginto be added
to “EBITDA” for purposes of calculating our compliance withtaier covenants under our credit facility and théeintures governing our outstanding no
(c) Represents n-cash portfolio receivable allowanci
(d)  Represents site closures, severance, goodwill e esset impairment
(e) Represents the unrealized loss (gain) on foreigioanated debt and the loss (gain) on transactidgtisaffiliates denominated in foreign currenci
() Litigation settlements, net of estimated insurapiEeeds, and related legal co
(g) Covenant Adjusted EBITDA does not include pro foratgustments for acquired entities of $5.5 millior2012, $3.9 in 2011, $(0.1) million in 2010 ar@iCGmillion in
2009 as permitted in our debt covena
(h)  Covenant Adjusted EBITDA margin represents Covedaljtisted EBITDA as a percentage of rever
0] Total debt excludes portfolio notes payable, bakides other indebtedness of capital lease ohtigatieduced by cash and cash equival
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0] Total debt excludes portfolio notes payablet, ihaludes other indebtedness of capital lease@atitins reduced by cash and cash equivalents.Ufpoges of calculating

our Ratio of Total Debt to Covenant Adjusted EBITD2ovenant Adjusted EBITDA includes pro forma athusnts for acquired entities of $5.5 million in 20$3.9
million in 2011, $(0.1) million in 2010 and $2.0lfiwn in 2009 as is permitted in our debt covena
(k)  Cash interest expense, as defined in our cfadiity covenants, represents interest expengelpas amortization of capitalized financing castsl non-cash loss on
hedge agreements expensed as interest under ibe sezured term loan facility, senior secured heimg credit facility, senior notes and senior stdinated notes
o The ratio of Covenant Adjusted EBITDA to caslterest expense is calculated using twelve-morgh o#erest expense. Covenant Adjusted EBITDA ishetupro
forma adjustments for acquired entities of $5.9iamilin 2012, $3.9 million in 2011, $(0.1) millidn 2010 and $2.0 million in 2009 as is permittedha debt

covenants
For the year ended December 3:
(amounts in thousands;, 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Net Income $ 143,20: $ 125,54: $ 127,49 $ 60,30« $ 90,97
Interest expense and other financing cha 257,69t 273,11° 272,38 305,52¢ 254,10:
Depreciation and amortizatic 180,28 182,42: 171,90¢ 170,33: 188,34°
Income tax expens 83,55¢ 82,06¢ 77,03¢ 60,47¢ 56,86:
EBITDA $ 664,74: $ 663,14¢ $ 648,81¢ $ 596,63¢ $ 590,28t

Contractual Obligations

As described in “Financial Statements and SuppléangiData,” we have contractual obligations thayrafiect our financial condition. However, based on
management’s assessment of the underlying prowsiod circumstances of our material contractuagatibns, we believe there is no known trend, destnaommitment,
event or uncertainty that is reasonably likely o which would have a material effect on our fiicial condition or results of operations.

The following table summarizes our contractual gdifions at December 31, 2013 (amounts in thousands)

Payment due by period

Less than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3years 4-5 years After 5 years
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility, due 2016 $ 312,09 $ 1,561 $ 310,53¢ $ — $ o
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility, due 2! 2,063,25! 10,31¢ 41,26 2,011,671 —
8 5/ 8% Senior Notes, due 20: 500,00( — — 500,00( —
7 7/ 8% Senior Notes, due 20: 650,00( — — — 650,00
Interest payments on fixed rate d 489,20( 94,31 188,62t 197,73( 8,53!
Estimated interest payments on variable rate dét 375,22t 82,09( 154,63t 138,49¢ —
Operating lease 139,68: 35,71 41,72¢ 17,58¢ 44,65
Contractual minimums under telephony

agreements (z 31,60( 31,60( — — —
Purchase obligations ( 70,75( 61,40/ 9,34¢ — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $ 4,631,80! $ 316,99¢ $ 746,13¢ $ 2,865,48 $ 703,18

(1) Interest rate assumptions based on January 6,lI2B80QIR U.S. dollar swap rate curves for the nexefixears
(2) Based on projected telephony minutes through 20té.contractual minimum is usage based and couldhesed on actual usa¢
(3) Represents future obligations for capital and egpgirojects that are in progress or are commi
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The table above excludes amounts to be paid fesstard long-term obligations under our Nonqualifie@cutive Retirement Savings Plan and Nonqualifigdcutive
Deferred Compensation Plan. The table also excladesints to be paid for income tax contingenciesbse the timing thereof is highly uncertain. AcBmber 31, 2013, w
had accrued $33.9 million, including interest aedaities for uncertain tax positions.

Capital Expenditures

Our operations continue to require significant talxpenditures for technology, capacity expansiot upgrades. Capital expenditures were $127libmfbr the yea
ended December 31, 2013, and were funded throwsihfoem operations and the use of our various tfedilities. Capital expenditures were $128.4 ioillfor the year ende¢
December 31, 2012. Capital expenditures for the grded December 31, 2013 consisted primarily ofmater and telephone equipment and software pueshaée currentl
estimate our capital expenditures for 2014 to l@pmately $140.0 million to $160.0 million primigrfor capacity expansion and upgrades at exisigities.

Our senior secured term loan facility discussedsabocludes covenants which allow us the flexipiti issue additional indebtedness that is parsypasth or
subordinated to our debt under our existing criediifities in an aggregate principal amount noéxaeed $389.7 million including the aggregate arho@iprincipal payments
made in respect of the senior secured term lo&nr icapital lease indebtedness, finance acquisitioonstruction, repair, replacement or improvenoéfiked or capital asse
incur accounts receivable securitization indebtedreend nomecourse indebtedness; provided we are in pro faongpliance with our total leverage ratio and iag¢icoverag
ratio financial covenants. We or any of our afféis may be required to guarantee any existing ditiadal credit facilities.

Off—Balance Sheet Arrangements

We utilize standby letters of credit to supporoparily workers’compensation policy requirements and certain opeyéases. Performance obligations of certainuo
subsidiaries are supported by performance bondsetieds of credit. These obligations will expitevarious dates through 2014 and are renewed ageeq The outstanding
commitment on these obligations at December 313 20ds $9.1 million.

Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a mateffgct on our results of operations. However,éhean be no assurance that our business will natfeeted by
inflation in the future.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in accocdamith accounting principles generally acceptethéUnited States requires the use of estimat&ssumptions on
the part of management. The estimates and assumptg®d by management are based on our histoxjgatiences combined with management’s understarafiocgrrent
facts and circumstances. Certain of our accourgoigies are considered critical as they are batbartant to the portrayal of our financial conditiand results of operations
and require significant or complex judgment onphet of management. We believe the following repnésur critical accounting policies as contempuldig the Securities
and Exchange Commission Financial Reporting RelBlas&0,“Cautionary Advice Regarding Disclosure About Grél Accounting Policies.”

Revenue RecognitionRevenue for conferencing and event services arergky billed and revenue recognized on a per gigeint minute basis. Web services are
generally billed and revenue recognized on a peicggant minute basis or, in the case of operalicgnse arrangements, generally billed in advamzkrevenue recognized
ratably over the service life period. Hased services are generally billed and revenusgrézed on a per seat basis and alerts and nditifitsaservices are generally billed, ¢
revenue recognized,
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on a per message or per minute basis. We alsoekhents for additional features, such as confegearall recording, transcription services or prsi@sal services. Automated
call processing and agent-based services revemaedgnized in the month that services are perfdramel services are generally billed based on caditibn, hours of input,
number of calls or a contingent basis. Emergenaynsonications services revenue generated primaoly fmonthly fees based on the number of billinggabne numbers
and cell towers covered under contract. In addifimoduct sales and installations are generallggrized upon completion of the installation anémiiacceptance of a fully
functional system or, for contracts that are coitgulén stages, recognized upon completion of stades and client acceptance. Contracts for aneaalning services such as
support and maintenance agreements are generédly ini advance and are recognized as revenuelygtaba monthly basis) over the contractual pesiod

Revenue for contingent collection services and paygment identification and recovery services iogaized in the month collection payments are reselvased upon
a percentage of cash collected or other agreed cpuinactual parameters.

Revenue for telephony / interconnect servicesdsgrized in the period the service is providedahdn collection is reasonably assured. These telgph
interconnect services are primarily comprised afcved access charges for toll-free originatiovisess, which are paid primarily by interexchanggieas.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts.Our allowance for doubtful accounts representsrvesefor receivables which reduce accounts recé&vabamounts expected to be
collected. Management uses significant judgmeestimating uncollectible amounts. In estimatingaliectible amounts, management considers factars as overall
economic conditions, industry-specific economicditians, historical client performance and antitgzhclient performance. While management believepoocesses
effectively address our exposure to doubtful actawhanges in the economy, industry or specifenticonditions may require adjustments to thevedioce for doubtful
accounts.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Goodwill and intangible assets, net of accumulat@drtization, at December 31, 2013 were $1.8 bilaad $231.4 million,
respectively. Management is required to exercigeifstant judgment in valuing the acquisitions mnaection with the initial purchase price allocatend the ongoing
evaluation of goodwill and other intangible assetampairment. The purchase price allocation psscequires estimates and judgments as to cerpettations and busine
strategies. If the actual results differ from tlssuamptions and judgments made, the amounts recordled consolidated financial statements couldltés a possible
impairment of the intangible assets and goodwilleguire acceleration in amortization expense. ¥gedoodwill for impairment at the reporting umitél (operating segment
or one level below an operating segment) on analrbrasis in the fourth quarter or more frequerftlye believe indicators of impairment exist. Goolief a reporting unit is
tested for impairment between annual tests if amewccurs or circumstances change that would iilel-thannot reduce the fair value of a reporting unit beltsxcarrying
amount. At December 31, 2013, our reporting uniseaone level below our operating segments. Thieipeance of the impairment test involves a two-giggress. The first
step of the goodwill impairment test involves comipg the fair values of the applicable reportingtsimith their aggregate carrying values, includgapdwill. We determine
the fair value of our reporting units using thecdisnted cash flow methodology. The discounted 8ashmethodology requires us to make key assumptgrch as projected
future cash flows, growth rates, terminal value andeighted average cost of capital. If the cagyamount of a reporting unit exceeds the repouimigjs fair value, we
perform the second step of the goodwill impairntest to determine the amount of impairment los® Jécond step of the goodwill impairment test imgslcomparing the
implied fair value of the affected reporting unigisodwill with the carrying-value of that goodwiWe were not required to perform a second stepyaisdior the year ended
December 31, 2013 as the fair value substantialtgeded the carrying value for each of our repgrtinits in step one. If events and circumstancas@é resulting in
significant changes in operations which resulbivdr actual operating income compared to projecfedating income, we will test our reporting umit fmpairment prior to
our annual impairment test.
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Our indefinitelived intangible assets consist of trade nameslagid values are assessed separately from goodvadnnection with our annual impairment testingis
assessment is made using the relief-from-royaltthot under which the value of a trade name isrdeteed based on a royalty that could be chargedthird party for using
the trade name in question. The royalty, whichasdal on a reasonable rate applied against forelcsesites, is taeffected and discounted to present value. The sigstficant
assumptions in this evaluation include estimatédréusales, the royalty rate and the after-taxatiatrate.

Our finite-lived intangible assets are amortizedraheir estimated useful lives. Our finiteed intangible assets are tested for recovetghithenever events or chang
in circumstances such as reductions in demandjoifisiant economic slowdowns are present on infalegssets used in operations that may indicateatrging amount is
not recoverable. Reviews are performed to determimether the carrying value of an asset is recilerdased on comparisons to undiscounted expédie cash flows. If
this comparison indicates that the carrying vatuedt recoverable, the impaired asset is writtemrdio fair value.

Income TaxesWe recognize current tax liabilities and assetetam an estimate of taxes payable or refundalifeeicurrent year for each of the jurisdictionsvimich
we transact business. As part of the determinatiaur current tax liability, we exercise considgdesjudgment in evaluating positions we have takeour tax returns. We
have established reserves for probable tax expestihese reserves, included in Icegn tax liabilities, represent our estimate of ants expected to be paid, which we ac
over time as more information becomes available alde recognize deferred tax assets and liabifitethe estimated future tax effects attributabléemporary differences
(e.g., book depreciation versus tax depreciatibhg calculation of current and deferred tax assedsliabilities requires management to apply sigaift judgment relating to
the application of complex tax laws, changes inléavs or related interpretations, uncertaintieatesl to the outcomes of tax audits and changesriomerations or other facts
and circumstances. We must continually monitor gearin these factors. Changes in such factors gsyftiin changes to management estimates and megléte us to adjust
our tax assets and liabilities and record additior@me tax expense or benefits. Our repatrigpiolicy is to look at our foreign earnings on agdiictional basis. We have
historically determined that the undistributed &age of our foreign subsidiaries will be repatréhte the United States and accordingly, we haveiged a deferred tax
liability on such foreign source income. In 2012 weorganized certain foreign subsidiaries to siyjplr business structure, and evaluated our ditpirequirements in the
United States and the capital requirements of orgign subsidiaries. We have determined at DeceBihe2013 that a portion of our foreign earningsiadefinitely
reinvested, and therefore deferred income taxes hatvbeen provided on such foreign subsidiaryiegsn

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-02angibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350 esting Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets forpairment (ASU 2012-
02), allowing entities the option to first assesaldative factors to determine whether it is nsageg to perform the quantitative impairment tefsthé qualitative assessment
indicates it is more-likely-than-not that the fa@lue of an indefinite-lived intangible asset isd¢han its carrying amount, the quantitative immant test is required.
Otherwise, no testing is required. ASU 2012-02 eféective for the Company in the period beginniaguary 1, 2013 and the adoption did not have atefin our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013Rx)orting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumdl&tther Comprehensive Income (Topic 220U 2013-
02), which adds additional disclosure requiremémtstems reclassified out of accumulated other paghensive income (included in Note 14). ASU 20236came effective
for the Company January 1, 2013 and the adoptidmdi have an effect on our financial positionutesof operations or cash flows.

On September 13, 2013, the US Treasury and IR8&dsfual Tangible Property Regulations (“TPR”) untieC Section 162 and IRC Section 263(a). The ratiprs
are not effective until tax years beginning on or
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after January 1, 2014; however, certain portiong reguire a tax method change on a retroactivesptigis requiring an IRC Section 481(a) adjustmelated to fixed and
real asset deferred taxes. The accounting rulesruk8C 740 treat the release of the regulatiorss@sange in tax law as of the date of issuanceemudre the Company to
determine whether there will be an impact on iaficial statements for the period ended Decemhe2@®B. Any such impact of the final tangible pndpeegulations would
affect temporary deferred taxes only and resudt [ralance sheet reclassification between currehtiaferred taxes. The Company has analyzed the®dgenpact of the TP
on the Company and concluded that the expectedcnmpaninimal. The Company will continue to monitbe impact of any future changes to the TPR orCiiapany
prospectively.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK
Market Risk Management

Market risk is the potential loss arising from acbeechanges in market rates and prices, suchexgshtrates, foreign currency exchange rates aaels in the market
value of investments. The effects of inflation ar gariable interest rate debt is discussed befotinterest Rate Risk.”

Interest Rate Risk

As of December 31, 2013, we had $2,375.3 milliotstanding under our senior secured term loan fac#600.0 million outstanding under our 2018 SeMotes and
$650.0 million outstanding under our 2019 Senioteso

Due to the interest rate floors, our long-term gdlions at variable interest rates would be suligentterest rate risk only if current LIBOR ra&sceed the interest rate
floors. A 50 basis point change in the variableiiest rate at December 31, 2013, would have nodhgraour variable interest rate. At December 31,3 the 30 and 90 day
LIBOR rates were approximately 0.168% and 0.246%pectively. As a result of the interest rate foand prevailing LIBOR rates, rate increases orvatiable debt in the
immediate and near term is unlikely.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our Unified Communications segment conducts busiitesountries outside of the United States. Regeand expenses from these foreign operations pieatly
denominated in local currency, thereby creatingoskpe to changes in exchange rates. Generallypweidhedge the foreign currency transactions. Géain exchange rates
may positively or negatively affect our revenue aetlincome attributed to these subsidiaries. Baseolr level of operating activities in foreignesations during 2013, a fi
percent change in the value of the U.S. dollattiredao the Euro and British Pound Sterling woudyé positively or negatively affected our net ogiagaincome by less than
one percent.

During 2013 and 2012, the Communication Servicgesneat had no material revenue outside the UnitateSt Our facilities in Canada, Jamaica, Mexicothed
Philippines operate under revenue contracts deratedrin U.S. dollars. These contact centers reaiite only from customers in North America undenitacts denominate
in U.S. dollars and therefore our foreign curreagposure is primarily for expenses incurred inréspective country.

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid 2&denue from non-U.S. countries was approxingéltes of consolidated revenue in all three yearsiriy
these periods, no individual foreign country acdedrfor greater than 10% of revenue. At Decembe813 and 2012, long-lived assets from non-U.8ntrées were
approximately 9% of consolidated long-lived assetsh year. We have generally not entered into fah@&change or option contracts for transactiomodenated in foreign
currency to hedge against foreign currency risk.aMeexposed to translation risk because our forefgerations are in local currency and must bestaded into U.S. dollars.
As currency exchange rates fluctuate, translatfauo
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Statements of Operations of non-U.S. businessedJrg. dollars affects the comparability of revereipenses, and operating income between periods.

Investment Risk

In 2010, we entered into three three-year intewstswap agreements (cash flow hedges) to conagable long-term debt to fixed rate debt. Thesaps were for an
aggregate notional value of $500.0 million, witkeirest rates ranging from 1.685% to 1.6975% andrecin June 2013. At December 31, 2013, we hadash flow hedges
outstanding.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The information called for by this Item 8 is incorpted herein from our Consolidated Financial $tatets and Notes thereto set forth on pages F-1ghr&-46.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosarControls and Procedures

The Company’s principal executive officer and piiat financial officer have evaluated the Compangisclosure controls and procedures as of DeceBihe2013, an
have concluded that these controls and proceduessff@ctive as of such date to ensure that inftionaequired to be disclosed by the Company inréperts that it files or
submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1834Amended (15 U.S.C. § 78a et seq) (the “Exchawg® is recorded, processed, summarized, and reporthdhvtie time
periods specified in the Securities and Exchangar@ission’s rules and forms and that informatioruiegf to be disclosed by the Company in the repbgsit files or
submits is accumulated and communicated to managemeluding the principal executive officer afetprincipal financial officer, as appropriate tioa timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes to our internal coowen financial reporting during the quarter endext&nber 31, 2013 that have materially affected®reasonably
likely to materially affect our internal control evfinancial reporting. No corrective actions wezquired or taken.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting as such term is defined in Exchange Rue 13a-15
(f). Under the supervision and with the participatof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial officer, we condad an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finaheeporting based on the frameworkinternal Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basedwrevaluation under the frameworkliternal Control—Integrated Framework (1992r management concluded that
our internal control over financial reporting wdteetive as of December 31, 2013.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of December 31, 2013 has beditealiby an independent registered public accogrftim, as stated
in their report which is set forth below and on @&g1.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
West Corporation
Omaha, Nebraska

We have audited the internal control over financémlorting of West Corporation and subsidiarieg (fiompany”) as of December 31, 2013, based oarait
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission. The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial reporting and ftr assessment of the effectiveness of internarobaver financial
reporting, included in the accompanyil@nagement’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion o @ompany’s
internal control over financial reporting basedoam audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedglof the Public Company Accounting OversightiBd@nited States). Those standards require thailareand
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurangetathether effective internal control over finaaagieporting was maintained in all material respe€ur audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemialtweakness exists, testing and evaluating ésggd and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thessgskrisk, and performing such other proceduregeasonsidered necessary in the circumstances. Wevbddhat our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed by, or under the supernvidi the company’s principal executive and ppatifinancial
officers, or persons performing similar functioasd effected by the company’s board of directomagement, and other personnel to provide reaspaablrance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the pegption of financial statements for external pugsois accordance with generally accepted accouptingiples. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includé®se policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheataintenance of records that, in reasonablel dataurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the company; (2) provide reasonable asserduwat transactions are recorded as necessaeyrotpreparation of
financial statements in accordance with generagepted accounting principles, and that receiptisesspenditures of the company are being made ardg¢ordance with
authorizations of management and directors of dmepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance rieggpcevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzeneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcolnover financial reporting, including the poséti of collusion or improper management overrifecontrols,
material misstatements due to error or fraud maya@revented or detected on a timely basis. Alsgjections of any evaluation of the effectivenekthe internal control
over financial reporting to future periods are sabjo the risk that the controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or thadeélgece of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all malerespects, effective internal control over fic&l reporting as of December 31, 2013, basedhertiteria
established itnternal Control—Integrated Framework (199%sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrthe Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the staisdzf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@nited States), the consolidated financial stetets and
financial statement schedule as of and for the gaded December 31, 2013 of the Company and oortrdated February 20, 2014 expressed an unquhéfiénion on those
financial statements and financial statement sdeedu

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP
Omabha, Nebraska
February 20, 2014
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Employment Agreements

On February 18, 2014, we amended the employmeatawnts with each of Thomas B. Barker, Nancee Ry@BePaul M. Mendlik, Steven M. Stangl and Todd B.
Strubbe, to replace the Exhibit A to each suchemgent related to 2013 compensation with a new Hxhibelated to 2014 compensation. Each of Mr. BayiMs. Berger, Mr
Mendlik, Mr. Stangl and Mr. Strubbe is referrecherein as an “Executive.”

The Exhibit A to each of the applicable employmagteements establishes for each Executive baseersapon and bonus compensation for 2014. Eachufixets
current base compensation and the method by which Executive’s bonus compensation for 2014 isutated are as follows:

Thomas Barker Mr. Barker’s base compensation is $1,000,000isH#so eligible to receive a performance bonugdas Adjusted EBITDA for West in 2014. Mr.
Barker's 2014 bonus shall be earned in two tranchesiche 1 will be earned at a rate of $1,77%#&wh million dollars of Adjusted EBITDA up to $7@4nillion of Adjusted
EBITDA. The maximum bonus under Tranche 1 is apipnately $1,250,000. Tranche 2 will be earned atte of $52,966 for each million of Adjusted EBITD#excess of
$704.4 million of Adjusted EBITDA. There is no menxam amount that may be earned under Tranche 2bdihgs calculation is set forth in tabular formablbe

Bonus /Million of

Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA
Tranche 1 $0- $704.4 millior $ 1,77¢
Tranche Z > $704.4 millior $ 52,96¢

At the discretion of the Company’s Compensation @uitee, Mr. Barker may receive an additional bobased on the Company’s and his individual perfoircean

Nancee BergerMs. Berger’s base compensation is $660,000. Shiso eligible to receive a performance bonusdaseAdjusted EBITDA for West in 2014. Ms.
Berger’s 2014 bonus shall be earned in two tranchresiche 1 will be earned at a rate of $1,242&wh million dollars of Adjusted EBITDA up to $7@4nillion of Adjusted
EBITDA. The maximum bonus under Tranche 1 is apipnately $875,000. Tranche 2 will be earned at @ ¢ét$37,076 for each million of Adjusted EBITDA éxcess of
$704.4 million of Adjusted EBITDA. There is no mexim amount that may be earned under Tranche 2bdimas calculation is set forth in tabular formable

Bonus /Million of

Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA
Tranche 1 $0- $704.4 millior $ 1,24z
Tranche 2 > $704.4 millior $ 37,70¢

At the discretion of the Company’s Compensation @uttee, Ms. Berger may receive an additional bdmased on the Company’s and her individual perfomgaan

Paul Mendlik. Mr. Mendlik’s base compensation is $480,000. $lal$o eligible to receive a performance bonusdaseAdjusted EBITDA for West in 2014. Mr.
Mendlik’s 2014 bonus shall be earned in two trascAeanche 1 will be earned at a rate of $399 &hemillion dollars of Adjusted EBITDA up to $704xillion of Adjusted
EBITDA. The maximum bonus under Tranche 1 is apipnakely $281,250. Tranche 2 will be earned at @ 6&t$11,917 for each million of Adjusted EBITDA éxcess of
$704.4 million of Adjusted EBITDA. There is no menxam amount that may be earned under Tranche 2bdihgs calculation is set forth in tabular formabhbe

Bonus /Million of

Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA
Tranche 1 $0- $704.4 millior $ 39¢
Tranche Z > $704.4 millior $ 11,91%
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At the discretion of the Company’s Compensation Guttee, Mr. Mendlik may receive an additional bomased on the Company’s and his individual perforzea

In addition, Mr. Barker, Ms. Berger and Mr. Mendlikll each be eligible to receive a revenue boramseld on West Corporation’s consolidated 2014 revgnowth in
excess of target revenue of $2,789,000,000. Thenwey bonus will be equal to the percentage of exaa®nue growth achieved over target revenue grot$103,145,000
multiplied by the amount of the Tranche 2 bonusiedr Revenue will be calculated in accordance gatherally accepted accounting principles as indudéVest
Corporation’s financial statements.

Steven StanglMr. Stangl's base compensation is $500,000. Hdsis eligible to receive a bonus based on achietvia Communication Services segment net operating
income before corporate allocations and before @imation (“NOI PC&A”). Mr. Stangl's 2014 bonus slhak earned in two tranches. Tranche 1 will be edat a rate of
$1,851 for each million dollars of CommunicatiomB8ees segment NOI PC&A up to $135.0 million of Qoemication Services segment NOI PC&A. The maximunus
under Tranche 1 is approximately $250,000. Trar&chél be earned at a rate of $32,038 for eachiomltollars of Communication Services segment NO&R in excess of
$135.0 million of Communication Services segment IRG&A. There is no maximum amount that may be edmander Tranche 2. The bonus calculation is s#t fo tabulai
format below.

Bonus /Million of

Communication Service Communication Service:

NOI PC&A NOI PC&A
Tranche 1 $0- $135.0 millior $ 1,851
Tranche Z > $135.0 millior $ 32,03¢

Mr. Stangl will also be eligible to receive a reuerbonus based on 2014 revenue growth (excludimgiBube’s intercompany revenue) in excess of tagyenue of
$1,127,091,000 for the Communication Services segriée revenue bonus will be equal to the peregntd excess revenue growth achieved over targehte growth of
$30,448,000 multiplied by the amount of Mr. Staedltanche 2 bonus earned.

In addition, if West Corporation achieves its 2@Liblicly stated Adjusted EBITDA guidance, Mr. Stangl be eligible to receive an additional one-grbonus of
$100,000. At the discretion of the Compensation @dttee, Mr. Stangl may receive an additional bobassed on the Company’s and his individual perforrean

Todd Strubbe Mr. Strubbe’s base compensation is $500,000sHéso eligible to receive a performance bonusdasehe Unified Communications segment NOI
PC&A, at the rates outlined below. Mr. Strubbe’d2®onus shall be earned in two tranches. Tranchil bhe earned at a rate of $741 for each millmtlars of Unified
Communications segment NOI PC&A up to $472.6 millaf Unified Communications segment NOI PC&A. Thaximum bonus under Tranche 1 is approximately $EED
Tranche 2 will be earned at a rate of $81,094 émhanmillion dollars of Unified Communications segrhlOl PC&A in excess of $472.6 million of Unifi€€ommunications
segment NOI PC&A. There is no maximum amount thay iwe earned under Tranche 2. The bonus calculatiget forth in tabular format below.

Bonus /Million of

Unified Communications’ Unified Communication’s

NOI PC&A NOI PC&A
Tranche 1 $0- $472.6 millior $ 741
Tranche Z > $472.6 milliot $ 81,09«

Mr. Strubbe will also be eligible to receive a reue bonus based on 2014 revenue growth in exceasgeft revenue of $1,680,928,000 for the Unifien@unication
Segment. The revenue bonus will be equal to theepgéage of excess revenue growth achieved ovestteegenue growth of $72,234,000 multiplied by éineount of Mr.
Strubbe’s Tranche 2 bonus earned.
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In addition, if West Corporation achieves its 2@iliblicly stated Adjusted EBITDA guidance, Mr. Sthebwill be eligible to receive an additional onex¢i bonus of
$100,000. At the discretion of the Compensation @dttee, Mr. Strubbe may receive an additional bdrased on the Company’s and his individual perforcea

In the event that at the end of the year, or uperBxecutive’s termination if earlier, the aggregamount of the bonus which has been advanced Executive
exceeds the amount of bonus that otherwise would haen payable for 2014 (in the absence of adejmesed on the performance during 2014 (or, icése of
termination, based on the performance during 20t¥4tlae projection for performance for the balant2di4 as of the termination date), then the amof@istich excess may,
in the discretion of the Compensation Committethesi(i) result in a “loss carry forward” which $hiae applied to the quarterly or year-to-date okltion of bonus payable in
subsequent periods, or (ii) be required to be paitk to West, upon request.

Unless otherwise indicated above, all compensatipectives are based upon West'’s or the Unified @amications or Communication Services segmentsiaijmans
and may include results derived from mergers, aitijpms, joint ventures, if approved by the Compgiosmn Committee.
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PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information about our directors and corporate goaace required by this Item will be contained urtierheadings “Nominees for Election to the BodrBicectors,”
“Other Members of the Board of Directors,” “Corpmr&overnance, Committees of the Board of Direttansl information about compliance with Sectiona)agf the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 by our direcéard executive officers required by this Item Wwél contained under the heading “Section 16 (apBeal Ownership
Reporting Compliance” from our proxy statement ¢dfited in connection with our 2014 Annual MeetoigShareholders to be held on May 13, 2014.

Set forth below is information relating to our ewtiee officers. There is no family relationshipgveen any of our executive officers and there aramangements or
understandings between any of our executive offiead any other person pursuant to which any ontvas elected an officer other than arrangemenimaerstandings with
our officers acting solely in their capacities asts Our executive officers serve at the pleastirpBoard of Directors.

Our executive officers at December 31, 2013 wer®l&sns:

Name Age Position

Thomas B. Barker 5¢ Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Nancee R. Berge 53 President and Chief Operating Offic

Rod J. Kempke 48 Chief Administrative Office

Paul M. Mendlik 6C Chief Financial Officer and Treasui

David C. Mussma 53 Executive Vice President, Secretary and Generah€al
Steven M. Stanc 5E Presider—Communication Service

Todd B. Strubb 5C Presider—Unified Communication

David J. Treinet 5€ Executive Vice Preside—Corporate Development and Plann

Thomas B. Barkeis the Chairman of the Board and Chief ExecutivBd®f of West Corporation. Mr. Barker joined Wesir@oration in 1991 as Executive Vice
President of West Interactive Corporation. He wasroted to President and Chief Operating OfficeWafst Corporation in March 1995. He was promoteBr&sident and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in Septembiet998 and served as our President until Jan2@®y. Mr. Barker has been a director of the Comsamge 1997 and
Chairman of the Board since March 2008.

Nancee R. Berggoined West Interactive Corporation in 1989 as Mgaf Client Services. Ms. Berger was promotedite President of West Interactive
Corporation in May 1994. She was promoted to Exeelfice President of West Interactive CorporatioMarch 1995 and to President of West InteracBeeporation in
October 1996. She was promoted to Chief Operatiffiged in September 1998 and to President and Gbrating Officer in January 2004.

Rod J. Kempkegsined West in 1989 as part of the finance groupotighout his tenure at West, Mr. Kempkes has Yaius executive roles most recently as
President of West Direct Inc. from March 2009 ultay 2012. Effective July 2012, Mr. Kempkes wasmated to the position of Chief Administrative Offic

Paul M. Mendlikjoined West in 2002 as Chief Financial Officer &&surer. Prior to joining West, he was a partnénénaccounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP
from 1984 to 2002.

David C. Mussmajoined West Corporation in January 1999 as Vicesiflent and General Counsel and was promoted toufixecvice President in 2001. Prior to
joining West, he was a partner at the law firm atEson & Sederstrom. In 2006, Mr. Mussman becaew@&ary of the Compan
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Steven M. Stangbined West Interactive Corporation in 1993 as @allgr. In 1998, Mr. Stangl was promoted to Prestds West Interactive Corporation. In January
2004, Mr. Stangl was promoted to President— Comupatiun Services.

Todd B. Strubbeejoined West in September 2009 as President—Uh@iemmunications. He had previously held the passtiof President of West Direct, Inc. and
President of West Interactive Corporation betwaén 2001 and August 2006. Mr. Strubbe served asitkat, First Data Debit Services in 2006 and 26{¥founded and
was Managing Partner of Arbor Capital, LLC durir@p8 and 2009. Prior to joining West in 2001, he Wessident and Chief Operating Officer of CompuBawA. He was
with First Data Corporation from 1995 to 2000 asnélging Director, Systems Architecture and Produstdlopment and Vice President of Corporate Planaimdy
Development. Prior to joining First Data, Mr. Stbgbwas with McKinsey & Company, Inc.

David J. Treinejoined West in 2007 as Executive Vice PresidentpGrate Development and Planning. Prior to joinidgst Corporation, he served as Executive Vice
President, Corporate Development and Strategyifet Bata Corporation from September 2006 untilt8eyber 2007. Prior to that assignment Mr. Treineld la number of
responsibilities with First Data Corporation indlugl Senior Vice President from February 2006 to #at?006, President of First Data Government Smhgtirom April 2004
to January 2006 and Managing Director of eONE Qlab&irst Data Corporation subsidiary, from NovemB000 through March 2004.

We have adopted a code of ethical conduct thaiespm our senior financial officers. The senioficial officers include our Chief Executive Offic€hief Financial
Officer and Treasurer. The Code of Ethical Busir@éssduct is located in the “Financial Informatia®ction of our website at www.west.com. To the rixpeermitted, we
intend to post on our web site any amendmentsrtwadvers from, our Code of Ethical Business Corndvithin four business days of amendments or waigerthe case may
be.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information relating to executive and dire@ompensation required by this Item will be contdinader the headings “2013 Executive Compensation,”
“Compensation Discussion And Analysis” and “Comizn Committee Report” from our proxy statemenibédfiled in connection with our 2014 Annual Meetiof
Shareholders to be held on May 13, 2014.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information relating to ownership of our comnsback by certain persons required by this Itenh bélcontained under the headings “Beneficial Owhnigr Of Our
Common Stock” from our proxy statement to be filedonnection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of Shreielers to be held on May 13, 2014.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information regarding certain relationships egldted transactions between us and some of 6liates and the independence of our Board of Doecrequired by
this Item will be contained under the headings &®edl Person Transactions” from our proxy staterieehe filed in connection with our 2014 Annual Magtof Shareholders
to be held on May 13, 2014.

Iltem 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information regarding principal accounting faes services required by this Item will be corgdininder the section Ratification of Independergi®ered Public
Accounting Firm from our proxy statement to bediia connection with our 2014 Annual Meeting of 8helders to be held on May 13, 2014.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Documents filed as a part of the report:
(1) Financial Statement
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimm F-1
Consolidated statements of operations for the yerded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2 F-2
Consolidated statements of comprehensive incoméhéoyears ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and F-3
Consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,&01301Z F-4
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and = F-5
Consolidated statements of stockhol’ deficit for the years ended December 31, 20132201 201: F-6
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem F-7
(2) Financial Statement Schedul
Schedule Il (Consolidated valuation accounts ferttiree years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arid F-47
(3) Exhibits

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on filkhithe SEC, are incorporated by reference inte thport.

Exhibit
Number

3.01

3.02

10.01

10.02

10.03

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Company, dated March 25, 2013 (incorporateteference to Exhibit 3.01 to Formigfiled March

27,2013)

Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Comefiegtive March 27, 2013 (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K dated March 27,
2013)

Restatement Agreement (the “Restatement Agreemetateéd as of October 5, 2010, by and among Wellgd-Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent, West Corporation (“West"ytai domestic subsidiaries of West and the lengarty thereto (Exhibit A, the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement, is included as Exhibit 10.02f@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Fo-K filed October 6, 2010

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated @staber 5, 2010, by and among West, certain domssbsidiaries of West, Wells Fargo Bank, Natit
Association, as administrative agent, Deutsche E2edurities Inc. and Bank of America, N.A., as syation agents, Wells Fargo Bank, National Assaait
and General Electric Capital Corporation, as coddoentation agents, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC adtsche Bank Securities Inc., as joint lead areg
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Deutsche Bank Seesifinc., as joint bookrunners, and the lendemsypthereto, adopted pursuant to the Restatement
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit@Go Amendment No. 6 to Registration Statemerffam ¢-1 filed on August 17, 201

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Creditéxgent, dated as of August 15, 2012, by and amorgf Gterporation, the Subsidiary Borrowers party
thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationadministrative agent, and the lenders party tbetetthe Amended and Restated Credit Agreemetgdda
as of October 5, 2010, by and among West Corparatiie lenders from time to time party thereto #Wlls Fargo Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent (incorporated by referencexbibit 10.1 to Form -K dated August 15, 201:
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Exhibit

Number

10.04

10.05

10.06

10.07

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Description

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Creditékgemt, dated as of October 24, 2012, by and amoest Gbrporation, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent, and the lenparty thereto, to the Amended and Restated CAggleement, dated as of October 5, 2010, by anaha!
West Corporation, the lenders from time to timety#rereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Assooiatias administrative agent (incorporated by refese
to Exhibit 10.03 to Form 1-Q filed October 26, 201z

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Creditéxgent; Amendment No. 1 to Guarantee Agreementddet®f February 20, 2013, by and among

West Corporation, the Subsidiary Borrowers pargréto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, @siaistrative agent, and the lenders party theteto,

the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dateti@stober 5, 2010, by and among West Corporatlua|enders from time to time party thereto and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as admiaiste agent (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to Form -K filed on February 21, 201«

Amendment No. 4 to Amended and Restated Creditékgent, dated as of January 24, 2014, by and amarsg @brporation, the subsidiary borrowers party
thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationadministrative agent, and the lenders party tbetetthe Amended and Restated Credit Agreemetgdda
as of October 5, 2010, by and among West Corparatiee lenders from time to time party thereto #ells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent (incorporated by referencexbibit 10.1 to Form -K filed on January 27, 201.

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2006ng the guarantors identified therein and Leh@ammercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Ach@ent No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fo-1 filed on November 6, 200!

Security Agreement, dated as of October 24, 200@ng West Corporation, the other grantors idemtiffeerein and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as
Administrative Agent (incorporated by referenceeschibit 10.3 to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 2001

Intellectual Property Security Agreement, datedfa®ctober 24, 2006, among West Corporation, therograntors identified therein and Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agentdiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Forr-Q filed on November 9, 2001

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents,rBgégreement and Financing Statement, dated Ggt@8, 2006, from West Corporation, as Trustor to
Chicago Title Insurance Company, as Trustee andnaehCommercial Paper Inc., as Beneficiary (incaafeat by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q
filed on November 9, 200t

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents,rgégreement and Financing
Statement, dated October 24, 2006, from West Basiervices, LP to Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc. (incorporated by referendextaibit 10.6 to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 200!

Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Seciigtgement and Financing
Statement, dated October 24, 2006, from West Telestiag, LP to Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc. (incorporated by referendextabit 10.7 to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 2001

Indenture, dated as of October 5, 2010, among Wesioration, the guarantors named on the signpages thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, with respect &8Hh /s % senior notes due 2018 (incorporated byeafe to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed October 6,
2010)
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Exhibit

Number

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

Description

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 2@¥/1and among 760 Northlawn Drive, LLC, Twenty Fi€entury International Services LLC, Twenty F
Century Crisis Communications, LLC, Twenty Firstiniey Communications, Inc., Twenty First Centuryn@ounications of Canada, Inc., InterCall
Communications, Inc., West UC Solutions Holdings,. | West Corporation, and The Bank of New York letelTrust Company, N.A., to the Indenture, d:
as of October 5, 2010, by and among West Corparatiiee guarantors named therein and The Bank of Wenk Mellon Trust Company, N.A., with respect
to West Corporation’s $500.0 million aggregate gipal amount of & ¢ % senior notes due 2018 (inefed by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to Form 10-Q
dated May 3, 2011

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Septemberlll, 2y and among InterCall Communications, Inc.l\HGonnects, Inc. and Unisfair, LLC, West
Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellon Tr@mpany, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as of Oat&8h2010, by and among West Corporation, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New Yoekdvi Trust Company, N.A., with respect to West @wation’s $500.0 million aggregate principal
amount of €5/ 8% senior notes due 2018 (incorporated by refereméshibit 10.02 to Form 1-Q dated November 1, 201

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 19, 2§§1&@nd among Hypercube, LLC, Annex Holdings HC @eagion, Rubik Acquisition Company, LLC,
West Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellaudt Company, N.A., to the Indenture, dated asabfer 5, 2010, by and among West Corporation,
the guarantors named therein and The Bank of Nexk ¥ellon Trust Company, N.A., with respect to W&sirporation’s $500.0 million aggregate principal
amount of €5/ 8% senior notes due 2018 (incorporated by referemé&shibit 10.02 to Form 2-Q filed on July 27, 201z

Indenture, dated as of November 24, 2010, among,Wesguarantors named on the signature pagest¢thand The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as Trustee, with respect to thle #% kenior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referéméhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed November 24,
2010)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 2®¥1and among 760 Northlawn Drive, LLC, Twenty Ei@entury International Services LLC, Twenty F
Century Crisis Communications, LLC, Twenty Firstiniey Communications, Inc., Twenty First Centuryn@ounications of Canada, Inc., InterCall
Communications, Inc., West UC Solutions Holdings,. | West Corporation, and The Bank of New York letelTrust Company, N.A., to the Indenture, d:
as of November 24, 2010, by and among West Coriparghe guarantors named therein and The Bankeof Mork Mellon Trust Company, N.A., with
respect to West Corporation’s $650.0 million agagtegrincipal amount of 7 sf% senior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referemé&sxhibit 10.03 to Forr
10-Q dated May 3, 201

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Septemberlll, 2y and among InterCall Communications, Inc.l\HGonnects, Inc. and Unisfair, LLC, West
Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellon Tr@mpany, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as of Nowem24, 2010, by and among West Corporation, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New YoeKdvi Trust Company, N.A., with respect to West @wation’s $650.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 77/ 8% senior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referemé&shibit 10.03 to Form -Q dated November 1, 201

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 19, 2812nd among Hypercube, LLC, Annex Holdings HC @oation, Rubik Acquisition Company, LLC,
West Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellamdt Company, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as@fé¥nber 24, 2010, by and among West
Corporation, the guarantors named therein and EBmkBf New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., withsgect to West Corporation’s $650.0 million
aggregate principal amount 07/ % senior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referemé&hibit 1.03 to Form 1-Q filed on July 27, 2012
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Exhibit

Number

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30
10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35
10.36

Description

Management Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2006ng Omaha Acquisition Corp., West Corporationadyangle Advisors Il LLC, and THL Manage
VI, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@BForm 1(-Q filed on November 9, 200!

Management Letter Agreement, dated as of Marcld83 2among Omaha Acquisition Corp., West Corporatf@uadrangle Advisors Il LLC, and THL
Managers VI, LLC (incorporated by reference to bihl0.64 to Amendment No. 12 to Registration Steget on Form -1 filed on March 11, 201:

Founders Agreement, dated October 24, 2006, amaes} Gbrporation, Gary L. West and Mary E. Westdiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Form
10-Q filed on November 9, 200!

Amended and Restated Stockholder Agreement, dateéiidarch 8, 2013, among West Corporation, THLekters, Quadrangle Investors and affiliates of
the Founders (incorporated by reference to Extibié5 to Amendment No. 12 to Registration Staternarftorm -1 filed on March 11, 201:

Amended and Restated Registration Rights and Ceatidn Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2013, anWdagt Corporation, THL Investors, Quadrangle
Investors and affiliates of the Founders (incorpetteby reference to Exhibit 10.63 to Amendment Nbto Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on
March 11, 2013

Letter Agreement regarding confidentiality, datsb&June 24, 2013, among West Corporation and itielnvestors

Lease, dated September 1, 1994, by and betweenTlesharketing Corporation and 99-Maple Partner§hipendment No. 1) dated December 10, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.07 to FdG-K filed February 24, 200¢

Second Lease Amendment and Extension Agreemert datef October 24, 2012, effective as of Novenih@012, between 9®taple Partnership and We
Business Solutions, LLC (incorporated by referetecExhibit 10.04 to Form I-Q filed October 26, 201z

Form of Indemnification Agreement between West @oaion and its directors and officers (incorpoddbg reference to Exhibit 10.66 to Amendment Nc
to Registration Statement on Fort-1 filed on March 11, 201:

West Corporation 2006 Executive Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Forr-Q filed on November 9, 2006) (

Amendment Number One to West Corporation’s 2006cktiee Incentive Plan (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.30 to Form 10-K filed February 23,
2011) (1)

Amendment Number Two to West Corporation’s 2006dtxiee Incentive Plan (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.1 to Form & dated January 3, 201
@

Amendment Number Three to West Corporation’s 200€chtive Incentive Plan (incorporated by referetecExhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q dated April 29,
2012) (1)

Amended and Restated Restricted Stock Award andi&@pgonus Agreement between West Corporation avattB. Strubbe dated February 14 , 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to FAG-K filed February 14, 2012) (:

Form of Option Agreement under 2006 Executive ItigerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl#0to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 2006) (
Form of Option Agreement under 2006 Executive ItigerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit0P0to Form 1-Q filed on April 29, 2012) (1

70



Table of Contents

Exhibit

Number

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46
10.47

10.48
10.49

10.50
10.51

10.52
10.53

10.54
10.55

Description

Alternative Form of Option Agreement under 2006 &xe/e Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencExaibit 10.03 to Form 1@ filed on April 29, 2012
1)

Form of Rollover Option Grant Agreement under 2@3@cutive Incentive Plan (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.15 to Form 10-Q filed on November
9, 2006) (1)

West Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to AmendnNm 12 to Registration Statement on Form S-1
filed on March 11, 2013) (1

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement undentrest Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form
10-Q filed November 1, 2013) (:

Form of Option Award Notice and Stock Option Agresrnhunder the West Corporation 2013 Long-Term lItigerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to Form 1-Q filed November 1, 2013) (:

West Corporation 2013 Employee Stock Purchase Btaamended and restated
effective September 10, 2013 (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.1 to For1C-Q filed November 1, 2013) (I

West Corporation Executive Incentive Compensatiam fincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3%toendment No. 12 to Registration Statement on
Form ¢-1 filed on March 11, 2013) (¢

West Corporation Nonqualified Deferred Compensaitam, as amended as restated effective March®23 @ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.67 to
Amendment No. 12 to Registration Statement on Fg-1 filed on March 11, 2013) (:

Amendment Number One to the West Corporation NolifiechDeferred Compensation Plan dated as of Aptil 2013 (incorporated by reference to Form
1C-Q dated April 29, 201z

Amendment Number Two to the West Corporation Notified Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of Jgn2&, 2014 (1

West Corporation Executive Retirement Savings Rlarended and Restated Effective January 1, 2008ifracated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Form
10-K filed March 3, 2009) (1

Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement (parated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Forn-Q filed April 29, 2013) (1

Employment Agreement between the Company and Th@&nBarker dated December 31, 2008 (incorporatectfgrence to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009) (-

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmfgiteement between West Corporation and ThomasabkeB, dated December 31, 2008

Employment Agreement between the Company and NeRcBerger dated December 31, 2008 (incorporatefgyence to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009) (:

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmfgiteement between West Corporation and NanceeeRyeB, dated December 31, 2008

Employment Agreement between the Company and PaMévwdlik, dated December 31, 2008 (incorporatedegrence to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009) (-

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmfgiteement between West Corporation and Paul M.dlerdated December 31, 2008

Employment Agreement between West Corporation adtB. Strubbe, dated September 28, 2009 (incorpdiay reference to Exhibit 10.07 to Form 10-K
filed February 12, 2010) (
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.56 Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmfgiteement between West Corporation and Todd Bib®#, dated September 28, 2009

10.57 Employment Agreement between West Corporation dede® M. Stangl dated December 31, 2008 (incorpdrhy reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 8-K
filed January 7, 2009) (:

10.58 Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmigiteement between West Corporation and Steventdhgh dated December 31, 2008

21.01 Subsidiaries

23.01 Consent of independent registered public accouriiing

31.01 Certification pursuant to 15 U.S.C. section 724adapted pursuant to section 302 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z

31.02 Certification pursuant to 15 U.S.C. section 724 hdspted pursuant to section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

32.01 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 135@dapted pursuant to section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 200z

32.02 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 135@dspted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002z

101 Financial statements from the annual report on FHOrRK of West Corporation for the year ended Deoen®i, 2013, filed on February 20, 2014, formatted

in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Openasi (i) Consolidated Statements of Comprehenisigeme; (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; (v) Conatdidi Statements of Stockholc’ Deficit and (vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Ficial Statement

(1) Indicates management contract or compensationgslarrangemen
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{th)e Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be signedsooehalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WEST CORPORATION

By: / s/ T HOMAS B. B ARKER

Thomas B. Barker
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman
Of the Board
(Principal Executive Officer)

February 20, 2014

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of the registrand in the
capacities and on the date indicated.

Signatures Date
/'s/ ANTHONY J. DIN owvi February 20, 201

Anthony J. DiNovi
Director

/ s/ PauL R. GARCIA February 20, 201
Paul R. Garcia
Director

/ s/ L AURA A. G RATTAN February 20, 201
Laura A. Grattan
Director

/ s/ M IcHAEL A. H UBER February 20, 201
Michael A. Huber
Director

/ s/ SoreNL. O BERG February 20, 201
Soren L. Oberg
Director

/ s/ GREGORYT. SLOMA February 20, 201

Gregory T. Sloma
Director

/ s/ T HOMAS B. B ARKER February 20, 201
Thomas B. Barker
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer andDirector
(Principal Executive Officer)
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/s/ PauL M. M ENDLIK
Paul M. Mendlik
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer)

/ s/ R. PATRICK S HIELDS
R. Patrick Shields
Senior Vice Presider—Chief Accounting Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors of
West Corporation
Omaha, Nebraska

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of West Corporation and subsidiaries‘@Gbenpany”) as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, bed t
related consolidated statements of operations, oeinepsive income, stockholders’ deficit, and césivd for each of the three years in the period dridecember 31, 2013.
Our audits also included the financial statemehedale listed in the Index at Item 15. These fim@rstatements and financial statement scheduléhareesponsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpan opinion on the financial statements anaéiiah statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards require thailan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetathether the financial statements are free déried misstatement. An audit includes examiningadest basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the éilshstatements. An audit also includes assesbm@ctcounting principles used and significant estia® made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fighstatement presentation. We believe that oditaprovide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statatag@resent fairly, in all material respects, timarficial position of West Corporation and subsidgat December 31,
2013 and 2012, and the results of their operatmstheir cash flows for each of the three yeathérmperiod ended December 31, 2013, in conformitly accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica. Also, in our opinion, such financiahtgment schedule, when considered in relationedésic consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole, presentsy,fai all material respects, the information &&th therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@/nited States), the Company’s internal contkaro
financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, basethe criteria established internal Control—Integrated Framework (1998sued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and opontedated February 20, 2014 expressed an undaatifpinion on the Comparsgyinternal control over financial reportil

/s/Deloitte & Touche LLP
Omabha, Nebraska
February 20, 2014
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WEST CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

REVENUE
COST OF SERVICES
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
Interest income
Interest expens

Subordinated debt call premium and accelerated taration of deferred financing cos
Other, ne:

Other expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET INCOME

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic Class |
Diluted Class L
Basic Commor
Diluted Commor

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic Class |
Diluted Class L
Basic Commor
Diluted Commor

Years Ended December 31

2013

2012

2011

$ 2,685,85! $ 2,638,02 $ 2,491,32
1,260,57! 1,224,45 1,113,28!
945,06 935,39 909,90
480,21 47817 468,12t
32¢ 40¢ 447

(232,939 (269,23f) (269,862
(23,10%) (2,715 —
2,25¢ 977 5,81¢

(253,45) (270,561 (263,60
226,76 207,60¢ 204,52
83,55¢ 82,06¢ 77,03

$ 143,20 $ 12554: $ 127,49
$  17.1¢

$  16.4¢

$ 1.82 $ 2.04 $ (4.0

$ 1.7¢ $ 1.9¢ $  (4.00)
9,98¢

10,40¢

78,87t 61,52¢ 10,98¢
80,31¢ 63,52 10,98¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oetbessolidated financial statements.
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WEST CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Net income $143,20: $125,54: $127,49:
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of ta of $(5,605), $(3,650) and $11,1’ 9,14t 5,95¢ (18,239
Reclassification of a cash flow hedge into earningeet of tax of $1,349, $2,626 and $(3,1¢ (2,207 (4,282 5,18¢
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax $(2,444), $(4,434) and $(4,45 3,981 7,234 7,26(
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax of &{700), $(5,458) and $3,5¢ 10,93! 8,90¢ (5,786
Comprehensive income $154,13: $134,44¢ $121,70°

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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WEST CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale
Trust and restricted ca:
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $9,809 &b, 439
Deferred income taxes receival
Prepaid asse
Deferred expense
Other current asse
Total current asse
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipme
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat
Total property and equipment, r
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLE ASSETS, net of accumulated amortizatmfr$528,936 and $469,5!
OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl
Deferred revenu
Accrued expense
Current maturities of lor-term debr
Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, less current maturitit
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Note 1&
STOCKHOLDERY¢ DEFICIT
Common Stock $0.001 par value, 475,000 shares azgo 83,745 and 62,178 shares issued and 83185823086 shares
outstanding
Additional paic-in capital
Retained defici
Accumulated other comprehensive i
Treasury stock at cost (92 shar
Total stockholder deficit
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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December 31

2013 2012
$ 230,04: $ 179,11
21,67¢ 14,51¢
450,18¢ 444,41
— 13,14¢
36,03: 42,12¢
53,63 38,44
29,99¢ 29,33¢
821,57( 761,09:
1,280,420 1,209,87.
(915,65 (844,97)
364,76 364,89t
1,823,92. 1,816,85:
231,44 285,67
244,56 219,64:
$ 3,486,26 $ 3,448,15:
$ 82,67¢ $ 120,24
113,40¢ 93,14«
249,68: 219,15:
11,87, 25,12¢
457,64. 457,66¢
3,513,47! 3,992,53.
112,47¢ 132,39¢
142,84t 115,24:
4,226,43! 4,697,83!
84 62
2,132,44. 1,720,63!
(2,855,18) (2,941,94)
(12,200 (23,13))
(5,30¢) (5,30¢)
(740,175 (1,249,68)
$ 3,486,26 $ 3,448,15:
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WEST CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caslglérom operating activities
Depreciatior
Amortization
Asset impairmen
Provision for share based compensa
Deferred income tax expense (bene
Debt amortizatior
Non cash gain on hedge agreem
(Gain) loss on disposal of equipm:e
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neusfness acquisition
Accounts receivabl
Other asset
Accounts payabl
Accrued wage
Interest payabl
Accrued expenses and other liabilit
Net cash flows from operating activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired o$$(B50 and $4,78
Purchase of property and equipm
Other
Net cash flows from investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from new term loan facil
Payments on subordinated notes and term loantfes
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of offieg costs
Dividends paic
Payments of lor-term revolving credit obligatior
Proceeds from issuance of l-term revolving credit obligatior
Debt issuance cos
Principal repayments of lo-term obligations
Call premium paid on subordinated no
Payments of capital lease obligatic
Repurchase of common stc
Proceeds from stock options exercised includingssd¢ax benefit
Other
Net cash flows from financing activitit
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN TS
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of period

Years Ended December 31

2013

2012

$ 143,20; $ 125,54
114,69¢ 107 45!
65,58t 74,967
— 3,71¢
10,55¢ 25,84¢
(2,525 1,31¢
24,84¢ 17,32:
99 (432)
(4,542) (22,049
(23,347 (52,20%)
(36,34%) 33,18;
9,30: (8,815
25,99; (5,94%)
56,56’ 19,01(
384,08 318,91(
= (77,269
(128,399 (125,489
(7,110) 1,131
(135,501 (201,62
— 970,00
(450,001) (448,43
398,06 —
(56,672) (510,63
(85,000) (305,80
85,00( 305,80
(30,76() (27,566
(42,309 (20,272
(16,50%) —
= (43
— (1,48¢)
1,36( 5,30¢
© —
(196,82 (33,130
(821) 1,111
50,93( 85,27
179,11 93,83¢
$ 230,04 $179,11:

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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2011
$ 127,49:

103,20°
68,70:

23,34
23,71¢
13,44¢
(4,665)
232

(32,37

(34,857
6,16:
(2,615)
11,39;
44,99;
348,18

(211,639
(117,919
111

(329,44)

(786,300
786,30
(1,029
(17,207

(948)
(5,84¢)
1,84(

(23,180
477
(3,957)
97,79:

$ 93,83
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WEST CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARES)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stockholders’
Stock Capital Deficit Stock Income (Loss) Deficit
BALANCE, January 1, 2011 $ 1§ — $(2516,23) $ (1,029 $ (26,250 $ (2,543,500
Net income 127,49: 127,49:
Conversion of Class L common stock to common s 50 1,675,38 1,675,43
Other comprehensive income, net of tax of $3,54@€¢N.4) (5,786 (5,786)
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan activity,(@8t379 shares distribute 3,101 3,101
Stock options exercised including related tax bienéf24,288 share: 65¢ 65¢
Purchase of stock at cost (33,098 she (2,797) (2,797)
Share based compensat 20,55( 20,55(
Accretion of class L common stock priority retumeference (3,869 (167,70:) (171,56)
BALANCE, December 31, 201 61 1,695,83! (2,556,44) (3,820) (32,036 (896,417
Net income 125,54: 125,54:
Dividends declared (cash dividend/$8.00 per sr (511,04 (511,04)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax of ($5,45@fe 14) 8,90 8,90
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan activity,(i&8,527 shares distribute 4,21 4,21%
Stock options exercised including related tax bién¢?38,507 share: 1 6,43¢ 6,431
Purchase of stock at cost (44,392 she (1,48¢) (1,48¢)
Share based compensat 14,16( 14,16(
BALANCE, December 31, 201 62 1,720,63 (2,941,94) (5,309) (23,131 (1,249,68)
Net income 143,20: 143,20:
Dividends declared (cash dividend/$0.675 per st (56,447) (56,447
Other comprehensive income, net of tax of ($6,78@te 14) 10,931 10,931
Executive Deferred Compensation Plan activity,(68t773 shares distribute 3,301 3,301
Issuance of common stock in connection with outidghpublic offering (21,275,000 share 21 401,01: 401,03¢
Initial public offering cost: (2,967) (2,967)
Stock options exercised including related tax biené218,872 share: 1 2,15¢ 2,15¢
Share based compensat 8,29¢ 8,29¢
BALANCE, December 31, 201 $ 84 $213244 $(2,85518) $ (5309 $ (12,200 $  (740,17)

The accompanying notes are an integral part otthessolidated financial statements.
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WEST CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

1. ORGANIZATION, CONSOLIDATION AND PRESENTATION OF FIN ANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business DescriptionWest Corporation (the “Company” or “West") is ad@zg provider of technology-driven communicatiomvees. “We,” “us” and “our” also
refer to West and its consolidated subsidiariesypgdicable. We offer a broad portfolio of servicesluding conferencing and collaboration, unife@mmunications, alerts
and notifications, emergency communications, bussiggocess outsourcing and telephony / intercorseguices. The scale and processing capacity opimgrietary
technology platforms, combined with our expertisenanaging voice and data transactions, enable m®vide reliable, high-quality, mission-critic@dmmunications
designed to maximize return on investment for dients. Our clients include Fortune 1000 comparaémg with small and medium enterprises in a ¢ industries,
including telecommunications, retail, financial\dees, public safety, technology and healthcare.Haiee sales and operations in the United Statesad2a Europe, the Midd
East, Asia-Pacific, Latin America and South America

We operate in two reportable segments:

. Unified Communications, including conferencing adlaboration services, event services, alertsrantification services and Internet Protocol (“IPgsed
unified communication solutions; al

. Communication Services, including emergency comgation services, automated call processing, i-based services and telephony / interconnect sen

Unified Communications

— Conferencing & Collaboration Service©perating under the InterC&ll brand, we are thgdlstr conferencing services provider in the worlselobon conferencing
revenue, according to Wainhouse Research. We mdraproximately 148 million conference calls in 304 10 percent increase over 2012. We providelemts
with an integrated global suite of meeting services

— Event ServiceslnterCall offers multimedia platforms designed teegour clients the ability to create, manage ritiste and reuse content internally and externally.
Through a combination of proprietary products amategic partnerships, our clients have the tamsupport diverse internal and external multimedguirements.

— IP-Based Unified Communications Solution8Ve provide our clients with enterprise class IPeoasommunications solutions enabled by our teclyyol@/e offer
hosted IP-private branch exchange (“PBX”) and gmiee call management, hosted and managed mutigwblabel switching (“MPLS”) network solutions, ifind
communications partner solution portfolio serviadeud-based security services and professionaicssr and systems integration expertise.

— Alerts & Notifications ServicesOur technology platforms allow clients to find es$s solutions by empowering them to manage ameedelutomated, proactive
and personalized communications. In 2013, we dedivé.4 billion notification calls and data messa@ie use multiple delivery channels (voice, tegsaaging,
email, push naotifications and fax), based on thefgrence of the recipient. For example, we delpagient notifications, confirm appointments anddsprescription
reminders on behalf of our healthcare clients, samtireceive automated outage notifications onlbehaur utility clients and transmit emergencyaguation notices
on behalf of municipalities.

F-7



Table of Contents

WEST CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

Communication Services

— Emergency Communications Servicasle believe we are one of the largest providersnaérgency communications services based on the nunfilBel-1 calls that
we and other participants in the industry faciéta®ur services are critical in facilitating pubsiafety agencies’ ability to receive emergencysdatim citizens.

— Automated Call ProcessingNVe believe we have developed a best-in-class auénhtastomer service platform. Our services allowabients to effectively
communicate with their customers through inbound @ntbound interactive voice response (“IVR”) apations using natural language speech recogneistomated
voice prompts and network-based call routing sesvzi¢n addition to these front-end customer serajg@ications, we also provide analyses that hetpcbents
improve their automated communications strategy. @pen standards-based platform allows the fleikyhid integrate new capabilities, such as mohiliycial media
and cloud-based services.

— Telephony / Interconnect Service®ur telephony / interconnect services support teeging of traditional telecom, mobile and IP tedlagies to service providers
and enterprises. We are a leading provider of landlnational tandem switching services to carti@sughout the United States. We leverage ournetapy customer
traffic information system, sophisticated call iagtand control facility to provide tandem interoegction services to the competitive marketplacauiting wireless,
wire-line, cable telephony and Voice over IntefRsttocol (“VolP”) companies. We entered this martkebugh the acquisition of HyperCube LLC (“Hypet&d) in
March 2012.

— Agent-Based Service®Ve provide our clients with large-scale, agent-dassrvices. We target opportunities that allow agent-based services to be a part of larger
strategic client engagements and with clients foom these services can add value. We believe thatrerknown in the industry as a premium provideéhese
services. We offer a flexible model that includesshore, off-shore and home-based agent capasildiét our clients’ needs.

Basis of Consolidation:The consolidated financial statements include capants and the accounts of our wholly owned anjrityaowned subsidiaries. All
intercompany transactions and balances have baeimated in the consolidated financial statements.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfihatttae reported amounts of assets and liakslisied disclosure of contingent assets and liadslisit the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefimges and expenses during the reporting periogiahcesults could differ from those estimates.

Revenue RecognitionRevenue for conferencing and event services arergiy billed and revenue recognized on a per gigeint minute basis. Web services are
generally billed and revenue recognized on a peicggant minute basis or, in the case of operalicgnse arrangements, generally billed in advamzkrevenue recognized
ratably over the service life period. Hased services are generally billed and revenusgrézed on a per seat basis and alerts and nditifitsaservices are generally billed, ¢
revenue recognized, on a per message or per nbaste. We also charge clients for additional feegtpsuch as conference call recording, transcrig#vices or professional
services. Automated call processing and agent-bss®ites in the month that services are perforametiservices are generally billed based on caditéhr, hours of input,
number of calls or a contingent basis. Emergenayngonications services revenue is generated priynfagim
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WEST CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

monthly fees based on the number of billing teleghoumbers and cell towers covered under confraetddition, product sales and installations aneegally recognized upc
completion of the installation and client accep&anta fully functional system or, for contractatlare completed in stages, recognized upon coioplef such stages and
client acceptance. Contracts for annual recurr@rgises such as support and maintenance agreearergenerally billed in advance and are recogrézetvenue ratably (on
a monthly basis) over the contractual periods.

Revenue for contingent collection services and paygment identification and recovery services iogaized in the month collection payments are resmelvased upon
a percentage of cash collected or other agreed cpuinactual parameters.

Revenue for telephony / interconnect servicesdsgrized in the period the service is providedahdn collection is reasonably assured. These telgph
interconnect services are primarily comprised afcved access charges for toll-free originatiovisess, which are paid primarily by interexchanggieas.

Cost of ServicesCost of services includes labor, sales commissiefsphone and other expenses directly relatedrigce activities.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSelling, general and administrative expenses cbab&xpenses that support the ongoing operatiauobusiness.
These expenses include costs related to divisiaragement, facilities costs, depreciation, mainteaaamortization of finite-lived intangible assetales and marketing
activities, client support services, bad debt egpeimpairment charges and corporate managemest cos

Other Income (Expense)Other income (expense) includes interest expese frorrowings under credit facilities, interestante from short-term investments,
investment gains or losses in the assets heldrideferred compensation plans and foreign curréraasaction gains (losses) on affiliate transastidenominated in
currencies other than the functional currency.

Cash and Cash EquivalentsWe consider short-term investments with originatumiéies of three months or less at acquisitiobéccash equivalents.

Trust and Restricted Cash:Trust cash represents cash collected on behalirolents that has not yet been remitted to themelated liability is recorded in accout
payable until settlement with the respective cBefestricted cash primarily represents cash retbbateral for a workers compensation policy.

Financial Instruments: Cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivablaeaudints payable are short-term in nature andeheatues at which they are recorded are
considered to be reasonable estimates of theivéues.

Accounts ReceivableAccounts receivable from customers is presentedfren allowance for doubtful accounts of approxieha$9.8 million and $10.4 million at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Deferred ExpensesDeferred expenses are for prepayments to supporefeevenue streams and include web confereneingce licenses, prepaid service contracts
and prepaid video hosting services. These prepatgméth be recognized as expense as the assoagieavedue is recognized.

Property and Equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Diggi@t expense is based on the estimated usetd bif the assets or remaining lease
terms, whichever is shorter, and is calculatedhen t
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straightline method. Our owned buildings have estimatedulisiges ranging from 20 to 39 years and the migjasf the other assets have estimated useful bfgkree to five
years. We review property, plant and equipmentrfgrairment whenever events or changes in busiriezststances indicate that the carrying amounhefassets may not
fully recoverable. Recoverability of an asset “hfdlduse” is determined by comparing the carryingoant of the asset to the undiscounted net casls fexpected to be
generated from the use of the asset. If the cayrgmount is greater than the undiscounted netftash expected to be generated by the asset, #a’sasarrying amount is
reduced to its fair value.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets:Goodwill at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was $1,828ll®n and $1,816.9 million, respectively. Intablg assets at December 31,
2013 and 2012, net of accumulated amortizationewB1.4 million and $285.7 million, respectiveBoodwill and intangible assets with indefinite bvare not amortized,
but are tested for impairment on an annual basestést goodwill for impairment at the reportingtuaivel (operating segment or one level below agrafing segment) on an
annual basis in the fourth quarter or more fregyehtve believe indicators of impairment exist. @twill of a reporting unit is tested for impairmdrgtween annual tests if an
event occurs or circumstances change that woul@iikely-than-not reduce the fair value of a repagtunit below its carrying amount. The performané¢he impairment
test involves a two-step process. The first stefh@fgoodwill impairment test involves comparing fair values of the applicable reporting unitshattieir aggregate carrying
values, including goodwill. We determine the fa@lue of our reporting units using the discounteshdédow methodology. The discounted cash flow méthogy requires us
make key assumptions such as projected futureftagh, growth rates, terminal value and a weigtaedrage cost of capital. The second step of thewidlampairment test
involves comparing the implied fair value of théeated reporting unit's goodwill with the carryinglue of that goodwill.

Our indefinitetived intangible assets consist of trade namestlagid values are assessed separately from goodvatinnection with our annual impairment testingis
assessment is made using the relief-from royalthotk under which the value of a trade name isroeted based on a royalty that could be chargedtlord party for using
the trade name in question. The royalty, whichasdal on a reasonable rate applied against forelcsesites, is taeffected and discounted to present value. The sigsificant
assumptions in this evaluation include estimatédréusales, the royalty rate and the after-taxadistrate.

Our finite-lived intangible assets are amortize@raheir estimated useful lives. Our finiteed intangible assets are tested for recovetghithenever events or chang
in circumstances such as reductions in demandyoifisiant economic slowdowns are present on infalegssets used in operations that may indicateatrging amount is
not recoverable. Reviews are performed to determimether the carrying value of an asset is recilerdased on comparisons to undiscounted expédia@d cash flows. If
this comparison indicates that the carrying vatuedt recoverable, the impaired asset is writtemrdi fair value.

Other Assets:Other assets primarily include the unamortizedadeof debt acquisition costs, assets held in n@iifipd deferred compensation plans, and the
unamortized balance of internally developed cagidl software and licensing agreements. The akeftsn the non-qualified deferred compensatiomgleepresent mutual
funds invested in debt and equity securities arcchrssified as trading securities as employees tiavability to change the investment allocatibtheir deferred
compensation at any time. These investments acetezpat fair value with unrealized gains (lossgs§6.2 million, $3.3 million and $(1.3) million fdhe years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectivatpgrazed currently within other income. The undiedyobligation, recorded in other liabilities, ikdwise reported at
the investments’ fair value with adjustments redngah currently within compensation expense. Bothitivestments and the obligations are classifigtbascurrent.
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Deferred Revenue:Deferred revenue includes receipts from customensgpily for web conferencing service licenses,eachosting services and installation fees.
These receipts will be recognized as revenue dwelife of the respective customer contracts.

Income Taxes:We file a consolidated United States income tanrretWe use an asset and liability approach foffittencial reporting of income taxes in accordance
with Accounting Standards Codification Topic 7Mi@ome Taxe§'ASC 740"). Deferred income taxes arise from temagpp differences between financial and tax repgrtin
Income tax expense has been provided on the patitoreign source income that we have determingidoe repatriated to the United States. We reaordertain tax
positions based on a two-step process, wherebydetermine whether it is more likely than not tthe tax positions will be sustained based ortebbnical merits of the
position and (2) for those tax positions that mbetmore likely than not recognition threshold, w@uld recognize the largest amount of tax benkfét ts greater than fifty
percent likely to be realized upon ultimate setdetwith the related tax authority.

Other Long-Term Liabilities: Other long-term liabilities primarily include lidhies held in non-qualified deferred compensatitens, uncertain tax positions and non-
current deferred revenue.

Comprehensive IncomeComprehensive income is composed of unrealizedsgaitosses on foreign currency translation adjestsiarising from changes in excha
rates of our foreign subsidiaries. Assets andlligs are translated at the exchange rates ircedfe the balance sheet dates. The translatiorstmaunt is included in
comprehensive income, net of related tax expenise, he gain or loss on the effective portion afle flow hedges (i.e., change in fair value) isafly reported as a
component of comprehensive income. The remaininmggaoss is recognized in interest expense irsdrae period in which the cash flow hedge affeatsiags. These are
our only components of comprehensive income. Osin flaw hedges matured during 2013.

Share-Based CompensationiVe are required to recognize expense related ttathealue of employee stock option awards anchéasure the cost of employee
services received in exchange for an award of gdustruments based on the grant date fair valuae@fward.

Recapitalization: On October 24, 2006, we completed a recapitalingtive “Recapitalization”) of the Company in a antion sponsored by an investor group led by
Thomas H. Lee, L.P. and Quadrangle Group LLC (8chsors”). Pursuant to such Recapitalization poibticly traded securities were cancelled in excfesfor cash. The
Recapitalization was accounted for as a leveragadpitalization, whereby the historical bases ofamsets and liabilities were maintained.

Conversion: On December 30, 2011, we completed the converdionrooutstanding Class L Common Stock into shaféSlass A Common Stock (the “Conversion”)
by filing amendments to our amended and restatedicate of incorporation (the “Charter Amendméntwith the Delaware Secretary of State. Upon tfieativeness of the
filing of the Charter Amendments, each share ofauistanding Class L Common Stock was converted40t29 shares of Class A Common Stock.

Prior to the Conversion, our equity investors (itke Sponsors, the Founders and certain membenamdégement) owned a combination of Class L angsQlashares
(in strips of eight Class A shares and one Claskdre per strip). Supplemental management inceatjuéy awards (restricted stock and option proganwere implemented
with Class A shares/options only.
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Reclassification of Common StockOn December 30, 2011, following the Conversionpathe then outstanding shares of Class A CommookSwere reclassified as
shares of Common Stock pursuant to the filing ef@harter Amendments (the “Reclassification”). &aihg the Reclassification, all shares of Commarckshare
proportionately in dividends. The Charter Amendrsaiso increased our number of authorized shaneméohundred million (900,000,000) shares of Clagdommon Stock
and one hundred million (100,000,000) shares o§€laCommon Stock. Following consummation of the@usion and the Reclassification, we had oneobiliuthorized
shares of Common Stock.

As a result of the reclassification of Class A coomstock to common stock, references to “Class roon stock” were changed to “common stock” forpalfiods
presented.

Reverse Stock Split On March 8, 2013, we completed a 1-for-8 reversekssplit and amended our Amended and RestatedfiCae of Incorporation by filing an
amendment with the Delaware Secretary of StateaMteadjusted the share amounts under our exednteative plan and nonqualified deferred compeasailan as a rest
of the 1-for-8 reverse stock split. All numberscommon shares and per common share data in thenpeoying consolidated financial statements andeelaotes have been
retroactively adjusted to give effect to the reees®ck split and the changes to the Amended asthiel Certificate of Incorporation of the Compahigo, the total number
of shares of capital stock that the Company hasaaity to issue was amended to 500,000,000, cangisf 475,000,000 shares of Common Stock, parev&u001per share,
and 25,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par @01 per share.

Initial Public Offering: On March 27, 2013, we completed an initial pubfieang (“IPO”) of 21,275,000 shares of common &topar value $0.001 per share.

Dividend— On August 15, 2012, our Board of Directors declaegpecial cash dividend of $8.00 per share tcaliigttp stockholders of record as of August 15, 204
addition, dividend equivalents were credited tdamwl shares in deferred compensation accountsn®@013, dividends and dividend equivalents oR$aillion were paid o
options and restricted stock that vested during pleriod and were subject to the special dividémdddition, approximately $0.2 million of the spadividend equivalent
remains accrued at December 31, 2013 and will mkgsathe stock options vest over the next twosiear

Subject to legally available funds, our intentdgptly a quarterly cash dividend beginning in theoed quarter of 2013. We funded the dividends paD13 with cash
generated by our operations and we anticipate fignfiiture dividends with cash generated by our atpars. The declaration and payment of all futuvédénds, if any, will
be at the sole discretion of our Board of Direct@s each of May 16, 2013, August 22, 2013 and Ntbhar 18, 2013, we paid a $0.225 per common shaeagly dividend.
The total dividend paid was approximately $18.8iolto shareholders of record as of the closeusitess on May 6, 2013, August 12, 2013 and Nove&pb2013,
respectively, for a total of $56.5 million.

Foreign Currency and Translation of Foreign Subsidaries : The functional currencies of the Company’s foneigerations are the respective local currencidés. A
assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreignrafiens are translated into U.S. dollars at figaiod-end exchange rates. Income and expense @enismnslated at average
exchange rates prevailing during the fiscal peridte resulting translation adjustments are recoedea component of stockholders’ equity and otbargrehensive income.
Foreign currency transaction gains or losses a@ded in the consolidated statement of operations.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncementsin July 2012, the FASB issued ASU No. 2012-402angibles-Goodwill and Other (Topic 350 esting Indefinite-Lived
Intangible Assets for Impairment (ASU 2012-02)p®ling entities the option to first assess qualrafactors to determine whether it is necessapetéorm the quantitative
impairment test. If the qualitative assessmentiaigis it is more-likely-than-not that the fair valef an indefinite-lived intangible asset is ldsartits carrying amount, the
quantitative impairment test is required. Otherwisetesting is required. ASU 2002 was effective for the Company in the period bemig January 1, 2013 and the adop
did not have an effect on our financial positiesults of operations or cash flows.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013Rx)orting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumdl&tther Comprehensive Income (Topic 220U 2013-
02), which adds additional disclosure requiremémtstems reclassified out of accumulated other paghensive income (included in Note 14). ASU 20236came effective
for the Company January 1, 2013 and the adoptidmdi have an effect on our financial positionptesof operations or cash flows.

On September 13, 2013, the US Treasury and IR8&dsfual Tangible Property Regulations (“TPR”) untieC Section 162 and IRC Section 263(a). The ratiprs
are not effective until tax years beginning on feeraJanuary 1, 2014; however, certain portions neaylire a tax method change on a retroactive bidsis requiring an IRC
Section 481(a) adjustment related to fixed andaeaét deferred taxes. The accounting rules un8€r 40 treat the release of the regulations asuagehin tax law as of the
date of issuance and require the Company to datermiether there will be an impact on its finanstatements for the period ended December 31, 20f8such impact of
the final tangible property regulations would affeamporary deferred taxes only and result in arze sheet reclassification between current aretrdef taxes. The Compa
has analyzed the expected impact of the TPR o@timepany and concluded that the expected impacinsmal. The Company will continue to monitor thepatt of any
future changes to the TPR on the Company prospygtiv

2. ACQUISITION
HyperCube

On March 23, 2012, we completed the acquisitiohlyferCube, a provider of switching services todetemunications carriers throughout the United State
HyperCube exchanges or interconnects communicatiiaffic to all carriers, including wireless, witiee, cable telephony and VolP companies. The msetprice was $77.9
million and was funded by cash on hand and pastielof our asset securitization financing facilife results of HyperCube have been included irCihvmunication
Services segment since March 23, 2012.

Factors that contributed to a purchase price riesuiit the recognition of goodwill, partially dediliie for tax purposes, for the purchase of Hypdr€included the
synergy related to telecommunication transportscastl new products and services related to IP afmlencommunications.

The HyperCube acquisition was included in the cbdated results of operations from its date of asitjon, March 23, 2012 and included revenue, fiéhtercompany
eliminations, of $92.9 million in 2013 and $65.0lmn in 2012. Amortization of intangible assetgjaired with the HyperCube acquisition in 2013 afd2were $4.0 million
and $7.9 million, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the estimated falues of the assets acquired and liabilities asduah#éhe acquisition date for HyperCube. The fitiited intangible
assets are comprised of trade names, technologycompetition agreements and customer relationships

Amounts in thousands March 23, 201:
Working Capital $ 1,212
Property and equipme 10,11«
Other assets, n 391
Customer relationshir 13,80(
Technology 4,30(
Trade name 56(
Non-compete agreemer 45C
Goodwill 49,72

Total assets acquire 80,55(
Non-current deferred taxe 2,59¢
Long-term liabilities 50

Total liabilities assume 2,64¢

Net assets acquire $  77,90¢

Acquisition costs incurred for prospective acqiosis and completed acquisitions for the years efEember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 of $1.2 milgin7 million
and $4.1 million, respectively, are included inligl general and administrative expenses.
Pro forma

Assuming the acquisition of HyperCube occurredfab®beginning of the period presented, our urtadddro forma results of operations for the yeaded
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, woule leeen as follows, in thousands:

2012 2011

Revenue $ 2,654,40 $ 2,575,71!
Net Income $ 124,87: $ 126,35.
Earnings per common L sh—basic $ 17.1¢
Earnings per common L sh—diluted $ 16.4¢
Income (loss) per common sh—basic $ 2.0¢ $ (4.11)
Income (loss) per common sh—diluted $ 1.97 $ (4.1))

The pro forma results above are not necessarilgatide of the operating results that would havieialty occurred if the acquisition had been in effen the date
indicated, nor are they necessarily indicativeutfife results of the combined companies.
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3. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The following table presents the changes in theyoay amount of goodwill, in total by reportablegseent, in thousands:

Communication

Unified

Communications Services Consolidated
Balance at January 1, 2012 $ 962,98: $ 799,65 $1,762,63!
Acquisitions — 49,72 49,72
Acquisition accounting adjustmer 97C 43 1,01z
Foreign currency translation adjustm 3,38¢ 97 3,48(
Balance at December 31, 20 967,33! 849,51¢ 1,816,85.
Foreign currency transalation adjustme 7,87 (802) 7,07(C
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 975200 $ 848,71 $1,823,92.

The following table presents the gross carrying am@nd accumulated impairment charge of goodimillhousands:

As of December 3:

2013 2012

Gross carrying amount $ 1,861,59 $ 1,854,52
Accumulated impairmer (37,67 (37,67
Net carrying amour $ 1,823,92. $ 1,816,85:

Impairment testing results performed during thettoguarter of 2013 and 2012 indicated that thevaiue of each of our reporting units as calculatering the step
one analysis exceeded the carrying value and tirerefe were not required to perform the step twadyesis for the years ended December 31, 2013 ahd.20

Other intangible assets

Below is a summary of the major intangible assetbweighted average amortization periods for edehtifiable intangible asset, in thousands:

As of December 31, 201 Weighted
Average
Acquired Accumulated Net Intangible Amortization
Intangible assets Cost Amortization Assets Period (Years)

Client Relationships $ 547,86! $ (422,36) $ 125,49 9.5
Technology & Patent 122,09¢ (72,549 49,55( 8.7
Trade names (indefini-lived) 47,11( — 47,11( Not applicabli
Trade names (fini-lived) 27,41« (20,389 7,02t 4.3
Other intangible asse 15,89 (13,63)) 2,26° 4.3
Total $ 760,37 $ (528,93 $ 231,44 8.4
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As of December 31, 201 Weighted
Average
Acquired Accumulated Net Intangible Amortization
Intangible assets Cost Amortization Assets Period (Years)

Client Relationships $ 544,27 $ (382,359 $ 161,91 9.5
Technology & Patent 120,60t (57,769 62,83¢ 8.7
Trade names (indefini-lived) 47,11( — 47,11( Not applicabli
Trade names (fini-lived) 27,31¢ (16,760) 10,55¢ 4.3
Other intangible asse 15,89¢ (12,64°) 3,251 4.3
Total $ 755,20¢ $ (469,539 $ 285,67 8.4

Amortization expense for finite-lived intangiblesass was $55.3 million, $65.8 million and $61.7liwil for the years ended December 31, 2013, 20@i2811,
respectively. Estimated amortization expense ifions for the next five years for intangible asdstas follows:

2014 $ 45.9 millior
2015 $ 37.3 millior
2016 $ 27.8 millior
2017 $ 20.9 millior
2018 $ 18.3 millior

The trade name intangible asset for three acquisit{InterCall in 2003, Intrado, Inc. (“Intradot) 2006 and TeleVox in 2007) have been determinddte an
indefinite life based on management’s current itibers. If factors were to change that would indictite need to assign a finite life to these asa&tsyill do so and will
commence amortization. During the fourth quarte2@f3, we performed our annual impairment analigsithese trade names using the relief-from-royaigthodology. No
trade names were determined to be impaired dufig.2

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment, at cost, in thousands,istexsof the following as of:

December 31

2013 2012

Land and improvements $ 8,20¢ $ 8,20¢
Buildings 105,85( 103,86¢
Telephone and computer equipm 943,07¢ 881,88t
Office furniture and equipme! 67,60¢ 67,371
Leasehold improvemen 109,28t 106,02:
Construction in progres 46,39! 42 51!
$ 1,280,42 $ 1,209,87.

We lease certain land, buildings and equipment uaperating leases which expire at varying datesutgh December 2029. Rent expense on operatingdeeas
approximately $46.9 million, $49.5 million and $82nillion for the years ended December 31, 2013228nd 2011, respectively, exclusive of relatedypi@ase expense. On
all real estate leases, we pay real estate tan@s;ance and maintenance associated with the ls@ssdCertain of the leases offer extension agtianging from month-to-
month to five years.
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Future minimum payments under non-cancelable opgriases with initial or remaining terms of oremyor more, in thousands, are as follows:

Non- Related
Related Party
Party Operating Operating Total

Operating

Year Ending December 31 Leases Lease Leases
2014 $ 34,06: $ 36E $ 34,427
2015 24,31¢ 36& 24,68
2016 16,14¢ 36& 16,51(
2017 10,42( 30E 10,72¢
2018 6,86¢ — 6,86¢
2019 and thereafte 44,65: — 44,65:
Total minimum obligation: $ 136,46: $ 1,40C $137,86:

5. ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses, in thousands, consisted of tlviag as of:

December 31

2013 2012
Accrued wages $ 61,75¢ $ 47,24(
Interest payabl 48,79: 42,21¢
Accrued phont 48,20: 36,10t
Accrued other taxes (n-income related 42,02: 38,60¢
Deferred income ta 7,69 —
Accrued employee benefit co: 6,17¢ 11,41
Accrued lease expen 3,20¢ 8,39:
Income taxes payab 5,92 4,33¢
Other current liabilitie 25,90¢ 30,84
$249,68. $219,15:

6. RELATED PARTIES
Management Services

Prior to the IPO, affiliates of our Sponsors pr@ddnanagement and advisory services to us purtu#m terms of a management agreement we entei@dith such
affiliates in connection with the consummation e Recapitalization. Pursuant to the managemeetawnt and a management letter agreement we enteyedth affiliates
of the Sponsors, dated March 8, 2013, upon conapletf the Offering, we paid to the Sponsors $24il0an and the management agreement, in accordastbeits terms, wa
terminated. The aggregate fees for services anenmgs for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2882011 were $25.3 million, $4.1 million and $hiflion, respectively

Lease

We lease certain office space owned by a partnemhose partners own approximately 18% of our comstock at December 31, 2013. Related party legsense
was approximately $0.4 million for the year endezt®mber 31, 2013 and $0.7 million for the yearsdridecember 31, 2012 and 2011. The lease expi2&lin. The lease
contains a change of control provision which presi@ither party, with ninety day notice, an opfionearly termination of the lease effective Aug8%t 2014 in the event of a
change of control.
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7. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations, in thousands, consistedheffollowing as of:

December 31

2013 2012
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility, due 2016 $ 312,09 $ 1,452,501
Senior Secured Term Loan Facility, due 2! 2,063,25! 965,15(
11% Senior Subordinated Notes, paid in 2 — 450,00(
8 5/ 8% Senior Notes, due 20: 500,00( 500,00(
7 7/ 8% Senior Notes, due 20: 650,00( 650,00(

3,5625,34 4,017,65!
Less: current maturitie (11,87)) (25,125
Long-term obligations $ 3,513,47 $ 3,992,53.

On February 20, 2013, the Company, Wells Fargo Bilakional Association (“Wells Fargo”), as adminggive agent, and the various lenders party theretdified
our senior secured credit facilities (“Senior Secu€Credit Facilities”) by entering into Amendmera.N8 to Amended and Restated Credit Agreement‘{thied
Amendment”), amending our Amended and RestatediCkgdeement, dated as of October 5, 2010, by andrg West, Wells Fargo, as administrative agent,the various
lenders party thereto, as lenders (as amended Bndment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Credit Ageagrdated as of August 15, 2012, Amendment No.Anended
and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of Oc®he2012, and the Third Amendment, the “Credit Agnent”).

The Third Amendment provided for a reduction in #mplicable margins and interest rate floors ofelin loans, extended the maturity of a portiothefterm loans
due July 2016 to June 2018 and added a furtherdstep to the applicable margins of all term loapsmsatisfaction of certain conditions. As of Debem31, 2013, we had
outstanding the following senior secured term loans

. Term loans in an aggregate principal amount of aaprately $2.1 billion (the “2018 Maturity Term Log"). The 2018 Maturity Term Loans will mature on
June 30, 2018, and the interest rate margins aipéido the 2018 Maturity Term Loans were 2.75%H8OR rate loans, and 1.75%, for base rate loand

. Term loans in an aggregate principal amount of aaprately $312.1 million (the “2016 Maturity Ternokns"and, together with the 2018 Maturity Term Loz
the “Term Loans”). The 2016 Maturity Term Loanslwilature on July 15, 2016, and the interest rategina applicable to the 2016 Maturity Term Loanseve
2.25%, for LIBOR rate loans, and 1.25%, for base l@ans

The interest rate margins are subject to a 0.5@¥ease in the event our leverage ratio as of tdeoéour quarterly reporting period exceeds 4. TR1As of
December 31, 2013, our total leverage ratio wastlesn the 4.75:1.00. The Credit Agreement alswigeal for interest rate floors applicable to therméd.oans. The interest
rate floors are 1.00%, for LIBOR rate loans, ar@D%, for base rate loans.

In connection with the Third Amendment, we incurretinancing expenses of approximately $24.2 milfior the soft-call premium paid to holders of tdoans
outstanding prior to the effectiveness of the Tirdendment and $6.2 million for other fees and esps. These costs were capitalized as deferreacfimgcosts and will be
amortized over the life of the Credit Agreement.
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Interest expense, the call premium on the subotelihdebt call premium and accelerated amortizaifateferred financing costs recorded during 2003,2and 2011
on these long-term obligations was approximate&6$2 million, $271.9 million and $267.7 million,seectively.

Future maturities of long-term debt, in thousarsas;

Year Ending December 31 Amount

2014 $ 11,87°
2015 $ 23,75:
2016 $ 328,04t
2017 $ 20,63:
2018 $ 2,491,03
Thereaftel $  650,00(

Senior Secured Term Loan Facility.

Our senior secured term loan facility bears intea¢sariable rates. The amended and restatedrssatared term loan facility, after giving effegtthe Third
Amendment, requires annual principal payments pfapmately $23.8 million, paid quarterly with badin payments at maturity dates of July 15, 2016Jame 30, 2018 of
approximately $305.9 million and $1,980.7 millia@spectively. The effective annual interest rateslusive of debt amortization costs, on the sesémured term loan facility
for 2013 and 2012 were 4.85% and 5.76%, respeygtivel

On January 24, 2014, we modified the Credit Agregrbg entering into Amendment No. 4 to Amended Redtated Credit Agreement among West Corporation,
certain of our domestic subsidiaries, Wells FargolB National Association, as administrative agant the various lenders party thereto (the “FoArtrendment”the Credi
Agreement, as amended by the Fourth AmendmentAtinended Credit Agreement”). The Fourth Amendmemiviled for a further reduction in the applicablargins and
interest rate floors of all Term Loans. As of Jayu4, 2014, the interest rate margins applicablihé 2018 Maturity Term Loans are 2.50% for LIB&i® loans and 1.50%
for base rate loans, and the interest rate maggipicable to the 2016 Maturity Term Loans are 2f0%4.IBOR rate loans and 1.0% for base rate lodh Fourth
Amendment also provides for interest rate floongliapble to the Term Loans. The interest rate Boeffective January 24, 2014 are 0.75% for LIBOf taans and 1.75% for
base rate loans. The Fourth Amendment also incladedt call option applicable to the Term Loanise Boft call option provides for a premium equal &% of the amount
the repricing payment in the event that, on ormiacthe six-month anniversary of the effectiveedat the Fourth Amendment, West or its subsidianydwers enter into
certain repricing transactions.

In connection with the Fourth Amendment, we incdmrefinancing expenses of approximately $5.6 nrilldd fees and expenses which will be amortized iintierest
expense over the remaining life of the Amended Esgreement.

Senior Secured Revolving Credit Facility.

Our senior secured term revolving credit faciligabs interest at variable rates. Our senior seaengulving credit facilities provide senior secuffethncing of up to
$201 million and matures on January 15, 2016. Eiméos secured revolving credit facility pricingbased on our total leverage ratio and the gridearfigom 2.75% to 3.50%
for LIBOR rate loans (LIBOR plus 2.75% at DecemBg&r 2013), and the margin ranges
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from 1.75% to 2.50% for base rate loans (baseplate1.75% at December 31, 2013). We are requirgay each nodefaulting lender a commitment fee of 0.375% irpee:
of any unused commitments under the senior seceraxving credit facility. The commitment fee inspeect of unused commitments under the senior secawlving credit
facility is subject to adjustment based upon otaltieverage ratio.

The senior secured revolving credit facility wasltawn for the year ended December 31, 2013, anchumdat December 31, 2012. The average daily muditg
balance of the senior secured revolving creditifgauring 2012 was $1.3 million. The highest bata outstanding on the senior secured revolvinditcfacility during 2012
was $19.9 million.

2016 Senior Subordinated Notes

On April 26, 2013, we redeemed the entire outstan@450.0 million principal amount of our 11% Serubordinated Notes (“Senior Subordinated NoteRig
redemption price was 103.667% of the principal ami@di the Senior Subordinated Notes. In additioa,paid accrued and unpaid interest on the rede&waeidr
Subordinated Notes up to, but not including, thedraption Date. Following this redemption, nonehaf Senior Subordinated Notes remained outstanWifegrecorded the
$16.5 million subordinated debt call premium inesthon-operating expense. Upon completion of tdemgption, we recorded other non-operating expeh$6.6 million for
the remaining amortization of the balance of deféfinancing costs associated with the Senior Slibated Notes.

2018 Senior Notes
On October 5, 2010, we issued $500 million aggeegancipal amount of 8 5/8% senior notes that meatun October 1, 2018 (the “2018 Senior Notes”).

At any time prior to October 1, 2014, we may rededinor a part of the 2018 Senior Notes at a redempprice equal to 100% of the principal amounf018 Senior
Notes redeemed plus the applicable premium (asetkin the indenture governing the 2018 Senior $)ae of, and accrued and unpaid interest to, dtee af redemptior
subject to the rights of holders of 2018 Seniordsain the relevant record date to receive inteh@ston the relevant interest payment date.

On and after October 1, 2014, we may redeem th8 3@hior Notes in whole or in part at the redempfidces (expressed as percentages of principalianod the
2018 Senior Notes to be redeemed) set forth belogvgrccrued and unpaid interest thereon to thecgippé date of redemption, subject to the righteafiers of 2018 Senior
Notes of record on the relevant record date toivedaterest due on the relevant interest paymate,df redeemed during the twe-month period beginning on October 1 of
each of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage
2014 104.31:
2015 102.15t¢
2016 and thereafte 100.00(

2019 Senior Notes
On November 24, 2010, we issued $650 million agagegrincipal amount of 7 s/ % senior notes thatumeafanuary 15, 2019 (the “2019 Senior Notes”).
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At any time prior to November 15, 2014, we may exdall or a part of the 2019 Senior Notes at amgdion price equal to 100% of the principal amoof2019
Senior Notes redeemed plus the applicable premasnaléfined in the indenture governing the 2019 @d¥idtes) as of, and accrued and unpaid intereséodate of
redemption, subject to the rights of holders of28&nior Notes on the relevant record date to vedaterest due on the relevant interest paymetet da

On and after November 15, 2014, we may redeemQ@i8 Senior Notes in whole or in part at the redéonpprices (expressed as percentages of principalat of the
2019 Senior Notes to be redeemed) set forth belosvgccrued and unpaid interest thereon to thecgtye date of redemption, subject to the rightkalfiers of 2019 Senior
Notes of record on the relevant record date toivedaterest due on the relevant interest paymate,df redeemed during the twe-month period beginning on November 15
of each of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage
2014 103.93¢
2015 101.96¢
2016 and thereafte 100.00¢

We and our subsidiaries, affiliates or significahareholders may from time to time, in our andrttiscretion, purchase, repay, redeem or retirecdmyr outstanding
debt or equity securities (including any publicdgued debt or equity securities), in privately rieged or open market transactions, by tender affetherwise.

Amended and Extended Asset Securitiz:

On August 26, 2013, the revolving trade accountsivable financing facility between West ReceivalleéC, a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote direct sidiary of
West Receivables Holdings LLC and Wells Fargo waeraded and extended. The amended and extendeat) familvides for $185.0 million in available finang and the
term of the facility was extended to June 30, 20k& amended and extended facility also reducedniised commitment fee to 0.45% from 0.50% and ted/¢éhe LIBOR
spread on borrowings to 135 basis points from l&shpoints. Under the amended and extended fadlest Receivables Holdings LLC sells or contrdsutrade accounts
receivables to West Receivables LLC, which selldivided interests in the purchased or contributmbants receivables for cash to one or more firgmgstitutions. The
availability of the funding is subject to the lewdleligible receivables after deducting certain@entration limits and reserves. The proceedsefahility are available for
general corporate purposes. West Receivables LIdOAest Receivables Holdings LLC are included in @solidated financial statements included elsegvhrethis report.
At December 31, 2013 and 2012 this facility wasramah. The highest outstanding balance during 2032912 was $50.0 million and $39.0 million, regpesty.

Debt Covenant Complianc

Senior Secured Term Loan Facility and Senior Set&®evolving Credit Facility—We are required to comply on a quarterly basi witmaximum total leverage ratio
covenant and a minimum interest coverage ratiomane Pursuant to the Amended Credit Agreementatiaé leverage ratio of consolidated total debEtmsolidated
EBITDA (as defined in the Amended Credit Agreemendly not exceed 6.50 to 1.0 at December 31, 201Bttee interest coverage ratio of Consolidated EB\To the sum
of consolidated interest expense must be not hkess1.85 to 1.0. The total leverage ratio will leeamore restrictive over time (adjusted annuallyl tihe maximum leverage
ratio reaches 6.00 to 1.0 in 2015). Both ratiosnae@sured on a rolling four-quarter basis. The @e®écured Credit Facilities also contain varioegative covenants,
including
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limitations on indebtedness, liens, mergers andalations, asset sales, dividends and distribatar repurchases of our capital stock, investmérass and advances,
capital expenditures, payment of other debt, arahghs in our lines of business.

The Senior Secured Credit Facilities include certaistomary representations and warranties, affivmaovenants, and events of default, includingnpent defaults,
breaches of representations and warranties, covepéaults, cross-defaults to certain indebtednemsain events of bankruptcy, certain events uBRISA, material
judgments, the invalidity of material provisionstbé documentation with respect to the Senior SEt@redit Facilities, the failure of collateral endhe security documer
for the Senior Secured Credit Facilities, the f&laf the Senior Secured Credit Facilities to b@aedebt under the subordination provisions ofaiarof our subordinated de
we may have outstanding from time to time and angbaf control of us. If an event of default occting lenders under the Senior Secured Creditifesivill be entitled to
take certain actions, including the acceleratioalbAmounts due under the Senior Secured Creditities and all actions permitted to be taken kseaured creditor.

2018 Senior Notes and 2019 Senior NeteBhe 2018 Senior Notes and the 2019 Senior NotiEnitures contain covenants limiting, among othieigh) our ability and
the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to: inadditional debt or issue certain preferred sharag dividends on or make distributions in respéaiur capital stock or make
other restricted payments, make certain investmeetscertain assets, create liens on certairtsigssecure debt, consolidate, merge, sell, eratise dispose of all or
substantially all of our assets, enter into certensactions with our affiliates and designatesubsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries.

Amended and Extended Asset Securitizatidhe amended and extended asset securitizatidityfagintains various customary affirmative and atge covenants and
also contains customary default and terminatiowigions, which provide for acceleration of amoumtged under the program upon the occurrence ofinesteecified events,
including, but not limited to, failure to pay yiedthd other amounts due, defaults on certain indeletes, certain judgments, changes in control, ioegteents negatively
affecting the overall credit quality of collatemd accounts receivable, bankruptcy and insolverents and failure to meet financial tests reqgirmaintenance of certain
leverage and coverage ratios, similar to those uodgieSenior Secured Credit Facility.

8. HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Periodically, we have entered into interest ratapswo hedge the cash flows from our variabledatst, which effectively converts the hedged portiader our
outstanding senior secured term loan facility xedi rate debt. The initial assessments of hedgetaféness were performed using regression anallisesperiodic
measurements of hedge ineffectiveness are perfoasiad the change in variable cash flows method.

The cash flow hedges were recorded at fair valtle acorresponding entry, net of taxes, recordaathier comprehensive income (“OCI”) until earningsre affected
by the hedged item. In June 2013, three interéstsiaps with a notional value of $500.0 milliontarad. The interest rate on these three interéstsmaps ranged from
1.685% to 1.6975%. At December 31, 2013, we dichawe any interest rate swaps.

The following table presents, in thousands, thevaiue of the Company’s derivatives and consodéiddialance sheet location.

Liability Derivatives

2012
Balance Sheet Locatior Fair Value

Derivatives designated as hedging instrume

Interest rate swag Accrued expens $  2,34¢
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The following presents, in thousands, the impadhtfrest rate swaps on the consolidated stateroéoserations for 2013, 2012 and 2011, respegtivel

Derivatives designated as hedging instrumen

Interest rate swaps

Location of (gain) loss reclassified from OCI intonet income

Interest expense

9. INCOME TAXES

Amount of gain (loss)
recognized in earnings
on hedges (ineffective portion)
for the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011
$1,78¢ $2,95( $726( $ — $ — $ 20

Amount of gain recognized in
OCI for the years ended
December 31,

LS}

Amount of gain
(loss) reclassified
from OCI into earnings for
the years ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
$ 3,55( $(6,910 $ (5,189

For financial reporting purposes, income befor@me taxes includes the following components:

Income before income taxe
United State:
Foreign

Components of income tax expense, in thousandg agefollows:

Current income tax expens
Federa
State
Foreign

Deferred income tax expense (bene
Federa
State
Foreign

Total income tax expen:

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

$ 82,86t $ 69,36! $ 57,33¢
143,89t 138,24t 147,18t
$ 226,76: $ 207,60¢ $ 204,52°

Year Ended December 31
2013 2012 2011

$32,01¢ $41,11: $ 3,45¢€

5,99¢ 6,30% 5,321
48,07( 33,33 44,54
86,08« 80,75( 53,31¢
4,16: (5,689) 26,18:
357 (48¢) 2,75(
(7,045) 7,49¢ (5,213)
(2,525 1,31¢ 23,71¢

$83,55¢ $82,06¢ $77,03¢
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A reconciliation of income tax expense computestatutory tax rates compared to effective incomeates was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2013
Statutory rate 35.(%
Federal tax credit (2.€%)
Uncertain tax position 2.2%
Foreign rate differentie (5.5%)
Foreign deferred tax liability on unremitted eags! 7.5%
State income taxes, net of Federal ber 1.7%
Change in valuation allowan: (0.€%)
Non-deductible meal 0.2%
Share based compensat (0.1%)
Other (0.79%0)

36.8%

2012
35.(%
(0.€%)
0.2%
(4.C%)
9.1%
2.0%
(1.7%)
0.5%
0.C%
(0.5%)
39.5%

2011
35.(%
(1.C%)
(0.6%)
(5.3%)
8.%%
1.6%
(2.6%)
0.2%
1.9%
(0.4%)
37.%

In 2013, 2012, and 2011, income tax benefits attable to employee stock option transactions d $illion, $15.6 million and $1.4 million, respeatily were

allocated to shareholders’ equity.

Significant temporary differences between repofieancial and taxable earnings that give rise tieided income tax assets and liabilities, in thodsawere as

follows:

Deferred income tax asse
Net operating loss carryforwar
Benefit plans
Accrued expense
Tax credits
Interest rate hedge activiti
Reserves not currently deductible for tax purpc
Allowance for doubtful accoun
Foreign currency translatic
Other
Gross deferred income tax ass
Less valuation allowanc
Total deferred income tax ass
Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Acquired intangibles amortizatic
Foreign earning
Excess tax depreciation over financial deprecie
Prepaid expense
Total deferred income tax liabilitie
Net deferred income tax liabilit
Deferred income tax (assets) / liabilities includethe balance sheet a

Deferred income tax liability / (ass—current
Deferred income tax liabili—long-term

Net deferred income tax
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Year Ended December 31

2013
$121,13¢ $ 126,55(
30,29¢ 27,69:
21,23¢ 12,26(
12,26: 12,32
— 1,12¢
3,83( 6,07¢
2,92t 2,47¢
37¢ 1,867
17,11( 12,33¢
$ 209,18: $ 202,71t
(109,67 (112,629)
$ 99,50t $ 90,09:
$ 137,67: $ 140,10
37,78: 27,08(
35,91 36,26+
8,30¢ 5,88¢
219,67¢ 209,34
$120,17: $ 119,25(
$ 7,69 $ (13,149
112,47¢ 132,39
$120,17: $ 119,25(
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At December 31, 2013, we had federal and foreigroperating loss (“NOL”") carryforwards in the amowf $307.0 million which resulted in a net defertax asset of
$23.7 million which is available to reduce curreaxes. The NOL carryforwards are all attributall@¢quired companies. NOLs and tax credit carryfods expire in periods
starting 2014 through 2031. The valuation allowaneéhich reduce deferred tax assets to an amoaniwvili more likely than not be realized, were $I0fillion at
December 31, 2013 and $112.6 million at DecembeB12. Our valuation allowance decreased by $2l®min 2013 as a result of the following: reléag valuation

allowances related to the utilization of NOLs darthe year that had full valuation allowances, plag related to the utilization of future NOLs atftinges in income tax
rates.

We have historically determined that a portion oflistributed earnings of our foreign subsidiariel lve repatriated to the United States and accwyigli we have
provided a deferred tax liability totaling $37.8liion and $27.1 million at December 31, 2013 and20espectively, on such foreign source income tif® years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, we have accrued lWe&nia taxes on $250.5 million and $167.8 milliospectively, of unremitted foreign earnings and isoft
December 31, 2013, we have determined we havegfoesrnings of approximately $133.4 million whichl e permanently reinvested and therefore deteimeome taxes «
approximately $22.9 million have not been providedsuch foreign subsidiary earnings.

In preparing our tax returns, we are required terpret complex tax laws and regulations. On arpangbasis, we are subject to examinations by #derd state tax
authorities that may give rise to different intetations of these complex laws and regulations.fitheber of tax years that remain open and subjetet¢t audits varies
depending upon the tax jurisdiction. Our most digant taxing jurisdictions include the U.S., Unit&ingdom and France. The Company files incomeéaxrns in the U.S.
and various states as well as foreign jurisdictidiax years 2008 and 2010 forward remain open udder statutes of limitation. Generally, tax ye2@99 and forward remain
open under state statutes of limitation. Due tortieire of the examination process, it generallgsayears before these examinations are complatéchatters are resolved.
At December 31, 2013, we were not under examindtjothe U.S. Internal Revenue Service. At Decen3ie013, we believe the aggregate amount of aditiadal tax
liabilities that may result from examinations, ifya will not have a material adverse effect on financial condition, results of operations or célshvs.

The following summarizes the activity related to anrecognized tax benefits recorded in accordanteASC 740-10 in 2013, 2012 and 2011, in thousand

For the year ended December 3

2013 2012 2011

Beginning balance $13,99( $16,99( $19,43¢
Increases for positions taken in current y 374 1,72¢ 3,48¢
Increases for position taken in prior ye 12,31¢ 77€ 191
Decreases for positions taken in prior ye (2,06)) (4,537 (3,817
Decrease due to settlements with taxing authol — (16€) (2,309
Expiration of the statute of limitations for thesassment of taxe (1,939 (807) —

Ending balanc $22,68( $13,99( $16,99(

The unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2848 $22.5 million of tax benefits that, if recogmdl, would affect our effective tax rate. We redegrinterest
related to unrecognized tax benefits and penadacome tax expense. During the year ended DeseBih 2013 we increased the interest accrual pyoapmately $1.3
million. During the year ended December 31, 2012 reduced the accrued interest by approximate ®@lion. During the year ended December 31, 2@ld decreased the
interest accrual by approximately $0.4 million.
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During the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@hd, we increased the accrual of penalties relateecertain tax positions by approximately $3i8iom, $0.1 million
$0.5 million, respectively. At December 31, 2018 2912, the aggregate recorded liability for ins¢@nd potential penalties was $11.2 million and $illion, respectively.
We do not expect our unrecognized tax benefithemge significantly over the next twelve months.

10. FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Accounting Standards Codification 8E@ir Value Measurements and Disclosuf&SC 820") defines fair value, establishes a fravoek for measuring fair value, and
expands disclosures about fair value measureniBimésprovisions of ASC 820 apply to other accounpngnouncements that require or permit fair valasurements. ASC
820:

. Defines fair value as the exchange price that wbeldeceived for an asset or paid to transfertalitia (an exit price) in the principal or most aahtageous
market for the asset or liability in an orderlyrtsaction between market participants at the meammedate; an

. Establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair valueasurements based upon the transparency of itgptits valuation of an asset or liability as of theasurement
date.

Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that mapketicipants would use in pricing the asset driliy, including assumptions about risk. To incseaonsistency and
comparability in fair value measurements and rdlatisclosures, the fair value hierarchy prioritifles inputs to valuation techniques used to medsirgalue into three broi
levels. The three levels of the hierarchy are defias follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) tivaenarkets for identical assets or liabiliti

. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted pricelsided within Level 1 that are observable for #isset or liability, either directly or indirectigr substantially
the full term of the financial instrumer

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for assefigluilities.

The categorization within the valuation hierarceypased upon the lowest level of input that isifigant to the fair value measurement. Following idescription of th
valuation methodologies used for assets and ltesimeasured at fair value.

Trading Securities (Asset).The assets held in the West Corporation Executetirétnent Savings Plan and the West CorporatiorgMalified Deferred Compensation
Plan represent mutual funds, invested in debt aoéyesecurities, classified as trading securitieaccordance with the provisions of Accountingr8ards Codification 320
Investmen—Debt and Equity Securitie®nsidering the employee’s ability to change theegtment allocation of their deferred compensadibany time. Quoted market
prices are available for these securities in aivacharket therefore, the fair value of these séiesris determined by Level 1 inputs.

We evaluate classification within the fair valuetairchy at each period. There were no transfergdeet any levels of the fair value hierarchy duting periods
presented.

Interest rate swaps.The effect of the interest rate swaps was to changgiable rate debt obligation to a fixed ratetfat portion of the debt that was hedged. We
recorded the interest rate swaps at fair value.fainealue of the interest rate swaps was baseal model whose inputs were observable (LIBOR swgs); therefore, the fi
value of the interest rate swaps was based on @l Remput. At December 31, 2013, we did not hawg iaterest rate swaps outstanding.

F-26



Table of Contents

WEST CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value oacarrring basis, in thousands, are summarized below

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 201

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant Assets |
Markets for Observable Unobservable Liabilities
Identical Assets
Carrying Inputs Inputs at Fair
Description Amount (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
Other Assets
Trading securitie $53,397 $ 53,39 $ — $ — $53,39"
Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 201
Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant Assets |
Markets for Observable Unobservable Liabilities
Identical Assets
Carrying Inputs Inputs at Fair
Description Amount (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Value
Other Assets
Trading securitie $46,14« $ 46,14« $ — $ — $46,14«
Accrued Expenses
Interest rate sway $ 2,34¢ $ — $ 2,34¢ $ — $ 2,34¢

The fair value of our & ¢ % senior notes antl 3 /séhior notes based on market quotes, which werdited to be Level 1 inputs, at December 31, 2018 wa
approximately $1,243.7 million compared to the yiag amount of $1,150.0 million. The fair valueafr 8 5 /s % senior notes and’7s / % senior notes basedarket
quotes, which we determined to be Level 1 inputBexember 31, 2012 was approximately $1,199.4anitompared to the carrying amount of $1,150.0ienil Our Senior
Subordinated Notes were paid in full in April 20T3e fair value of the 11% Senior Subordinated Betere based on market quotes, which we deterntinbd Level 1
inputs, at December 31, 2012 the fair value orSemior Subordinated Notes was $468.5 million corgao the carrying value of $450.0 million.

The fair value of our senior secured term loanlitées was estimated using current market quotesomnparable debt securities from various finanicistitutions. All of
the inputs used to determine the fair market vafugur senior secured term loan facilities are L&mputs and obtained from an independent sodre.fair value of our
senior secured term loan facilities at Decembe2813 was approximately $2,385.0 million comparethe carrying amount of $2,375.3 million. The fedtue of our senior
secured term loan facilities at December 31, 2048 approximately $2,455.1 million compared to theying amount of $2,417.7 million.

Certain assets are measured at fair value on aewumring basis using significant unobservable iaglevel 3) as defined by and in accordance tighgrovisions of
ASC 820. As such, property and equipment with acaetying amount totaling $3.7 million were writtdown to zero during 2012. This write-down was ribgult of the
abandonment of capitalized costs incurred duriegdevelopment of an internally developed softwangr@ll application and was recorded in selling, gr@hand
administrative expenses (“SG&A”).

11. OFF—BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

Performance obligations of certain operating subsis are supported by performance bonds anddetfecredit, workers’ compensation policy requiests and
certain operating leases. These obligations wplrexat various dates through 2014 and are renasedquired. The outstanding commitments on thbkgations at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 were $9.1 million ar@iGmillion, respectively.
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND INCENTIVE PLANS
Qualified Retirement Plans

We have a 401(k) plan, which covers substantidllgraployees eighteen years of age or older whbalsb complete a minimum of 1,000 hours of seriticeach
calendar year. Under the plan, we match 50% of eyegls’ contributions up to 14% of their gross satarthe statutory limit, whichever is less, if themployee satisfies the
1,000 hours of service requirement during the adeear. Our matching contributions vest 25% merpeginning after the second service anniverdate. The matching
contributions are 100% vested after the employesealtained five years of service. Total employertgbutions under the plan were approximately $8iion, $8.2 million
and $8.3 million for the years ended December 81322012 and 2011, respectively.

In the United Kingdom we have a Group Personal iBarRlan which is available to all employees upoa successful completion of their 3 month probatigrperiod.
Under the plan, we match employee contributionsoug maximum of 3% of their base salary. Contritmsi are invested immediately in the members owd fioice or the
default investment option should members not wisinake their own investment choices. Contributions the pension plan are paid via a salary saerifinethod and
therefore all contributions into the plan, unleesaployee has chosen to opt-out of this faciitg, classified as employer contributions. Total leygr contributions under
the plan were approximately $1.0 million, $0.9 ioitl, and $1.0 million for the years ended Decen#igr2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In Canada we have a Deferred Profit Sharing PIB®8P”) and a Group Registered Retirement Savinggr&m (“GRRSP”), which covers substantially all éoyees
who have materially and significantly contributedthe prosperity and profits of the Company. Urtllerplan, we match 50% of employees’ regular cbations to the
GRRSP up to 3% of their earnings or the statutionit,| whichever is less. Our matching contributisest 100% on the second anniversary of membeishie DPSP. Total
employer contributions under the plan were apprexaty $0.2 million, $0.3 million and $0.3 milliowif the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2€5dectively.

Nor-Qualified Retirement Plans

We maintain a grantor trust under the West CorpamdExecutive Retirement Savings Plan (“Trust”) eTgrincipal of the Trust, and any earnings therswall be held
separate and apart from our other funds. Partioipan the Trust is voluntary and is restrictechighly compensated individuals as defined by therlmal Revenue Service.
We will match 50% of employee contributions, subjecthe combined limits of the 401(k) plan and Thast. Matching contributions 100% vest after céetipn of three yea
of service. Our total contributions under the dlanthe years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 antl ®@ie approximately $2.0 million, $2.1 million a$#.0 million,
respectively. Assets under the Trust at Decembe2@®13 and 2012 were $41.9 million and $33.3 milliespectively.

We also maintain a Nonqualified Deferred Compensalan (as amended from time to time, the “Detefempensation Plan”). Pursuant to the terms obiferred
Compensation Plan, eligible management, non-empldirectors or highly compensated employees apdrbyeghe Compensation Committee of the Board oé&ors may
elect to defer a portion of their compensation hade such deferred compensation invested in the sgarestments made available to participants oftdk) plan or in
notional equity shares of the Company. We matcaragmtage of any amounts invested in notional gahiires (50% during 2013, 2012 and 2011). Suchtredtamounts a
subject to 20% vesting each year. All matching dbations are 100% vested five years after the latdanuary 1, 2007 or the date the executivé pasticipates in the
Deferred
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Compensation Plan. Our total contributions forybars ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 thptan were approximately $1.2 million, $1.8 ioill and $2.0
million, respectively. Assets under the Deferredrpensation Plan at December 31, 2013 and 2012 %@etemillion and $10.0 million, respectively. Tharfvalue of notione
equity shares in the Deferred Compensation Pl&eaember 31, 2013 and 2012 were $34.2 million &1d3million, respectively.

Amounts deferred under the Trust and Deferred Coisg@on Plan and any earnings credited thereurddirtse held separate and apart from our otherdudt
remain subject to claims by the Company’s geneslitors.

2006 Executive Incentive Plan

Stock options granted under the West Corporatidié Executive Incentive Plan (“2006 EIP”) prior 012 vest over a period of five years, with 20%laf stock
option becoming exercisable on each of the finsiugh fifth anniversaries of the grant date. Dur2@g 2, a form of option certificate was adoptedhstinat the grants awarded
after 2011 vest over a period of four years, wika2of the stock option becoming exercisable on edi¢he first through fourth anniversaries of tharg date. Once an option
has vested, it generally remains exercisable thgitenth anniversary of the grant date so lonh@gparticipant continues to provide services eo@ompany.

On August 15, 2012, our Board of Directors declaespecial cash dividend of $8.00 per share toalibtp stockholders of record as of August 15, 2@i2ddition,
the Board of Directors authorized equivalent casynpents and/or adjustments to holders of outstarstimck options to reflect the payment of suchd#wid as required by t
terms of our incentive plans. In addition, in coctien with such payment, our Board of Directorsederated the vesting of certain stock options texe granted in 2012 and
scheduled to vest in 2013. The share-based comjpamsecorded as a result of the accelerated \gstas $6.8 million. For options granted in 2012 aokeduled to vest in
2014 through 2016, no dividend equivalent was paitthe option exercise price was reduced by $&@25.52. Options granted prior to 2012 and optigranted in 2012
originally scheduled to vest in 2013 participatedhie dividend equivalent payment with no modificatto the option exercise price. In conjunctiorthithe refinancing and
dividend, an appraisal of the Company was perforine@orporate Valuation Advisors, Inc., and apprbisg management and the Board of Directors, ofdlranarket value
of each respective stock option grant and the uyidgrshare of common stock both before and imntetliafter the dividend and refinancing. An additb$1.5 million
share-based compensation charge was recordedion gpants where the fair market value of the aptad dividend equivalent paid, if any, exceededfdir market value of
the option before dividend and refinancing.

2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Prior to the completion of our IPO, we adopted26&3 Long-Term Incentive Plan (“2013 LTIP") whichintended to provide our officers, employees, amployee
directors and consultants with added incentivestoain employed by or perform services for us afghaluch individuals’ interests with those of otockholders. Under the
terms of the 2013 LTIP, 8,500,000 shares of comstook will be available for stock options, reseittstock or other types of equity awards grantetéuthe 2013 LTIP,
subject to adjustment for stock splits and othenilar changes in capitalization. The number of ke shares will be reduced by the aggregate nupfighares that become
subject to outstanding awards granted under th8 RUIP. To the extent that shares subject to astanting award granted under the 2013 LTIP aréssaed or delivered by
reason of the expiration, termination, cancellatofforfeiture of such award or by reason of thlement of such award in cash, then such sharéagéin be available under
the 2013 LTIP.
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Stock options granted under the 2013 LTIP vest aveeriod of four years, with 25% of the stock optbecoming exercisable on each of the first thindfogrth
anniversaries of the grant date. Once an optiorvésted, it generally remains exercisable untiltéreh anniversary of the grant date so long apéntcipant continues to

provide services to the Company.

2006 Executive Incentive Plan and 2013 Long-Tertentive Plan—Stock Options
The following table presents the stock option agtiunder the 2006 EIP and 2013 LTIP for the yeatexl December 31, 2013:

Options Outstanding

Weighted
Options Average
Available Number of Exercise
for Grant Shares Price
Balance at January 1, 2013 850,44t 2,870,41: $ 27.4¢
Grantec (69,379 69,37: 25.3¢
Cancelec 78,80( (78,800() 31.62
Exercisec — (56,349 13.1Z
Discontinuance of the 2006 E (859,87Y) — —
Balance at December 31, 2C — 2,804,63 26.6%
2013 LTIP authorizatio 8,500,00! — —
Options grantes (220,562) 220,56: 22.31
Options cancele 2,37t (2,37%) 22.0¢
Restricted stock grante (279,039 — —
Restricted stock cancel 2,628 — —
Balance at December 31, 2C 8,005,39 3,022,82: $ 27.21

At December 31, 2013, we expect that 20% of optgrmasited will be canceled or forfeited over thetiesperiod. At December 31, 2013, the intrinsituesof options
vested and exercisable was approximately $1.7anillThe aggregate intrinsic value of options ouiditag at December 31, 2013, was approximately 88l&n. The

aggregate intrinsic value of options outstandirgsted and expected to vest at December 31, 20B3ap@oximately $2.6 million.
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The following table summarizes the information ba bptions granted under the 2006 EIP and 2013 BT Pecember 31, 2013:

Outstanding Vested and Exercisable
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Exercise Prices Options Life (years) Price Options Price
$0.00 -$13.1: 132,12: 2.92 $ 13.1 132,12: $ 13.1Z
13.13- 28.8¢ 2,201,72! 8.3¢ $ 25.2¢ 19,74% $ 25.2¢
28.89- 50.8¢ 656,04: 8.11 $ 34.1: 656,04: $ 34.1:
50.89- 84.8( 32,93« 6.67 $ 77.8¢ 16,81¢ $ 76.6¢
$0.00- $84.8( 3,022,82. 8.0¢€ $ 27.21 824,73( $ 31.4¢
Executive Management Rollover Optic Options Outstanding
Weighted
Options
Available Average
Number of Exercise
for Grant Shares Price
Balance at January 1, 2013 10¢ 287,57¢ $ 547
Cancelec 23 (23 —
Discontinuance of the 2006 E (12€) — —
Exercisec — (216,35f) 5.47
Balance at December 31, 2C — 71,19¢ $ 547

The executive management rollover options are fedlsted and have an average remaining life of 8afsy The aggregate intrinsic value of these optain
December 31, 2013 was approximately $1.4 million.

We account for the stock option grants under tt@6ZBIP and 2013 LTIP in accordance with Accountitgndards Codification 718,0mpensation-Stock
Compensation The fair value of each option granted was estihan the date of grant using a Black-Scholes ogificing model with the following weighted average
assumptions for grants during the period:

2013 2012 2011
Risk-free interest rate 1.56% 1.35% 1.87%
Dividend yield 3.0™% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Expected volatility 35.2(% 34.7% 33.2(%
Expected life (years 6.2t 6.2 6.5C
Fair value of option awar $ 6.0F $12.2¢ $31.3¢

The risk-free interest rate for periods within theected life of the option is based on the zengpoa U.S. government treasury strip with a matusibych
approximates the expected life of the option attitine of grant.

Restricted Stoc

In connection with our IPO, our compensation corterifaccelerated the vesting of all remaining uregeshares subject to the restricted stock awardpecial bonus
agreements and restricted stock award agreements
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entered into pursuant to the 2006 EIP. The acd@ereesulted in the vesting of an aggregate 06@2 shares of common stock. As a result of thelated vesting, $1.2
million of share-based compensation was recogriiz&G&A during 2013.

Upon completion of our IPO, we paid each of our-eamployee directors, who are not affiliated wittr &ponsors, 5,000 fully vested shares of commarkstath the
stock award subject to pro rata forfeiture if theector did not remain on the board for at leastnsonths. On July 30, 2013, 269,039 shares ofictstl stock were granted to
certain employees of West Corporation at a markieef $22.06. These restricted shares vest operiad of three years with one-third of the res&d shares becoming
unrestricted on each of the first through thirdiaersaries of the award.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, there was approgisn&i5.2 million and $15.9 million of unrecordentdaunrecognized compensation expense related testeny
share based compensation stock options and resitistdck under the 2006 EIP and 2013 LTIP, resgdygtiwhich will be recognized over the remainirgsting period of
approximately 2.5 years.

2013 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

During the fourth quarter of 2013, we implementeel 2013 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP”) umntieh the sale of 1.0 million shares of our commstotk
has been authorized and reserved. Employees magndesup to 50% of their annual compensationHerpgurchase of stock, subject to a per person éf2000 shares in
any offering period or calendar year. The pricesfoares purchased under the ESPP is 85% of theetr@dolsing price on the last day of the quartetlychase period. No
employee will be authorized to purchase commorkstoough the ESPP if, immediately after the pusehahe employee (or any other person whose stockdwe attributed
to such employee under U.S. tax law) would ownlstowd/or hold outstanding options to purchase spadsessing five percent (5%) or more of the twtahbined voting
power or value of all classes of stock of the Conypar of any parent of the Company or any subsjdiar addition, no participant will be entitled parchase stock under the
ESPP at a rate which, when aggregated with higorights to purchase stock under all other emm@ateck purchase plans of the Company and its diabgis, exceeds
$25,000 in fair market value, determined as ofdhte of grant (or such other limit as may be impgdseU.S. tax law), for each calendar year in wlaoly option granted to
the participant under any such plans is outstanairaqy time. As of December 31, 2013, no sharddkan issued under the ESPP. We recognized coatjmenexpense for
this plan of $0.3 million in 2013. The grant da&é fvalue, net of the 15% discount on October 1 R0vas $18.85.

Share-Based Compensation Expense

For the years 2013, 2012 and 2011, share-basedetmation expense was $10.6 million, $25.8 milliod $23.3 million, respectively. The net income effef share-
based compensation expense for 2013, 2012 andv284 approximately $6.7 million, $15.6 million anti®$0 million, respectively.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

On December 30, 2011, we completed the converdionrooutstanding Class L Common Stock into shaféSlass A Common Stock and thereafter the redlaatibn
of all of our Class A Common Stock as a singlesiasCommon Stock. As a result, earnings per stalrilations in 2012 and future periods will begereted as a single cle
of Common Stock.

Through December 30, 2011, we had two classesrofremn stock (Class L stock and Class A stock) ontitey. Each Class L share was entitled to a pyioeturn
preference equal to the sum of (x) $90 per share

F-32



Table of Contents

WEST CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013, 2012 AND 2011

base amount plus (y) an amount sufficient to geeexrd 2% internal rate of return on that base amfsam the date of the Recapitalization until thepty return preference
was paid in full or converted to Class A sharexhEalass L share also participated in any equipregiation beyond the priority return on the saraeghare basis as the
Class A shares. Class A shares participated irdbéy appreciation after the Class L priority retwas satisfied.

The Class L stock was considered a participatiogkssecurity requiring use of the “two-class” meatHor the computation of basic net income (loss)gtere in
accordance with ASC 2@Barnings Per ShareLosses were not allocated to the Class L stotkércomputation of basic earnings per share a€lénes L stock was not
obligated to share in losses.

Prior to the Conversion, basic earnings per sH&®Rg") excluded the effect of common stock equintdeand was computed using the “two-claszhputation methoc
which divided earnings attributable to the Clagsréference from total earnings. Any remaining ineoon loss was attributed to the common shares.

Diluted earnings per share reflects the potentlatidn that could result if options or other cargently issuable shares were exercised or convertedommon stock
and notional shares from the Deferred Compensé&tian were granted. Diluted earnings per commonresagsumes the exercise of stock options usingehsury stock
method.

Year Ended December 3:

(Amount in thousands) 2011
Net income $ 127,49:
Less: accretion of Class L Sha 171,56
Net loss attributable to common stc (44,07
Income attributable to Class L Sha 171,56
Year Ended December 31
(Amounts in thousands, except per share amount 2013 2012 2011
Earnings (loss) per common share
Basic Class | $ 17.1¢
Basic commor $ 1.8: $ 2.04 $ (4.0)
Diluted Class L $ 16.4¢
Diluted commor $ 1.7¢ $ 1.9¢ $ (4.0))
Weighted average number of shares outstandin¢
Basic Class L 9,98¢
Basic commor 78,87 61,52¢ 10,98¢
Dilutive impact of stock options
Class L share 424
Common share 1,44: 1,99 —
Diluted Class L share 10,40¢
Diluted common share 80,31¢ 63,52: 10,98¢

Diluted earnings per share are computed using #ighted-average number of common shares and dilptitential common shares outstanding during thieghe
Dilutive potential common shares result from theumsed exercise of outstanding stock options, byicgijpn of the treasury stock method that havédwide
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effect on earnings per share. At December 31, 20832012, 713,662 and 2,681,313, stock options aatstanding, respectively, with an exercise peigaal to or exceeding
the market value of our common stock that wereetioee excluded from the computation of shares ogetitly issuable upon exercise of the options. &¢d&nber 31, 2011,
for purposes of calculating the diluted earningsgbare for the common shares, 315,563 optionsamding to purchase common shares were excludedtiie computation
of diluted common shares outstanding as the incalfoeable to the common shares was a loss, theréfiereffect was anti-dilutive.

14.  ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Activity within accumulated other comprehensiveane (loss) for the three years ended December®B,2012 and 2011 were as follows (net of tax):

BALANCE, January 1, 2013
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofab®(5,605)
Reclassification of cash flow hedge into earnimg,of tax of $1,349 (1
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of tak(2f444)

BALANCE, December 31, 201

BALANCE, January 1, 2012
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofab®(3,650)
Reclassification of cash flow hedge into earninmgg,of tax of $2,626 (1
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of ta%(4f434)

BALANCE, December 31, 201

BALANCE, January 1, 2011
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofab®11,17€
Reclassification of cash flow hedge into earnimg,of tax of $(3,180) (1
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of ta%(4f450)

BALANCE, December 31, 201

(1) Recorded as interest expense in the consolidaaéehsent of operation
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Foreign
Currency
Translation

$(21,349
9,14¢

$(12,200)

Foreign
Currency
Translation

$(27,300
5,95¢

$(21,349

Foreign
Currency
Translation

$ (9,066
(18,239

$(27,300)

Accumulated
Other

Cash Comprehensive
Flow
Hedges Income (Loss)
$(1,786) $ (2313)
— 9,14%
(2,209 (2,207)
3,98 3,981
$ — $ (12,200
Accumulated
Other
Cash Comprehensive
Flow
Hedges Income (Loss)
$(4,736) $ (32,03
— 5,95¢
(4,289 (4,289
7,23¢ 7,23¢
$(1,786) $  (2313)
Accumulated
Other
Cash Comprehensive
Flow
Hedges Income (Loss)
$(17,189) $ (26,250
— (18,239
5,18¢ 5,18¢
7,26( 7,26(
$ (4,736 $ (32,03
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15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, we and cedhour subsidiaries are defendants in variousdit@n matters and are subject to claims from oents for
indemnification, some of which may involve claines lamages that are substantial in amount. We tibalieve the disposition of claims currently perglivill have a
material effect on our financial position, resufsperations or cash flows.

16. SEGMENTS
We operate in two reportable segments:

Unified Communications, including conferencing and collaboration servjegnt services, alerts and notification servares IPbased unified communicatic
solutions; and

Communication Services including emergency communications, automateljpcatessing, agent-based services and telephiotgréonnect services.

For the year ended December 3:

2013 2012 2011
Revenue
Unified Communication $ 1,498,21. $ 1,451,30. $ 1,364,033
Communication Service 1,223,85! 1,198,32( 1,137,901
Intersegment eliminatior (36,217 (11,59 (10,607

Total $ 2,685,85! $ 2,638,02: $ 2,491,32!

Depreciation and Amortizatic
(Included in Operating Income

Unified Communication $ 89,62 $ 88,25: $  85,56¢
Communication Service 90,65 94,16¢ 86,347
Total $ 180,28 $ 182,42: $  171,90¢
Operating Income
Unified Communication $ 386,43¢ $ 384,56 $ 363,22¢
Communication Service 93,77¢ 93,61( 104,90:
Total $ 480,21 $ 478,17t $ 468,12¢
Capital Expenditures
Unified Communication $ 60,28¢ $ 63,23 $ 61,06°
Communication Service 52,68¢ 55,51¢ 46,952
Corporate 14,73( 9,67¢ 12,10%
Total $ 127,70 $ 128,42 $ 120,12
As of December 31
2013 2012 2011
Assets:
Unified Communication $ 1,670,07. $ 1,629,011 $ 1,620,44.
Communication Service 1,382,39. 1,437,69! 1,379,12!
Corporate 433,80( 381,43¢ 227,94¢
Total $ 3,486,26 $ 3,448,15: $ 3,227,51
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Platform-based service revenue includes serviaadged in both the Unified Communications Serviaed Communication Services segments, while agesgeba
service revenue is provided in the CommunicatioviSes segment. Revenue from platform-based sesviees $1,955.2 million, $1,886.5 million and $1,T6&illion in
2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Revenue fromtaggsed services was $742.2 million, $762.1 mmlémd $740.8 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, reSpely. The
platform-based and agent-based revenue is presgritedo intercompany eliminations.

For 2013, 2012 and 2011, our largest 100 clientswaated for approximately 54%, 57% and 55% of tcgaenue, respectively. In 2013 and 2012, no checbunted
for more than 10% of our aggregate revenue. Theeagte revenue as a percentage of our total revfemmeour largest client, AT&T, during 2011 was apxmately 10%.

No individual country outside of the United Stagesounted for greater than 10% of aggregate reviem#913, 2012 or 2011. Revenue is attributeditom@anization:
region based on location of the billed customecsoant. Geographic information by organizationgiioe, in thousands, is noted below.

For the year ended December 3

2013 2012 2011
Revenue
America—United State: $ 2,186,55! $ 2,149,97 $ 2,018,117
Europe, Middle East & Africa (EMEA 311,77: 296,70! 292,39
Asia—Pacific 163,94t 168,04t 154,23t
America—Other 23,58( 23,30: 26,51:
Total $ 2,685,85! $ 2,638,02. $ 2,491,32!
As of December 31
2013 2012 2011
Long-Lived Assets
America—United State: $ 2,432,477 $ 2,446,091 $ 2,373,42i
Europe, Middle East & Africa (EMEA 204,28: 210,90: 206,59¢
Asia—Pacific 25,20¢ 27,781 21,59¢
America—Other 2,72¢ 2,28 4,107
Total $ 2,664,69: $ 2,687,06. $ 2,605,73

The aggregate gain (loss) on transactions denoednatcurrencies other than the functional curresfcyest Corporation or any of its subsidiaries wpproximately
$(4.9) million, $(3.5) million and $4.2 million i2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Subsequent to December 31, 2013, we implementedgamizational change in which our Chief Executdféicer began making strategic and operationalslens and
allocating resources based on the assessmentfofrpance of a revised organizational structurghifirst quarter of 2014, all prior period comgam information will be
recast to reflect this change as if it had takex@iin all periods presented.

17. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Our accounts receivable subject us to the potefatiaredit risk with our customers. At December 3Q213, three customers accounted for $58.3 mibioh2.9% of
gross accounts receivable, compared to $55.7 mjléo 12.2% of gross receivables at December 312 20/e perform ongoing credit evaluations of our
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customers’ financial condition. We maintain an atémce for doubtful accounts for potential credides based upon historical trends, specific cadleqroblems, historical
write-offs, account aging and other analysis ohatiounts receivable. At February 13, 2014, $55lliom or 94.6%, of the December 31, 2013 accoueteivable from the

three customers noted above had been received.

18. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

The following table summarizes, in thousands, seqmgintal information about our cash flows for thargeended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011:

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for intere:
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds of $5,406,546 and $8,0¢
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVI TIES:
Acquisition of property through accounts payablenodtments
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVI TIES:
Net settlement of stock options exerci:
Net settlement of shares issued from the defemeathensation pla
Conversion of Class L common shares to Class A comshare!
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Year Ended December 31

2013

2012

2011

$ 220,73
$ 68,33¢

$ 17,77:

$ 644
$ 79z
$ _

HRBH B B

243,82t
28,93¢

15,53:
1,68¢

1,675,43
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19. QUARTERLY RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)
The following is the summary of the unaudited gewdytresults of operations for the two years enbedember 31, 2013 and 2012, in thousands.

Three Months Ended Year Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31 December 31,

2013 (1) 2013 2013 2013 2013
Revenue $ 660,22 $672,69! $ 665,36t $ 687,57( $ 2,685,85!
Cost of service 309,06° 311,93¢ 310,53 329,04( 1,260,57!
Gross Profit 351,15 360,75¢ 354,83! 358,53( 1,425,271
SG&A 257,86 226,01¢ 231,40 229,77( 945,06:
Operating incomi 93,29( 134,73t 123,42¢ 128,76( 480,21
Net income $ 3,05¢ $ 43,66¢ $  46,14¢ $ 50,33 $ 143,20:
Earnings per common she
Basic Commor $ 0.0 $ 052 $ 0.5t $ 0.6C $ 1.82
Diluted Commor $ 0.0t $ 0.51 $ 0.54 $ 0.5¢ $ 1.7¢

Three Months Ended Year Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30 December 31 December 31,
2012 2012 2012 (2) 2012 2012

Revenue $ 639,06: $ 661,89! $ 656,89 $ 680,17: $ 2,638,02.
Cost of service 291,70: 307,28t 307,69¢ 317,77. 1,224,45!
Gross Profit 347,36 354,60¢ 349,19 362,39¢ 1,413,56!
SG&A 233,11 233,11( 231,90! 237,25’ 935,39(
Operating incom: 114,24; 121,49t 117,29; 125,14: 478,17
Net income $ 34,04« $ 36,69¢ $ 22,09¢ $ 32,70: $ 125,54:
Earnings per common she
Basic Commor $ 05E $ 0.6C $ 0.3€ $ 0.58 $ 2.04
Diluted Commor $ 0.5/ $ 05¢ $ 0.3t $ 0.51 $ 1.9¢

(1) Results of operations and net income in thet §uarter of 2013 were affected by the Sponsoragament fee, related termination of the manageagneement, IPO
related bonuses and subordinated debt call premiich had a $27.8 million negative impact on nebime.

(2)  Results of operations in the third quarter @2 were affected by a pre-tax $10.0 million expeassociated with the dividend equivalent attriduteparticipants in our
Deferred Compensation Plan, $8.3 million of addisibshare-based compensation associated with ¢idedd and $10.3 million of additional interest erpe incurred
with the refinancing

20. FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR SUBSIDIARY GUARANTOR AND  SUBSIDIARY NON- GUARANTOR

West Corporation and our U.S. based 100% owneddiabsguarantors, jointly, severally, fully andagnditionally are responsible for the payment afigipal,
premium and interest on our senior notes and senioordinated notes. Presented below, in thous@dsndensed consolidated financial information\Vitest Corporation
and our subsidiary guarantors and subsidiary n@maguors for the periods indicated.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUE
COST OF SERVICES
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest Expense, net of interest incc

Subordinated debt call premium and accelerated tazation of

deferred financing cos

Subsidiary Incom:

Other, ne:

Other income (expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
NET INCOME
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of ta of $(5,605)
Reclassification of a cash flow hedge into earningeet of tax of $1,34¢
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax ${2,444)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax of $(6,70
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 201

Parent /

Guarantor

Non-
Guarantor

E

liminations and
Consolidating

Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries
$ — $2,147,48 $538,37- $ =
— 976,17 284,40 —
8,181 760,12: 176,75 —
(8,187) 411,18! 77,21¢ —
(155,20) (100,129 22,72 —
(23,10%) — — —
251,49: 120,25( — (371,749
11,06¢ (74,510) 65,69¢ —
84,25¢ (54,389 88,42: (371,74
76,06¢ 356,79 165,63 (371,749
(67,139 105,74¢ 44,94¢ —
143,20: 251,04¢ 120,69: (371,749
9,14t — 9,14t (9,145
(2,207 — — —
3,981 — — —
10,93; = 9,14¢ (9,145
$ 154,13¢ $ 251,04¢ $129,83¢ $ (380,88)

F-39

Consolidated
$2,685,85!
1,260,57!
945,06:
480,21

(232,601
(23,10%)

2,25¢

(253,45))
226,76:
83,55¢
143,20;
9,14t
(2,209
3,981
10,93:

$ 154,13
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUE
COST OF SERVICES
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest Expense, net of incor

Subsidiary Incom:

Other, ne

Other income (expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
NET INCOME
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of ta of $(3,650)
Reclassification of a cash flow hedge into earningeet of tax of $2,62¢
Unrealized gain on cash flow hedges, net of tax $t4,434)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax of $(5,45

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31, 201

Non-

Parent / Guarantor Guarantor
Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
$ — $2,082,22! $555,79¢
— 984,87( 239,58
17,04( 765,16 153,18:
(17,040 332,18t 163,02
(180,09() (109,341) 17,89:
262,311 125,42¢ —
5,61( 16,77¢ (21,409
87,83 32,85¢ (3,516
70,79: 365,04 159,51:
(54,74%) 104,63( 32,18¢
125,54: 260,41 127,32!
5,95¢ — 5,95¢
(4,289 — —
7,23¢ — _
8,90% — 5,95¢
$ 134,44t $ 260,41 $133,28(

F-40

Eliminations and
Consolidating
Entries

$ —

(387,741)

(387;41)

(387,743)

(387,741)
(5,95%)

(5 ,9_55)

$  (393,69)

Consolidated

$2,638,02:
1,224,45!
935,39
478,17

(271,547

977
270,56()
207,60

82,06¢
125 54:
5,95¢
(4,282)
7,23¢
8,90¢

§ 13444
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUE
COST OF SERVICES
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):

Interest Expense, net of incor

Subsidiary Incom:

Other, ne

Other income (expens
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BENEFIT)
NET INCOME
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of ta of $11,17€
Reclassification of a cash flow hedge into earningeet of tax of $(3,180
Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedges, nettak of $(4,450)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax of $3,5¢
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended December 31,

201

Non-

Parent / Guarantor Guarantor
Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
$ — $1,970,68. $520,64:
— 897,63 215,65(
19,92. 733,96 156,01
(19,929 339,07! 148,98(
(165,85() (117,98() 14,42¢
270,24! 121,02¢ —
1,45 17,19° (12,839
105,84t 20,24( 1,587
85,91¢ 359,31t 150,56
(41,574 89,98¢ 28,62:
127,49: 269,32¢ 121,94!
(18,239 — (18,239
5,18¢ — —
7,26( — —
(5,786 — (18,239
$121,70° $ 269,32 $103,71:

F-41

Eliminations and
Consolidating
Entries

$ —

(391,279

(391,279
(391,279
(391,279

18,23«

18,23
$  (373,04)

Consolidated
$2,491,32!
1,113,28!
909,90¢
468,12t

(269,410

5,81¢
(263,60))
204,52°
77,03
127 49:
(18,239
5,18¢
7,26(
(5,786)

$ 121,70°
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Trust and restricted ca:
Accounts receivable, n
Intercompany receivable
Deferred income taxes receival
Prepaid asse
Deferred expense
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLES, net
OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl

Intercompany payable

Deferred revenu

Accrued expense

Current maturities of lor-term debr

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, less current maturitie
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY (DEFICIT)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

F-42

December 31, 201

Eliminations
Non- and
Parent / Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating

Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated

$ 129,44! $ — $ 111,90¢ $ (11,319 $ 230,04:
6,28:¢ 15,39¢ — — 21,67¢

— 67,217 382,97: — 450,18

— 1,099,17 12,92¢ (1,112,10) —

95,12( 9,90¢ — (105,029 —
3,63¢ 25,03¢ 7,35¢ — 36,03

— 43,29( 10,34: — 53,63

4,46¢ 8,00: 17,52« — 29,99¢
238,95¢ 1,268,02! 543,03t (1,228,44) 821,57(
68,33( 248,58: 47,85 — 364,76!
1,859,58! 466,18: — (2,325,76) —
— 1,637,72! 186,19¢ — 1,823,92

— 213,30t 18,13¢ — 231,44:
139,37( 85,43 19,76¢ — 244,56

$ 2,306,24. $ 3,919,25: $ 814,98 $ (3,554,21) $ 3,486,26.
$ 6,70t $ 56,21: $ 31,07« $ (11,319 $ 82,67¢
898,70( — 213,40t (1,112,10) —

— 85,66¢ 27,74( — 113,40!

76,85¢ 224,55¢ 53,29: (105,029) 249,68
4,102 7,775 — — 11,87,
986,361 374,21 325,51; (1,228,44) 457,64;
1,966,25! 1,547,21. — — 3,513,471
10,60:¢ 99,817 2,05¢ — 112,47t
83,18¢ 40,48 19,17¢ — 142,84
(740,17:) 1,857,52 468,24( (2,325,76) (740,17:)

$ 2,306,24 $ 3,919,25: $ 814,98¢ $ (3,554,21) $ 3,486,26
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel
Trust and restricted ca:
Accounts receivable, n
Intercompany receivable
Deferred income taxes receival
Prepaid asse
Deferred expense
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property and equipment, r
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
GOODWILL
INTANGIBLES, net
OTHER ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payabl

Intercompany payable

Accrued expense

Current maturities of lor-term debr

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS, less current maturitit
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY (DEFICIT)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

F-43

December 31, 201

Eliminations
Non- and
Parent / Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating

Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated

$ 106,01 $ 1,821 $ 71,28( $ — $ 179,11
— 14,51¢ — — 14,51¢

— 67,95¢ 376,45: — 444,41

— 828,89t — (828,891) —

99,97¢ 11,622 10,08¢ (108,53 13,14¢
9,851 25,89( 6,38: — 42,12¢

— 30,76" 7,67¢ — 38,44:

11,40¢ 13,67 4,25¢ — 29,33
227,241 995,14 476,13! (937,43) 761,00;
70,21( 249,52 45,16 — 364,89t
1,477,88 373,66! — (1,851,54) —
— 1,637,72! 179,12¢ — 1,816,85:

— 249,11: 36,56( — 285,67

126,87. 88,49 4,27¢ — 219,64.

$ 1,902,21: $ 3,593,66! $ 741,26:. $ (2,788,98) $ 3,448,15:
$ 14,62° $ 84,57¢ $ 21,04: $ — $ 120,24
550,79¢ — 278,09 (828,89¢1) —
48,52¢ 319,48( 52,82¢ (108,53) 312,29t
8,67 16,44¢ — — 25,12¢
622,62 420,50 351,96 (937,43) 457,66¢
2,426,29: 1,566,23: — — 3,992,583
40,45\ 81,44( 10,50: — 132,39¢
62,52: 49,20" 3,51¢ — 115,24;
(1,249,681 1,476,26: 375,28: (1,851,54) (1,249,68)
$ 1,902,21: $ 3,593,66! $ 741,26: $ (2,788,98) $ 3,448,15:
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipm
Other
Net cash flows from investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on subordinated na
Proceeds from initial public offering, net of ofiiey costs
Dividends paic
Payments of lor-term revolving credit obligatior
Proceeds from issuance of l-term revolving credit obligatior
Debt issuance cos
Principal repayments on lo-term obligations
Call premium paid on subordinated no
Proceeds from stock options exercised includingsxtax benefit
Other
Net cash flows from financing activitit
Intercompany
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of period

Year Ended December 31, 201

Parent /
Issuer

$ —

(14,730

(6,28)
(21,019

(450,00()
398,06
(56,672

(30,760)
(14,610
(16,507
1,36(
©
(169,129
213,57

23,43¢
106,01(
$ 129,44!

F-44

Non-

Eliminations and

Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries

$ 287,04t $108,35: $ (11,319
(88,679 (24,989 —
(814) (13) —
(89,499 (25,007) =
— (85,000 —
— 85,00( —
(27,699 = =
(27,699 = =
(171,67Y) (41,907) —
— (821 —

(1,821 40,62¢ (11,319
1,821 71,28( —

$  — $111,90¢ $  (11,31)

Consolidatec

$ 384,08

(128,399

(7,110
(135,509

(450,00()
398,06t
(56,679
(85,000)

85,00(
(30,76()
(42,309
(16,50%)

1,36(
©

(196,820

(821)
50,93(
179,11:

$ 230,04
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

Year Ended December 31, 201

Non- Eliminations and
Parent / Guarantor Guarantor Consolidating
Issuer Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: $ — $ 190,92: $127,99! $ — $ 318,91¢
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Business acquisitior — (77,204 (60) — (77,269
Purchase of property and equipm (9,674 (90,26%) (25,547 — (125,489
Other — (163) 1,294 — 1,131
Net cash flows from investing activiti (9,674 (167,63 (24,31) — (201,62)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from new term loan facil 335,03t 634,96: — — 970,00(
Payment on term loan facili (68,47¢) (379,959 — — (448,43
Dividends paic (510,639 — — — (510,639
Payments of lor-term revolving credit obligatior (133,30() — (172,500) — (305,80()
Proceeds from issuance of l-term revolving credit obligatior 133,30( — 172,50( — 305,80(
Debt issuance cos (27,56¢) — — — (27,56¢)
Principal payments of loi-term obligations (5,51¢) (14,759 — — (20,274
Payments of capital lease obligatic — (27) (16) — (43
Repurchase of common stc (1,48¢) — — — (1,48¢)
Proceeds from stock options exercised includingsst¢ax benefit 5,30¢ — — — 5,30¢
Net cash flows from financing activitit (273,33) 240,21¢ (16) — (33,130
Intercompany 378,51« (261,68 (123,069 6,23¢ —
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS — — 1,111 — 1,111
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 95,50 1,821 (18,299 6,23¢ 85,27t
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period 10,50: — 89,57: (6,239) 93,83¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of period $ 106,01( $ 1,821 $ 71,28( $ — $ 179,11:

F-45
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Business acquisitior
Purchase of property and equipm
Other
Net cash flows from investing activiti
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments of lor-term revolving credit obligatior
Proceeds from issuance of l-term revolving credit obligatior
Debt issuance cos
Principal payments of loi-term obligations
Payments of capital lease obligatic
Repurchase of common stc
Proceeds from stock options exercised includingsstax benefit
Net cash flows from financing activitit
Intercompany
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
End of period

Year Ended December 31, 201

Parent / Guarantor
Issuer Subsidiaries
$ — $ 306,89
— (185,84
(12,107 (89,099
— 99
(12,107 (274,84Y)
(524,30() —
524,30( —
(770) —
(5,327) (11,879
(849 (58)
(5,845 =
1,84( —
(10,959 (11,939
33,56 (20,120
10,50 —
$ 10,50: $ —

F-46

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$  47,52¢

(25,799
(16,707
12

(42,489)
(262,000)
262,00(
(259)

@9

— o
(18,03))

477

(12,81
102,38!

Eliminations and
Consolidating
Entries

$ (6,239

(1,;17)
(4,597)

$ (6,239

Consolidatec

$ 348,18

(211,639
(117,919
111

(329,44)

(786,300
786,30(
(1,029
(17,202)

$ 93,83¢
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WEST CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION ACCOUNTS
THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Reserves

Balance Obtained
Beginning in
Description (amounts in thousands of Year Acquisitions
December 31, 2013—Allowance for doubtful accountssedunts receivable $ 10,43¢ $ —
December 31, 20—Allowance for doubtful accour—Accounts receivabl $ 11,620 $ —
December 31, 20.—Allowance for doubtful accour—Accounts receivabl $ 10,48: $ 374
Valuation
Allowance
Balance Obtained
Beginning in
of Year Acquisitions
December 31, 2013—Allowance for deferred incomestsset valuation $112,62¢ $ —
December 31, 20.—Allowance for deferred income tax asset valua $114,68t $ —
December 31, 20.—Allowance for deferred income tax asset valua $119,68: $ 56C

F-47

Schedule Il
Additions-
Charged
(Credited)
to Cost Deductions-
and Amounts Balance
Expenses Charged-Off End of Year
$ 2,24¢ $ (2,879 $ 9,80¢
$ 1,48¢ $ (2,67)) $ 10,43¢
$ 2,762 $ (1,990 $ 11,627
Balance
Additions Deductions End of Year
$ 984 $ (3,939 $109,67°
$ — $ (2,060 $112,62¢
$ 7C $ (5,629 $114,68t
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Exhibit

Number

3.01

3.02

10.01

10.02

10.03

10.04

10.05

10.06

10.07

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibits identified in parentheses below, on filéhithe SEC are incorporated by reference intoréyort.

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiothe Company, dated March 25, 2013 (incorporateteberence to Exhibit 3.01 to Formigfiled March
27,2013)

Second Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Cometiegtive March 27, 2013 (incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.2 to Form 8-K dated March 27,
2013)

Restatement Agreement (the “Restatement Agreemetat@d as of October 5, 2010, by and among Wellgd-Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent, West Corporation (“West"ytam domestic subsidiaries of West and the lengarsy thereto (Exhibit A, the Amended and Restated
Credit Agreement, is included as Exhibit 10.02f¢irporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to For-K filed October 6, 2010

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated @stober 5, 2010, by and among West, certain domsstisidiaries of West, Wells Fargo Bank, Natit
Association, as administrative agent, Deutsche B#etarities Inc. and Bank of America, N.A., as dyation agents, Wells Fargo Bank, National Assaait
and General Electric Capital Corporation, as coddoentation agents, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC adtsche Bank Securities Inc., as joint lead areg
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC and Deutsche Bank Sgesiinc., as joint bookrunners, and the lender$ypthereto, adopted pursuant to the Restatement
Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibitt@@o Amendment No. 6 to Registration Statemerffam $-1 filed on August 17, 201

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Creditékgemt, dated as of August 15, 2012, by and amors} Gferporation, the Subsidiary Borrowers party
thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationadministrative agent, and the lenders party tbetetthe Amended and Restated Credit Agreemetgdda
as of October 5, 2010, by and among West Corporatiiee lenders from time to time party thereto #Whells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.1 to Form -K dated August 15, 201.

Amendment No. 2 to Amended and Restated Creditéxgent, dated as of October 24, 2012, by and amosst @Gbrporation, Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as administrative agent, and the lenparty thereto, to the Amended and Restated CAggieement, dated as of October 5, 2010, by anzha
West Corporation, the lenders from time to timety#rereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National Assooiatias administrative agent (incorporated by refese
to Exhibit 10.03 to Form 1-Q filed October 26, 201Z

Amendment No. 3 to Amended and Restated Creditéxgent; Amendment No. 1 to Guarantee Agreementddet®f February 20, 2013, by and among

West Corporation, the Subsidiary Borrowers pargreto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, @siaistrative agent, and the lenders party theteto,

the Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, datefi@stober 5, 2010, by and among West Corporatlmn|enders from time to time party thereto and
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as admiaiste agent (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to Form -K filed on February 21, 201«

Amendment No. 4 to Amended and Restated Creditékget, dated as of January 24, 2014, by and amarsg @brporation, the subsidiary borrowers party
thereto, Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationadministrative agent, and the lenders party tbetetthe Amended and Restated Credit Agreemetgdda
as of October 5, 2010, by and among West Corporgatiiee lenders from time to time party thereto #Whells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
administrative agent (incorporated by referencExbibit 10.1 to Form -K filed on January 27, 201.

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2006ng the guarantors identified therein and Leh@ammercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agent.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Adment No. 1 to Registration Statement on Fo-1 filed on November 6, 200!
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Exhibit

Number

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Description
Security Agreement, dated as of October 24, 200@ng West Corporation, the other grantors idemtiffeerein and Lehman Commercial Paper Inc., as

Administrative Agent (incorporated by referenceeschibit 10.3 to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 2001

Intellectual Property Security Agreement, datedfaSctober 24, 2006, among West Corporation, therograntors identified therein and Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc., as Administrative Agentdiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Forr-Q filed on November 9, 200!

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents,rBgégreement and Financing Statement, dated Get@8, 2006, from West Corporation, as Trustor to
Chicago Title Insurance Company, as Trustee andnaehCommercial Paper Inc., as Beneficiary (incaafeat by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 10-Q
filed on November 9, 200t

Deed of Trust, Assignment of Leases and Rents,rgégreement and Financing
Statement, dated October 24, 2006, from West BasiServices, LP to Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc. (incorporated by referendextaibit 10.6 to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 200!

Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents, Seciigtgement and Financing
Statement, dated October 24, 2006, from West Telestiag, LP to Lehman
Commercial Paper Inc. (incorporated by referendextabit 10.7 to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 2001

Indenture, dated as of October 5, 2010, among Wesioration, the guarantors named on the signpages thereto and The Bank of New York Mellon
Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, with respect &8Hh /s % senior notes due 2018 (incorporated byeafe to Exhibit 10.3 to Form 8-K filed October 6,
2010)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 2@¥/1and among 760 Northlawn Drive, LLC, Twenty Fi€entury International Services LLC, Twenty F
Century Crisis Communications, LLC, Twenty Firstiney Communications, Inc., Twenty First Centuryn@ounications of Canada, Inc., InterCall
Communications, Inc., West UC Solutions Holdings,. | West Corporation, and The Bank of New York letelTrust Company, N.A., to the Indenture, d:
as of October 5, 2010, by and among West Corparatiiee guarantors named therein and The Bank of Wenk Mellon Trust Company, N.A., with respect
to West Corporation’s $500.0 million aggregate gipal amount of & ¢ % senior notes due 2018 (inefed by reference to Exhibit 10.02 to Form 10-Q
dated May 3, 2011

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Septemberlll, 2y and among InterCall Communications, Inc.l\HGonnects, Inc. and Unisfair, LLC, West
Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellon Tr@mpany, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as of Oat&8h2010, by and among West Corporation, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New YoeKdvi Trust Company, N.A., with respect to West @wation’s $500.0 million aggregate principal
amount of €5/ 8% senior notes due 2018 (incorporated by refereméshibit 10.02 to Form 1-Q dated November 1, 201

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 19, 2§§1@nd among Hypercube, LLC, Annex Holdings HC @oation, Rubik Acquisition Company, LLC,
West Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellamudt Company, N.A., to the Indenture, dated asabter 5, 2010, by and among West Corporation,
the guarantors named therein and The Bank of Nexk ¥ellon Trust Company, N.A., with respect to W&sirporation’s $500.0 million aggregate principal
amount of €5/ 8% senior notes due 2018 (incorporated by referemé&shibit 10.02 to Form 2-Q filed on July 27, 201z

Indenture, dated as of November 24, 2010, among,Wesguarantors named on the signature pagestthand The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as Trustee, with respect to thle #% kenior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referéméhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed November 24,
2010)
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.18 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 21, 2@¥/1and among 760 Northlawn Drive, LLC, Twenty Fi€entury International Services LLC, Twenty F

Century Crisis Communications, LLC, Twenty Firstiniey Communications, Inc., Twenty First Centuryn@ounications of Canada, Inc., InterCall
Communications, Inc., West UC Solutions Holdings,. | West Corporation, and The Bank of New York lekelTrust Company, N.A., to the Indenture, de
as of November 24, 2010, by and among West Coriparghe guarantors named therein and The Bankeaf Nork Mellon Trust Company, N.A., with
respect to West Corporation’s $650.0 million agagtegrincipal amount of 7 sf% senior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referemé&sxhibit 10.03 to Forr
10-Q dated May 3, 201!

10.19 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Septemberlll, 2y and among InterCall Communications, Inc.l\HGonnects, Inc. and Unisfair, LLC, West
Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellon Tr@impany, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as of Novem24, 2010, by and among West Corporation, the
guarantors named therein and The Bank of New YoeKdvi Trust Company, N.A., with respect to West@wation’s $650.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 77/ 8% senior notes due 2019 (incorporated by refereméshibit 10.03 to Form -Q dated November 1, 201

10.20 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 19, 2§§1@nd among Hypercube, LLC, Annex Holdings HC @eation, Rubik Acquisition Company, LLC,
West Corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellamdt Company, N.A., to the Indenture, dated as@fé¥nber 24, 2010, by and among West
Corporation, the guarantors named therein and EmkBf New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., withsgect to West Corporation’s $650.0 million
aggregate principal amount o7/ % senior notes due 2019 (incorporated by referemé&hibit 10.03 to Form -Q filed on July 27, 201Z

10.21 Management Agreement, dated as of October 24, 2006ng Omaha Acquisition Corp., West Corporationadangle Advisors Il LLC, and THL Manag¢
VI, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@&BForm 1(-Q filed on November 9, 200!

10.22 Management Letter Agreement, dated as of Marcl®83 2among Omaha Acquisition Corp., West Corponat@uadrangle Advisors Il LLC, and THL
Managers VI, LLC (incorporated by reference to Bxh10.64 to Amendment No. 12 to Registration Steget on Form -1 filed on March 11, 201

10.23 Founders Agreement, dated October 24, 2006, amag} Bbrporation, Gary L. West and Mary E. Westdiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Form
10-Q filed on November 9, 200!

10.24 Amended and Restated Stockholder Agreement, dateéiMarch 8, 2013, among West Corporation, THLekters, Quadrangle Investors and affiliates of
the Founders (incorporated by reference to ExAibié5 to Amendment No. 12 to Registration Staternarfform -1 filed on March 11, 201:

10.25 Amended and Restated Registration Rights and Ceatidn Agreement, dated as of March 8, 2013, anWgagt Corporation, THL Investors, Quadrangle

Investors and affiliates of the Founders (incorpeay reference to Exhibit 10.63 to Amendment Nbto Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on
March 11, 2013

10.26 Letter Agreement regarding confidentiality, datscb&June 24, 2013, among West Corporation anditelnvestors **

10.27 Lease, dated September 1, 1994, by and betweenTlesharketing Corporation and 99-Maple Partnergéhipendment No. 1) dated December 10, 2003
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.07 to FAG-K filed February 24, 200¢

10.28 Second Lease Amendment and Extension Agreemert datef October 24, 2012, effective as of Novenih@012, between 98taple Partnership and We

Business Solutions, LLC (incorporated by referetocExhibit 10.04 to Form -Q filed October 26, 201:
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10.35
10.36
10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46
10.47

Description
Form of Indemnification Agreement between West @oation and its directors and officers (incorpoddbg reference to Exhibit 10.66 to Amendment Nc

to Registration Statement on Fort-1 filed on March 11, 201:
West Corporation 2006 Executive Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Forr-Q filed on November 9, 2006) (

Amendment Number One to West Corporation’s 2006cktiee Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencE&xbibit 10.30 to Form 10-K filed February 23,
2011) (1)

Amendment Number Two to West Corporation’s 2006dtxiee Incentive Plan (incorporated by referenc&xbibit 10.1 to Form & dated January 3, 201
@

Amendment Number Three to West Corporation’s 200€chtive Incentive Plan (incorporated by referetecExhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q dated April 29,
2012) (1)

Amended and Restated Restricted Stock Award andi&@pgonus Agreement between West Corporation avattB. Strubbe dated February 14 , 2012
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to FAG-K filed February 14, 2012) (:

Form of Option Agreement under 2006 Executive ItigerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibitl#0to Form 1-Q filed on November 9, 2006) (
Form of Option Agreement under 2006 Executive ItigerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit0P0to Form 1-Q filed on April 29, 2012) (1

Alternative Form of Option Agreement under 2006 &x@/e Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencEsbibit 10.03 to Form 1@ filed on April 29, 2012
@

Form of Rollover Option Grant Agreement under 283@cutive Incentive Plan (incorporated by referetacExhibit 10.15 to Form 10-Q filed on November
9, 2006) (1)

West Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plandiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Amendimm 12 to Registration Statement on Form S-1
filed on March 11, 2013) (1

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement undeirest Corporation 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plandnporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Form
10-Q filed November 1, 2013) (

Form of Option Award Notice and Stock Option Agresrhunder the West Corporation 2013 Long-Term lItigcerPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.3 to Form 1-Q filed November 1, 2013) (:

West Corporation 2013 Employee Stock Purchase Bfaamended and restated
effective September 10, 2013 (incorporated by esfee to Exhibit 10.1 to For10-Q filed November 1, 201:

West Corporation Executive Incentive Compensatilam fincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3%tmendment No. 12 to Registration Statement on
Form ¢-1 filed on March 11, 2013) (:

West Corporation Nonqualified Deferred CompensaBtan, as amended as restated effective March(®B @ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.67 to
Amendment No. 12 to Registration Statement on Fg-1 filed on March 11, 2013) (:

Amendment Number One to the West Corporation NolifiechDeferred Compensation Plan dated as of Apil 2013 (incorporated by reference to Form
10-Q dated April 29, 2012

Amendment Number Two to the West Corporation Nolified Deferred Compensation Plan dated as of Jgn2®, 2014 (1)**

West Corporation Executive Retirement Savings Rlarended and Restated Effective January 1, 2008ifacated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Form
10-K filed March 3, 2009) (1
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Description
Form of Change in Control Severance Agreement (paated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Forn-Q filed April 29, 2013) (1

Employment Agreement between the Company and Th@&nBarker dated December 31, 2008 (incorporaterefsrence to Exhibit 10.1 to Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009) (:

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmfgiteement between West Corporation and ThomasabkeB, dated December 31, 2008 (1)

Employment Agreement between the Company and NeRcBerger dated December 31, 2008 (incorporateetfgyence to Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009) (-

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmf&giteement between West Corporation and NanceeeRyeB, dated December 31, 2008 (1,

Employment Agreement between the Company and PaMéndlik, dated December 31, 2008 (incorporatedeigrence to Exhibit 10.4 to Form 8-K filed
January 7, 2009) (:

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmigiteement between West Corporation and Paul M.dMlendated December 31, 2008 (1)

Employment Agreement between West Corporation ardt'B. Strubbe, dated September 28, 2009 (incomdizy reference to Exhibit 10.07 to Form 10-K
filed February 12, 2010) (:

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employmfgiteement between West Corporation and Todd Bib®#, dated September 28, 2009 (1

Employment Agreement between West Corporation dede® M. Stangl dated December 31, 2008 (incorpdrhy reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Form 8-K
filed January 7, 2009) (:

Exhibit A dated February 18, 2014 to the Employm&giteement between West Corporation and Steventdhgh dated December 31, 2008 (1)
Subsidiaries **

Consent of independent registered public accouffiting**
Certification pursuant to 15 U.S.C. section 724adapted pursuant to section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002 **

Certification pursuant to 15 U.S.C. section 724 adepted pursuant to section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002 **
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 135@dapted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002 **
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 135@dspted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002 **

Financial statements from the annual report on FBbrAK of West Corporation for the year ended Decen#i, 2013, filed on February 20, 2014, formatted
in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated Statements of Openasi (i) Consolidated Statements of Comprehenisigeme; (iii) the Consolidated Balance Sheets; (iv)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows; (v) Conatdid Statements of Stockholc’ Deficit and (vi) the Notes to the Consolidated Ficial Statements *

Indicates management contract or compensationgslarrangemen
Filed herewitr



Exhibit 10.26

West Corporation
11808 Miracle Hills Drive
Omaha, Nebraska 68154

June 24, 2013

Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P.
100 Federal Street

Boston, MA 02110

Attention: Soren L. Oberg

Dear Soren:

As you know, prior to its IPO in March 2013, Wesdrfloration and its subsidiaries and affiliates (tl@ompany”) regularly provided financial and operating repantsl othe
information to the undersigned funds affiliatediwithomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. (th€HL Funds ") in connection with the THL Funds’ monitoring tifeir investments in
the Company. At the request of the THL Funds, thenfany will continue to provide such informatiortie THL Funds in a similar fashion to what hadrbpeovided prior t
the IPO, with such modifications as the Company diaguss with the THL Funds from time to time. Sudlormation may include non-public information exding the
Company (“Confidential Information ). Set forth below is our agreement regarding sgonfidential Information:

1. The THL Funds will keep confidential and willtrdisclose, divulge or use for any purpose, othantto monitor their investment in the Company, any
Confidential Information obtained from the Compaugless such Confidential Information (i) is knoambecomes known to the public in general (othanths
a result of a breach of confidentiality by a THLr, (ii) is or has been independently developedoniceived by a THL Fund or its Representativefir{dd
below) without use of the Confidential Information(iii) is or has been made known or disclosetheéoTHL Funds or their Representatives by a thadyp
without a breach of any obligation of confidentiabuch third party may have to the Company th&hiswn to a THL Fund; providedhowever, that (x) a THL
Fund may disclose Confidential Information (a)tadttorneys, accountants, consultants, and otleéegsional advisors to the extent necessary w@irkteir
services in connection with monitoring its investinim the Company, (b) to its directors, officezmployees, agents, owners, shareholders, co-imgesto
affiliates, partners, members, investors or potimivestors subject to confidentiality obligatianghe ordinary course of business (collectivélyt only to the
extent such persons listed in this clause (b) vec€bnfidential Information from a THL FundRepresentatives’), or (c) as may otherwise be requested or
required by law, rule, regulation, legal order, r@e; subpoena, litigation discovery request, seoahange rule, body of accountancy or legal, jadlici
administrative or any similar process; and (y) @enpany acknowledges that 1



THL Funds, their affiliates or Representatives meyiew the business plans and related proprietdoymation of many enterprises, including entegsighich
may have products or services which compete dyrectindirectly with those of the Company, and rimghherein shall preclude or in any way restriet THL
Funds, their affiliates or Representatives fromesting or participating in any particular entergrier trading in the securities thereof (subjeatdmpliance with
applicable securities laws), whether or not sudergnise has products or services that competetivithe of the Compan

2. The THL Funds have taken commercially reasonappropriate steps to assure that neither it npioaits Representatives will purchase or sell siéies issued
by the Company on the basis of material non-pubfrmation or communicate such information to ethender circumstances in which it is reasonably
foreseeable that such person may purchase oreseifises issued by the Compa

The Company acknowledges that the THL Funds maar émtio one or more underwriting agreements pursteawhich they may sell securities of the Compasgthing
herein shall limit the THL Funds’ rights under asych underwriting agreement. Moreover, nothing ineshall limit the rights of any of THL Fund'’s dffites or
Representatives who serve on the board of direofdfse Company under any indemnification agreerbettveen such affiliates or Representatives an€Ctmepany.

Very truly yours,

WEST CORPORATION

By:  /s/ David C. Mussma
Name: David C. Mussme

Title: Executive Vice President, Secretary and
General Counst




Acknowledged and Agreed to t

THOMAS H. LEE EQUITY FUND VI, L.P.

By: THL Equity Advisors VI, LLC, its general partn
By: Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., its sole men
By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its general part
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Ober
Title: Managing Directo

THOMAS H. LEE PARALLEL FUND VI, L.P.

By: THL Equity Advisors, VI, LLC, its general pagn
By: Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., its sole men
By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its general parl
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Obel
Title: Managing Directo

THOMAS H. LEE PARALLEL (DT) FUND VI, L.P.
By: THL Equity Advisors VI, LLC, its general partn
By: Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., its sole men
By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its general part
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Obel
Title: Managing Directo

THL COINVESTMENT PARTNERS, L.F

By: Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., its general ga
By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its general part
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Ober
Title: Managing Directo



THL EQUITY FUND VI INVESTORS (WEST), L.P
By: THL Equity Advisors VI, LLC, its general partn
By: Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., its sole men
By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its general part
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Obel
Title: Managing Directo

THL EQUITY FUND VI INVESTORS (WEST) HL, L.P
By: THL Equity Advisors VI, LLC, its general partn
By: Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P., its sole men

By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its general part
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By: /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Ober
Title: Managing Directo

PUTNAM INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS, LLC

By: Putnam Investments, LLC, its managing men
By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its attorr-in-fact
By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Obel
Title: Managing Directo

PUTNAM INVESTMENTS EMPLOYEES’

SECURITIES COMPANY Il LLC

By: Putnam Investment Holdings, LLC, its managirgtper
By: Putnam Investments, LLC, its managing men

By: Thomas H. Lee Advisors, LLC, its attorr-in-fact

By: THL Holdco, LLC, its managing memb

By:  /s/ Soren L. Ober

Name: Soren L. Obel
Title: Managing Directo



Exhibit 10.46
AMENDMENT NUMBER TWO

TO THE
WEST CORPORATION NONQUALIFIED DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

WHEREAS , West Corporation, a Delaware corporation (therffpany”), maintains the West Corporation Nonquatifizeferred Compensation Plan, as amended and
restated effective as of March 27, 2013 and amehglé@imendment Number One dated as of April 24, 2@48 “Plan”);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VIII of the Plan, the Compargsithe authority to amend the Plan; and

WHEREAS, the Board has authorized an amendment of the Blprotiide participants in the Plan with the righitiake more than one redeferral election with retspe
to a participant’s deferral account for each plaaryin accordance with the terms of the Plan hadrtternal Revenue Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Plan hereby is amended, effective asrofaly 29, 2014, as follows:
1. The final sentence of Section 3.1(f) is heretmgaded to delete the words “one-time” prior towhed “redeferral”.

2. The first sentence of Section 6.2 is hereby ateeéno add the following parenthetical after thference to “subsection 6.1(a)”.
“(without limitation as to the number of such mackitions which may be made by a Participant witpeet to the deferrals for any Plan Year)”

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the Company has caused this instrument to beute@dy its duly authorized agent as of Januan20%4.

WEST CORPORATION

By:  /s/ Paul M. Mendlil
Name: Paul M. Mendlil
Title: Chief Financial Office




To:
From:
Date:

Re:

Exhibit 10.50

west

Tom Barker
West Corporation Compensation Committee
February 18, 2014

Exhibit A

This Exhibit A for 2014 is entered into pursuant/tur Employment Agreement.

1.
2.

Your base salary for 2014 is $1,000,0

Effective January 1, 2014, you will be eligildereceive a bonus based upon West CorporatiorsBghyreported consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (“Adijied
EBITDA”). Your bonus will be made up of two tranch

. “Tranche 1” will be based on achievement of AdjdsEBITDA up to $704,400,000 and will be earned pt for each dollar of 2014 Adjusted
EBITDA up to $704,400,00(
. “Tranche 2” will be based on achievement of AdjdsSEBITDA in excess of $704,400,000 and will be earpro-rata for each dollar of 2014 Adjusted

EBITDA greater than $704,400,0C
The bonus calculations for Tranches 1 and 2 afellasvs:

Bonus / Million of 2014 Adjusted EBITD
Tranche 1 $1,775

Tranche Z $52,966

In addition, you will be eligible to receive Révenue Bonus” based on West Corporation’s coreseliti2014 Revenue growth in excess of target Revehu
$2,789,000,000. Your Revenue Bonus will be equéthéopercentage of excess Revenue growth achiexerdarget Revenue growth of $103,145,000 multiplie
by the amount of the Tranche 2 bonus earned. “Re¥/emill be calculated in accordance with generaltgepted accounting principles as included in West
Corporation’s financial statements. The Revenueudas calculated following year-end and will bedot the extent earned no later than February @852
There are no quarterly payments of the Revenue 81

A maximum of 75% of the estimated pro-rata portof your Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 bonuses may\emnaed quarterly. If any portion of the bonuses is
advanced, it will be paid within thirty (30) day®sim the end of the quarter. 100% of the total beswesarned will be paid no later than February 2&52In the
event there is a negative calculation at the erahgfquarter and a pro-rata portion of any bongstieen advanced in a previous quarter, a “losy éamwvard”
will result and be applied to the next quarterlyear-to-date calculation. In the event that atethe of the year, or upon your termination if earlthe aggregate
amount of the bonuses which have been advanceedstiee amount of bonus that otherwise would haes Ipayable for 2014 (in the absence of advances)
based on the performance during 2014 (or, in tise chyout



termination, based on the performance during 2@titlae projection for performance for the balant20i4 as of your termination date pursuant to your
Employment Agreement), then the amount of suchsxogay, in the discretion of the Compensation Cdtemieither (i) result in a “loss carry forwardhigh
shall be applied to the quarterly or year-to-datiewdation of bonuses, salary, severance, conguiéies and / or other amounts payable in subsegeeiuids, or
(i) be required to be paid back to the Companyrugach reques

All objectives are based on West Corporationd is affiliates’ consolidated operations. Reveand Adjusted EBITDA arising from mergers, acqiosis and
joint ventures may be included in your bonus catahs on a case by case basis, as determinec [yotmpensation Committe

At the discretion of the Compensation Committee| gy receive an additional bonus based on the @ny's and your individual performanc

/s| Tom Barke

Employee- Tom Barker



To:
From:
Date:

Re:

Exhibit 10.52

west

Nancee Bergel
West Corporation Compensation Committee
February 18, 2014

Exhibit A

This Exhibit A for 2014 is entered into pursuant/tur Employment Agreement.

1.
2.

Your base salary for 2014 is $660,0

Effective January 1, 2014, you will be eligildereceive a bonus based upon West CorporatiorsBghyreported consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (“Adijied
EBITDA”). Your bonus will be made up of two tranch

. “Tranche 1” will be based on achievement of AdjdsEBITDA up to $704,400,000 and will be earned pt for each dollar of 2014 Adjusted
EBITDA up to $704,400,00(
. “Tranche 2” will be based on achievement of AdjdsSEBITDA in excess of $704,400,000 and will be earpro-rata for each dollar of 2014 Adjusted

EBITDA greater than $704,400,0C
The bonus calculations for Tranches 1 and 2 afellasvs:

Bonus / Million of 2014 Adjusted EBITD
Tranche 1 $1,242

Tranche Z $37,076

In addition, you will be eligible to receive Révenue Bonus” based on West Corporation’s coreseliti2014 Revenue growth in excess of target Revehu
$2,789,000,000. Your Revenue Bonus will be equéthéopercentage of excess Revenue growth achiexerdarget Revenue growth of $103,145,000 multiplie
by the amount of the Tranche 2 bonus earned. “Re¥/emill be calculated in accordance with generaltgepted accounting principles as included in West
Corporation’s financial statements. The Revenueudas calculated following year-end and will bedot the extent earned no later than February @852
There are no quarterly payments of the Revenue 81

A maximum of 75% of the estimated pro-rata portof your Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 bonuses may\emnaed quarterly. If any portion of the bonuses is
advanced, it will be paid within thirty (30) day®sim the end of the quarter. 100% of the total beswesarned will be paid no later than February 2&52In the
event there is a negative calculation at the erahgfquarter and a pro-rata portion of any bongstieen advanced in a previous quarter, a “losy éamwvard”
will result and be applied to the next quarterlyear-to-date calculation. In the event that atethe of the year, or upon your termination if earlthe aggregate
amount of the bonuses which have been advanceedstiee amount of bonus that otherwise would haes Ipayable for 2014 (in the absence of advances)
based on the performance during 2014 (or, in tise chyout



termination, based on the performance during 2@titlae projection for performance for the balant20i4 as of your termination date pursuant to your
Employment Agreement), then the amount of suchsxogay, in the discretion of the Compensation Cdtemieither (i) result in a “loss carry forwardhigh
shall be applied to the quarterly or year-to-datiewdation of bonuses, salary, severance, conguiéies and / or other amounts payable in subsegeeiuids, or
(i) be required to be paid back to the Companyrugach reques

All objectives are based on West Corporationd is affiliates’ consolidated operations. Reveand Adjusted EBITDA arising from mergers, acqiosis and
joint ventures may be included in your bonus catahs on a case by case basis, as determinec [yotmpensation Committe

At the discretion of the Compensation Committee| gy receive an additional bonus based on the @ny's and your individual performanc

/sl Nancee Bergt

Employee- Nancee Berge



To:
From:
Date:

Re:

Exhibit 10.54

west

Paul Mendlik
West Corporation Compensation Committee
February 18, 2014

Exhibit A

This Exhibit A for 2014 is entered into pursuant/tur Employment Agreement.

1.
2.

Your base salary for 2014 is $480,0

Effective January 1, 2014, you will be eligildereceive a bonus based upon West CorporatiorsBghyreported consolidated Adjusted EBITDA (“Adijied
EBITDA”). Your bonus will be made up of two tranch

. “Tranche 1” will be based on achievement of AdjdsEBITDA up to $704,400,000 and will be earned pt for each dollar of 2014 Adjusted
EBITDA up to $704,400,00(
. “Tranche 2” will be based on achievement of AdjdsSEBITDA in excess of $704,400,000 and will be earpro-rata for each dollar of 2014 Adjusted

EBITDA greater than $704,400,0C
The bonus calculations for Tranches 1 and 2 afellasvs:

Bonus / Million of 2014 Adjusted EBITD
Tranche 1 $399

Tranche Z $11,917

In addition, you will be eligible to receive Révenue Bonus” based on West Corporation’s coreseliti2014 Revenue growth in excess of target Revehu
$2,789,000,000. Your Revenue Bonus will be equéthéopercentage of excess Revenue growth achiexerdarget Revenue growth of $103,145,000 multiplie
by the amount of the Tranche 2 bonus earned. “Re¥/emill be calculated in accordance with generaltgepted accounting principles as included in West
Corporation’s financial statements. The Revenueudas calculated following year-end and will bedot the extent earned no later than February @852
There are no quarterly payments of the Revenue 81

A maximum of 75% of the estimated pro-rata portof your Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 bonuses may\emnaed quarterly. If any portion of the bonuses is
advanced, it will be paid within thirty (30) day®sim the end of the quarter. 100% of the total beswesarned will be paid no later than February 2&52In the
event there is a negative calculation at the erahgfquarter and a pro-rata portion of any bongstieen advanced in a previous quarter, a “losy éamwvard”
will result and be applied to the next quarterlyear-to-date calculation. In the event that atethe of the year, or upon your termination if earlthe aggregate
amount of the bonuses which have been advanceedstiee amount of bonus that otherwise would haes Ipayable for 2014 (in the absence of advances)
based on the performance during 2014 (or, in tise chyout



termination, based on the performance during 2@titlae projection for performance for the balant20i4 as of your termination date pursuant to your
Employment Agreement), then the amount of suchsxogay, in the discretion of the Compensation Cdtemieither (i) result in a “loss carry forwardhigh
shall be applied to the quarterly or year-to-datiewdation of bonuses, salary, severance, conguiéies and / or other amounts payable in subsegeeiuids, or
(i) be required to be paid back to the Companyrugach reques

All objectives are based on West Corporationd is affiliates’ consolidated operations. Reveand Adjusted EBITDA arising from mergers, acqiosis and
joint ventures may be included in your bonus catahs on a case by case basis, as determinec [yotmpensation Committe

At the discretion of the Compensation Committee| gy receive an additional bonus based on the @ny's and your individual performanc

/sl Paul Mendlil

Employee- Paul Mendlik



Exhibit 10.56

west
la
To: Todd Strubbe
From: West Corporation Compensation Committee
Date: February 18, 2014
Re: Exhibit A

This Exhibit A for 2014 is entered into pursuant/tur Employment Agreement.
1. Your base salary for 2014 is $500,0

2. Effective January 1, 2014, you will be eligildereceive a bonus based upon the Unified CommtiaiceSegment’s Net Operating Income before cotpora
allocations and before amortization (“NOI PC&A”)eNOperating Income will be calculated in accordawith generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP") as included in West Corporati's financial statements. Your bonus will be mad@igvo tranches

. “Tranche 1” will be based on achievement of NOI FPC8p to $472,631,000 and will be earned pro-rataefch dollar of 2014 NOI PC&A up to
$472,631,00C
. “Tranche 2” will be based on achievement of NOI PICi& excess of $472,631,000 and will be earnedrpta-for each dollar of 2014 NOI PC&A

greater than $472,631,0C
The bonus calculations for Tranches 1 and 2 afellasvs:

Bonus / Million of 2014 NOI PC&

Tranche 1 $741
Tranche Z $81,094
3. In addition, you will be eligible to receive Révenue Bonus” based on 2014 Revenue growth irsexafetarget Revenue of $1,680,928,000 for theigbhif

Communications Segment. Your Revenue Bonus wiltdueal to the percentage of excess Revenue grolibvael over target Revenue growth of $72,234,000
multiplied by the amount of the Tranche 2 bonusiedr “Revenue” will be calculated in accordancéBAAP as included in West Corporation’s financial
statements. The Revenue Bonus is calculated fallgwear-end and will be paid to the extent earreethter than February 28, 2015. There are no qlwarte
payments of the Revenue Bon

4. If West Corporation achieves 2014 publicly repdrconsolidated Adjusted EBITDA (“Adjusted EBITDPEqual to or in excess of its 2014 Adjusted EBITDA
guidance (as publicly announced January 2014)wibie eligible to receive an additional one-titnenus of $100,000. The Adjusted EBITDA guidanceuson
is calculated following year-end and will be paidthe extent earned no later than February 28,.2I¥é&re are no quarterly payments of the AdjustBirBA
guidance bonus



A maximum of 75% of the estimated pro-rata portof your Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 bonuses may\emnaed quarterly. If any portion of the bonuses is
advanced, it will be paid within thirty (30) day®sim the end of the quarter. 100% of the total beswesarned will be paid no later than February 2&52In the
event there is a negative calculation at the erahgfquarter and a pro-rata portion of any bongstieen advanced in a previous quarter, a “losy éamwvard”

will result and be applied to the next quarterlyear-to-date calculation. In the event that atethe of the year, or upon your termination if earlthe aggregate
amount of the bonuses which have been advanceedstiee amount of bonus that otherwise would haes Ipayable for 2014 (in the absence of advances)
based on the performance during 2014 (or, in tlse ofiyour termination, based on the performancmg2014 and the projection for performance far th
balance of 2014 as of your termination date pursteayour Employment Agreement), then the amoursugh excess may, in the discretion of the Compiemsa
Committee, either (i) result in a “loss carry fordfawhich shall be applied to the quarterly or y#@udate calculation of bonuses, salary, severasaresulting
fees and / or other amounts payable in subsequeeiads, or (ii) be required to be paid back to@wnpany upon such reque

All objectives are based on West Corporationd is affiliates’ consolidated operations. NOI PE&et Operating Income, Revenue and Adjusted EBATD
arising from mergers, acquisitions and joint veesumay be included in your bonus calculations oas® by case basis, as determined by the Compmmsati
Committee.

At the discretion of the Compensation Committee| gy receive an additional bonus based on the @ny's and your individual performanc

/s/ Todd Strubb
Employee- Todd Strubbe




Exhibit 10.58

west
la
To: Steve Stang
From: West Corporation Compensation Committee
Date: February 18, 2014
Re: Exhibit A

This Exhibit A for 2014 is entered into pursuant/tur Employment Agreement.
1. Your base salary for 2014 is $500,0

2. Effective January 1, 2014, you will be eligildereceive a bonus based upon the CommunicatioricesrSegment’s Net Operating Income before cotpora
allocations and before amortization (“NOI PC&A”)eNOperating Income will be calculated in accordawith generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP") as included in West Corporati's financial statements. Your bonus will be mad@igvo tranches

. “Tranche 1” will be based on achievement of NOI FC8p to $135,047,000 and will be earned pro-rataefch dollar of 2014 NOI PC&A up to
$135,047,00C
. “Tranche 2” will be based on achievement of NOI FICi& excess of $135,047,000 and will be earnedrpta-for each dollar of 2014 NOI PC&A

greater than $135,047,0C
The bonus calculations for Tranches 1 and 2 afellasvs:

Bonus / Million of 2014 NOI PC&

Tranche 1 $1,851
Tranche Z $32,038
3. In addition, you will be eligible to receive Révenue Bonus” based on 2014 Revenue growth (erditlyperCube’s intercompany revenue) in excedarget

Revenue of $1,127,091,000 for the CommunicatioriBes Segment. Your Revenue Bonus will be equtiiégercentage of excess Revenue growth achieved
over target Revenue growth of $30,448,000 multipbg the amount of the Tranche 2 bonus earned.¢Re¥” will be calculated in accordance with GAAP as
included in West Corporation’s financial statemefitse Revenue Bonus is calculated following yeat-and will be paid to the extent earned no latanth
February 28, 2015. There are no quarterly paymafrttee Revenue Bonu

4. If West Corporation achieves 2014 publicly repdrconsolidated Adjusted EBITDA (“Adjusted EBITDPEqual to or in excess of its 2014 Adjusted EBITDA
guidance (as publicly announced January 2014)wibie eligible to receive an additional one-titnenus of $100,000. The Adjusted EBITDA guidanceuson
is calculated following year-end and will be paidthe extent earned no later than February 28,.2I¥é&re are no quarterly payments of the AdjustBirBA
guidance bonus



A maximum of 75% of the estimated pro-rata portof your Tranche 1 and Tranche 2 bonuses may\emnaed quarterly. If any portion of the bonuses is
advanced, it will be paid within thirty (30) day®sim the end of the quarter. 100% of the total beswesarned will be paid no later than February 2&52In the
event there is a negative calculation at the erahgfquarter and a pro-rata portion of any bongstieen advanced in a previous quarter, a “losy éamwvard”

will result and be applied to the next quarterlyear-to-date calculation. In the event that atethe of the year, or upon your termination if earlthe aggregate
amount of the bonuses which have been advanceedstiee amount of bonus that otherwise would haes Ipayable for 2014 (in the absence of advances)
based on the performance during 2014 (or, in tlse ofiyour termination, based on the performancmg2014 and the projection for performance far th
balance of 2014 as of your termination date pursteayour Employment Agreement), then the amoursugh excess may, in the discretion of the Compiemsa
Committee, either (i) result in a “loss carry fordfawhich shall be applied to the quarterly or y#@udate calculation of bonuses, salary, severasaresulting
fees and / or other amounts payable in subsequeeiads, or (ii) be required to be paid back to@wnpany upon such reque

All objectives are based on West Corporationd is affiliates’ consolidated operations. NOI PE&et Operating Income, Revenue and Adjusted EBATD
arising from mergers, acquisitions and joint veesumay be included in your bonus calculations oas® by case basis, as determined by the Compmmsati
Committee.

At the discretion of the Compensation Committee| gy receive an additional bonus based on the @ny's and your individual performanc

/sl Steve Stan(
Employee- Steve Stanc




West Corporation and subsidiariesas of 12/31/13

Name

State of
Organization

DBAs

Exhibit 21.01

West Corporatiol

InterCall, Inc.

Intrado, Inc.
West Asset Management, Ir

West At Home, LLC

West Business Solutions, LL

West Direct, LLC

West Facilities, LLC
West IP Communications, In
West Notifications, Inc

Intrado Canada, In

A Better Conference, Ini
Annex Holdings HC Corporatic
Asset Direct Mortgage, LLt

BuyDebtCo, LLC

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware

Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Canadz

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Nevada

West Corporation (Delawar
West Corporatio Delaware
West Corporation of Delawa
West Corporation of Nebras|

Conferencecall.cor

The Teleconferencing Cent
ECI Conference Call Servic
West Conferencing Services, It
InterCall Teleconferencing, In

The Conferencing Cent

911Link
WAM West Asset Management, Ir
WAM West Asset Manageme

Accent Cost Containment Solutio

West At Home, LLC of Delawar

WBS At Home

West Business Services, Insurance Sales,
West Business Services Limited Partners
West Business Engagement Services, |

West Business Solutions (Delawa
West Language Servic

Legal Reward:

Major Savings

Savings Direc

Essential Saving

TeleConference US.
West Direct Government Servic

Delaware Facilities Corporatic
Smoothstone IP Communicatio
TeleVox Software

Twenty First Century Communicatio

Twenty First Century Communications Televox Softa

West Notifications Grou
Interactive Serivce
West IP Communicatior
None

None

None

None



State of

Name Organization DBAs
Conferencecall Services India Private Limi India None
Cosmosis Corporatio Colorado None
Intercall (Beijing) Technology Consulting Co., L China None
Intercall (Beijing) Technology Consulting Co., Lt&hanghai Branc Shanghai (branch on- not a separate entit None
Genesys Conferencing Limite United Kingdom None
Genesys Conferencing Ltd. Canada None
Genesys Conferencing ServiCos de TelecomunicaCde: Portugal None
Holly Australia Pty. Ltd Australia None
Holly Connects, Inc Delaware None
Hypercube Telecom, LL! Delaware None
Hypercube, LLC Delaware None
InterCall Asia Pacific Holdings Pte. Lt Singapore None
InterCall Australia Pty. Ltd Australia None
InterCall Canada, Inc Canadz None
InterCall Conferencing Mexico, S. de R.L. de C Mexico None
InterCall Conferencing Services Limit: United Kingdom None
InterCall Conferencing Services Mexico, S. de RI& C.V. Mexico None
InterCall de Mexico, S. de R.L.de C. Mexico None
InterCall Europe Holdings SA France None
InterCall Europe SA! France None
InterCall Filial Af InterCall Sweden Ab, Sveri¢ Denmark (branch onl- not a separate entit None
InterCall France Holdings SA France None
InterCall France SA! France None
InterCall GmbH Germany None
InterCall Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong None
InterCall India Conference Services Private Limi India None
InterCall Japan Kk Japar None
InterCall Korea Co., Ltc Korea None
InterCall Netherland Netherlands (branch on- not a separate entit None
InterCall New Zealand Limite New Zealanc None
InterCall S.R.L. Italy None
InterCall SA Belgium None
InterCall Services Malaysia Sdn. Bt Malaysia None
InterCall Singapore Pte. Lt Singapore None
InterCall Spain S.A., Sociedad Uniperso Spain None



State of

Name Organization DBAs
InterCall Sweden AE Sweder None
InterCall Sweden Aktiebolag, Filial i Finlar Finland (branch onl- not a separate entit None
InterCall Sweden Norsk Avdelning av Utelandsk Fake Norway (branch onl- not a separate entit None
InterCall Telecom Ventures, LL Delaware None
Intrado Command Systems, It New Jerse! None
Intrado Communications Inc. Delaware None
Intrado Communications of Virginia In Virginia None
Intrado Inc. Delaware None
Intrado Information Systems Holdings, It Delaware None
Intrado International, LLC Delaware None
Intrado Systems Cor| Georgia None
Jamaican Agent Services Limit Jamaice None
May Family Investments Limite United Kingdom None
Northern Contact, Inc Delaware None
Positron Public Safety Systems Ii Argentina (branch onl- not a separate entit None
Preferred One Stop Technologies Limi United Kingdom None
Rubik Acquisition Company, LL( Delaware None
Stargate Management, LL Colorado None
The Debt Depot, LLC Delaware None
Twenty First Century Communications of Canada, Ohio None
Twenty First Century International Services, L Ohio None
Unisfair Ltd. Israel None
West Asset Purchasing, LL Nevada None
West Contact Services Mexico, S. de R.L. de ( Mexico None
West Contact Services, Inc. Philippines None
West Direct I, Inc. Arizona None
West Education Foundatic Nebraske None
West Interactive Corporatic Delaware None
West Interactive Corporation Delaware None
West Interactive Pty. Ltc Australia None
West International Corporatic Delaware None
West International Holdings Limite United Kingdom None
West Netherlands B.\ Netherlands None
West Netherlands C.\ Netherland None
West Netherlands Cooperatief U. Netherland: None
West Professional Services, Ii Delaware None



State of

Name Organization DBAs
West Receivable Services, It Delaware None
West Receivables Holdings LL Delaware None
West Receivables LL' Delaware None
West Receivables Purchasing L Nevada None
West Teleconferéncias e Comunicagdes L Brazil None
West Telemarketing Canada, ULC Canada None
Worldwide Asset Purchasing, LL Nevada None



Exhibit 23.01
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®eggion Statement No. 333-187452 on Form S-8uofreports dated February 20, 2014, relating tactiresolidated

financial statements and financial statement sdieeafu/Vest Corporation and subsidiaries, and tfecéfeness of West Corporation and subsidiarig'rhal control over
financial reporting, appearing in this Annual Reor Form 10-K of West Corporation and subsidiafieshe year ended December 31, 2013.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Omaha, Nebraska
February 20, 2014



Exhibit 31.01
CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas B. Barker, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of West Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to make the statisrmade
in light of the circumstances under which suchestetnts were made, not misleading with respecteémiod covered by this repa

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) ainare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definétkahange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowwel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand
have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaones designed under our supervision, to ensate th

material information relating to the registranglirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylar
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under our supervigion
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réjabilfinancial reporting and the preparation imfancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes;

(o Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentigdsineport our conclusions about the effectiverss
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrideo&the period covered by this report based @h gwaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most recesuai
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethie case of an annual report) that has materifftgteed, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe
registran’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaifuaf internal control over financial reporting, the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the regis’s board of directors (or persons performing theéwedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lijkt®
adversely affect the registri’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting

Date: February 20, 2014
/sl Thomas B. Barke
Thomas B. Barke
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.02
CERTIFICATION
I, Paul M. Mendlik, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of West Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessary to make the statisrmade
in light of the circumstances under which suchestetnts were made, not misleading with respecteémiod covered by this repa

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial
condition, results of operations and cash flowthefregistrant as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) ainare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure controls and procedures (as definétkahange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cowwel financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand
have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedaones designed under our supervision, to ensate th

material information relating to the registranglirding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made kmtows by others within those entities, partidylar
during the period in which this report is beinggaeed;

b. Designed such internal control over financiglarting, or caused such internal control over feiahreporting to be designed under our supervigion
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réjabilfinancial reporting and the preparation imfancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes;

(o Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratislosure controls and procedures and presentigdsineport our conclusions about the effectiverss
the disclosure controls and procedures, as ofrideo&the period covered by this report based @h gwaluation; an

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the tegyig's internal control over financial reportirttat occurred during the registrant’s most recesuai
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethie case of an annual report) that has materifftgteed, or is reasonably likely to materially affethe
registran’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evaifuaf internal control over financial reporting, the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the regis’s board of directors (or persons performing theéwedent functions)

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corttvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lijkt®
adversely affect the registri’s ability to record, process, summarize and refimahcial information; an

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a signifrole in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting

Date: February 20, 2014
/sl Paul M. Mendlik
Paul M. Mendlik
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut




Exhibit 32.01

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of West Cogimm (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periatled December 31, 2013 as filed with the SecuréiesExchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), lpiftas B. Barker, Chief Executive Officer of the Camy, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as setbpursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company and furnisheth&o
Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafhupquest.

/sl Thomas B. Barke
Thomas B. Barke
Chief Executive Office

February 20, 2014




Exhibit 32.02

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of West Cogimm (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the periatled December 31, 2013 as filed with the SecuréiesExchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), JIRMA. Mendlik, Chief Financial Officer and Treasuxd the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.@380, as adopted
pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200::

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934; and
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company and furnishethéo
Securities and Exchange Commission or its stafhupquest.

/s/ Paul M. Mendlik
Paul M. Mendlik
Chief Financial Officer and Treasut

February 20, 201




